Board of Directors and Officers
of the Company 1299

i Percy Barnevik} (58) - Non-Executive Chairman —
appointed as a Director 6 April 1299, Non-Executive Chairman
| of ABB Ltd, Investor AB and Sandvik AB. Non-Executive

Director of General Motors Corporation.

Sir David Barnest CBE {63) —~ Executive Deputy Chairman
- appointed as a Director 15 February 1993. Non-Executive
Director of Prudential Corporation Plc. Deputy Chairman of
Business in the Community. Member of the Board of Trustees
of the British Red Crass. Non-Executive Chairman of Imperial
Cancer Research Technology Ltd.

Hakan Mogrent (56) — Executive Deputy Chairman -
appointed as a Director 8 April 1999, Formerly CEO and &

. Director of Astra AB (appointed 18 May 1988). Chairman of the
Research Institute of Industrial Econcmics {IUI). Non-Executive
Director of Gambro AB, Investor AB, the Federation of
Swedish Industries and the Marianne and Marcus Wallenberg
Foundaticn. Member of the Royai Swedish Academy of
Engineering Sciences.

Tom McKitlop {56} — Chief Executive — appointec as a
Director 1 January 1996. Non-Executive Director of Nycomed
: Amersham plc and Lloyds TSB Group Plc.

Sir Peter Bonfield* CBE, FREng (55) — Non-Executive
Director - appointed as a Director 1 January 1985, Chief
Executive of British Telecommunicaticns plc. Non-Executive
. Director of ICL. plc and Vice-President of The British Quality
© Foundation.

Erna Mélier® (59) - Non-Executive Director — appointed as

| aDirector 6 April 1999, Formerly a Director of Astra AB

. {appointed 15 May 1995). Professor of Clinical Immunoclogy
and Member of the Nobel Assembly, Karolinska Institute.

Dame Bridget Ogilvie# {61) ~ Non-Executive Director -
appoinied as a Director 1 January 1997. Non-Executive
Director of Lioyds TSB Group Plc and the Manchester
Technology Fund Limited. Chairman, Medicines for Malaria

! Venture, World Health Organisation and the Committes on the
Public Understanding of Science (COPUS).

; Michael Pragnell {53} - Executive Director and Chief

Executive Officer of Zeneca Agrochemicals — appointed as
a Director 1 January 1987. Has overall responsibility for

© Zeneca Agrochemicals. Non-Executive Director of David S

. Smith {Hoidings) PLC.

Lars Ramqvist® (62) - Non-Executive Director and
Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee — appointed

as a Director B April 1999, Formerly a Director of Astra AB
{appointed 17 May 1994). Chairman of Telefonaktiebolaget LM
Ericsson, Volvo AB and Skandia Insurance Company Ltd. Non-
* Executive Director of Svenska Celluiosaaktiebolaget (SCA).
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Ake Stavling (55) - Executive Director, Business
Development and integration - appointed as a Director
6 April 1299, Also has responsibility for corperate strategy.

Jonathan Symonds (40) - Executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer -- appointed as a Director 1 October 1997,
Also has overall responsibility for information services,
insurance and investor relations.

Karl von der Heyden# {63) - Non-Executive Director
and Chairman of the Audit Commitiee — appointed as
a Director 1 Qctober 1998, Executive Vice-Chairman of :
PepsiCo, Inc. Non-Executive Director of Federated Department
Stores Inc., the Pepsi Bottling Group and the Whitman :
Corporation.

Marcus Walienberg# {43) - Non-Executive Director :
- appointed as a Director 6 April 1999. Appointed as a Director
of Astra AB 18 May 1989, President and Chief Executive :
Officer of Investor AB. Non-Executive Vice-Chairman of Saab
AB and Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson. Non-Executive
Director of Scania AB, Skandinaviska Enskitda Banken, Stora
Enso Oyj, the Knut and Alice Wallenberg Foundation and
SAS Representatives.

Claes Wilhelmsson (60) - Executive Director, Research and
Development — appointed as a Director 6 April 1999, i

Sir Sydney Lipworth QC - Chairman — retired 8 April 1999.
Peter Doyle CBE — Executive Director - retired 6 April 1999,
Sir Richard Greenbury - Non-Executive Director and
Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Gommittee
~ retired 6 April 1999.

Frank Meysman — Non-Executive Director - retired

6 Aprit 1999,

Sir Jeremy Morse KCMG — Non-Executive Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee - retired 6 April 1899,
Alan Pink — Executive Director — retired 6 April 1999,

Other Officers of the Company at 31 December 1899 included
members of the Senior Executive Team, as set out on pages
49 to 50, and: _

Graeme Musker - Group Secretary and Solicitor

- appointed as Company Secretary 6 June 1993,

1 Member of the Nemination Committee
* Member of the Remuneration Committee
# Member of the Audit Committee
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. The Board in 1999

Details of the Board appear on page 48. Following completion
i of the merger on 6 April 1999, Sir Sydney Lipworth QC,

Peter Doyle CBE, Sir Richard Greenbury, Frank Meysman,

i Sir Jeremy Morse KCMG and Alan Pink retired from office.

On the same date, Hakan Mogren, Ake Stavling and Claes

. Wilhelmsson were appointed Exacutive Directors and Percy
Barnevik, Erna Méller, Lars Ramgvist and Marcus Wallenberg
were appointed Non-Executive Directors,

: Percy Barnevik was appointed Non-Executive Chairman of the
Company. Hakan Mogren, Marcus Wallenberg, Erna Mbller
and Lars Ramqist were previously members of the Board of
Directars of Astra AB, Hékan Mogren being President and

© CEOQ and Marcus Wallenberg being Vice-Chairman of the

. Board. Following completion of the merger, all of those
individuals except Marcus Wallenberg ceased 10 be Directors

. of Astra AB and all became Directors of the Company. Hakan
Mogren also ceasad to be President and CEO cf Astra AB
and Sir David Barmes CBE ceased to be Chief Executive of the
| Company; each was appointed Executive Deputy Chairman of
: the Company. Tom McKillop became Chief Executive of the

| Company with effect from the same date.

Ake Staviing and Claes Wilnelmsson were previously members
of Astra AB's senicr executive management team, Ake Stavling
having overall responsibility for finance and control matters and
| Claes Wilhelmsson for research and development.

. On completion of the merger, the retiring Directors of Astra AB
(now called AstraZeneca AB) were Bo Berggren (Chairman

! of the Board), Charles L. Cooney, Clags Dahlback, James M.

; Denny, Harry Faulkner, Lars H. Thunell, Katarina Bystrdm and
© Sven-Ake Pavasson-Hatta,

i Re-election of Directors

All of the Directors retire under Article 9¢ of the Articies of
. Association and are presenting themselves for re-election
at the AGM on 26 May 2000. All of the Directors are
recommended for re-election,

- Principal Activities

The Company is the holding company for a group of sub-

¢ sidiaries whose principal activities are described in the
Operational and Financial Reviews, which are incorporated in
this report by refarence. Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures
and asscciates and their locations are given on pages 118

: and 119.

. Dividends
The dividend for 1999 of $0.70 per Ordinary Share amounts to
© $1,242 million.
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Corporate Governance
Completion of the merger in 1999 provided an opportunity to

recongider and redesign a number of $he Company's corporate

governance structures while integrating the former Astra and
former Zeneca businesses, building on the best practices of
the two predecessor organisations. Comments below in
respect of corporate governance matters should be read in
this context.

Throughout 1999, other than as set out in this report, the
Company has applied all of the principles of gocd governance

contained in Section 1 of the Combined Code published by the

Hampel Committee on Corporate Governance and approved
by the Lendon Stock Exchange.

Other than as set out in this report, the Company has also
complied throughout the accounting period with the Code
provisions set out in Section 1 of the Combined Code,

Directors and Organisation

The Beard is responsible for the Company’s objectives,
policies and stewardship of the Company’s resources.

in 1999, it met 12 times; seven Board meetings are planned
for 2000. It concentrates mainly on strategy, financial
performance and critical business issues. Executive Directors
have specific remits and areas of responsibility which are
shown on page 48. The differing roles of Executive Directors
and Non-Executive Directors are clearly delineated; both have
fiduciary duties towards shareholders. However, Executive
Directors have girect responsibility for business cperations
whereas the Non-Executive Directors have a responsibility

te bring independent, objective judgement to bear on Board
decisicns. There is an established and transparent procedure
for appeintments of new directors 1o the Board which is
operated by the Nemination Committee. All of the Directors
retire at each AGM and may offer themselves for re-election
by sharehclders.

The Chief Executive, Tom McKillop, has delegated authority
from, and is responsible to, the Board for directing and
promoting the profitable operation and development of the
Company consistent with the primary aim of enhancing leng
term shareholder value. He is obliged to refer certain major
matters (defined in the formal delegation of the Board's
authority) back to the Board.

The Chief Executive has established and chairs the Senior
Executive Team. While retaining full responsibility for the
authority delegated to him by the Board, the Sgnior Executive
Team is the vehicle through which he exercises that authcrity
in respect of the Company's pharmaceuticals and healthcare
busingsses (inciuding Salick Health Care, Astra Tech and

Diagnostics). The other members of the Senior Executive Team

are Ake Stavling, Jonathan Symonds, Class Wilhelmsson

.6;\.:";
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(all Executive Directors); Michael O'Brien, Executive Vice-
President, International Sales and Markating; Carl-Gustaf
Johansson, Executive Vice-President, North America and
President and CEQ, AstraZeneca LP; John Patterson,
Executive Vice-President, Product Strategy and Licensing;
Barrie Thorpe, Executive Vice-President, Operations and
Gunnar Christiani, Executive Vice-President, Human

| Rescurces. During 1999, it normally met twice a month ta
review all business issues and decisions other than those
considered to be of a size or importance to require the
attenticn of, or which are reserved to, the full Board. In 2000,
the Senior Exacutive Team will normally meet once a month for
. two days.

. The Chief Executive has established and chairs the

| Agrochemicals Executive Team which is the vehicle through

¢ which he exercises the authority delegated to him by the Board
;N respect of Zeneca Agrochemicals. Its other members
comprise Michael Pragnell, Ake Staving and Jonathan

;. Symonds (ail Executive Directors) and it meets approximately
four times per annum.

The Chief Executive, acting through the Senior Executive Team
and the Agrochemicals Executive Team, is responsible to the
Board for the management and performance of the Company’s
businesses within the framework of Company policies,
reserved powers and routing reporting requirements, The roles
of the Board, the Chairman, the Deputy Chairmen, the Chief

| Executive, the Senior Executive Team, the Agrochemicals
Executive Team and their key committees are documented, as
are the Company's delegated authorities and reserved powers,
the means of operation of the business and the roles of

| corporate functions.

i Directors’ Remuneration
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are contained in the
Report of the Board on Remuneration on pages 52 to 54,

! Relations with Shareholders

The Company has frequent discussions with institutional

i shareholders on a range of issues affecting its performance.

¢ These comprise meetings following the announcement of

the annual results with the Company’s largest institutional
shareholders, on an individual basis; and on a group basis,

. up to two business strategy briefings relating to individual
businesses during the year. In addition the Company responds
continually to individual ad hoc requests for discussions from
institutional shareholders,

All shareholders, including private investors, have an

. opportunity to participate in discussions with the Board on

! matters relating to the Company’s operation and performance
| at the AGM.

Accountabitity and Audit

In its financial reporting to shareholders and other interested
parties by means of annual and quarterly performance reperts,
the Beard aims to present a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s financial positicn and
prospects.

The key features of the Company’s current system of internal
control are described below.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Company's system
of internal control which aims to safeguard shareholders’
investments and the Company's assets, ensure that proper
accounting records are maintained and that the financial
information used within the business and for publication is
reliable. The system is alsc designed to provide reasonable
assurance of effective operations and compliance with laws
and regulations, but any system of internal control can only
provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Company has in place a range of procedures to monitor

and control the risks asscciated with the achievement of its
objectives, The Company’s businesses are subject to annual
strategy reviews, to an annual budget process including
forecasts for the next three years together with a sensitivity

and risk analysis, to quarterly updates of the forecast for the :
current year and to monthly reporting and explanation of actual
performance and variances. During 2000, the performance
measures will move away from being predominantly financial
towards a broader range of measures that address the
achievement of key business priorities. All material capital
investrments must be submitted for approval with supporting
information which includes a requirement to identify and

discuss risks and alternatives. Treasury operations are
centralised, operate within defined limits and are subject to
regular reporting requirements.

Following completion of the merger cn 6 April 1998, a formal
review of a number of the Company’s cerporate policies was
initiated. As is the case with several of the policies, the review

of the Company's code of ethics is ongoing. Pending its
completion, the Zeneca Group Code of Ethics remains valid

and states that it is the policy of the Company that all of its
subsidiaries and their employess cbserve high standards of
integrity and &ct with due skill, care, diligence and fairness

in the conduct of business. The Company's management
recognises that such standards make a significant contribution
to the overall control environment and seek, by their words and
actions, to reinforce them throughout the business. :

The Company's Audit Committee has received and considered
reports on the effectiveness of the Company's system of
internal financial control. These include an annual assessment
of internal financial control from the internal audit function,
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. reports from the external auditors on matters identified in the
course of thelr statutory audit work and management

. assurance of the maintenance of control. The latter is based
on an annual ‘letter of assurance’ by which responsible
managers confirm the adequacy of their systems of internal

| financiat contra!, their compliarce with Company policies, local
laws and regulations and report any control weaknesses

i identified in the past year.

Following publication in September 1999 by the Institute of

. Chartered Accountants in England and Wales of the Turnbull
report, ‘Internal Control: Guidance for Directors on the

. Combined Gode', the Directors initiated a formal review of the
. effectiveness of the group’s system of non-financial contrals,
including operational and compliance controls and risk

© management.

. As & result of this review and the completion of the merger,
work to develop and refine the Company's business risk
management processes and internal controls is cngoing.
Significant progress has already been made, building on

the extensive range of internal control and risk management

| activities which both Astra and Zeneca undertook as embed-
ded business processes prior to the merger. in particular, a
comprehensive review of the Coempany's high level internal
control arrangements has been undertaken which has con-

¢ firmed the global adequacy of this framewoerk. The principal
risks facing the Company have been identified by the Senior
Executive Team, mechanisms for the co-ordinated manage-

. ment of those risks are being developed and minor changes
. are being planned in the way in which ongoing communication
to the Board of the operation of control and risk processes

¢ takes place.

" The Directors are confident that an effective embedded system
. of internal contro! has been and will be maintained throughout
this process, and that implementation of the Turnbull guidance
¢ will be completed during 2000.

. Non-compliance with the Combined Code

The items in the Combined Code with which the Company

i did not comply in full throughout the pericd are the appoint-
ment of a senicr Non-Executive Director, membership of the
Nomination Committee and service contracts’ notice periods.
. The reasons for non-compliance are stated below.

To date, members of the Board have not considered that the |
. appointment of a senior Non-Executive Director would
i enhance the manner in which they discharge their duties.

The members of the Company’s Nomination Committee are

¢ Percy Barnevik {Chairman of the Committee), Sir David Barnes
. CBE, Hakan Mogren and one Non-Executive Director nomi-

; nated by the Chairman of the Committes. The Board believes
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that, while not strictly complying with the provigion of the
Combined Code that a majority of the members of the
Committee should be Non-Executive Directors, this member-
ship provides a forum with exceptional experience of the
Company's requiraments and the knowledge of former Astra
and Zeneca personnel that is necessary for the consideration
of new Board appointments.

The service contracts of Executive Directors provide for a
notice period of two years. In the case of a number of
Directors who were formerly employed by Astra, this has
involved a reduction in the notice period o which they were
previously entitled. It is not currently proposed that notice
periods should be reduced further for existing service
contracts. However, for new Executive Directors, although the
initial notice pericd may be for a longer period, it is the Board's
intention that it should be reduced to one year subsequently.
The Board recognises that market conditions may not make
this easy to achieve in the near term and the Board has
retained the flexibility to offer whatever is necessary to make
appropriate new appointments.

Going Concern

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company and its subsidiaries have adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
and therefore continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the accounts.

Auditors

A resoiution will be proposed at the AGM on 26 May 2000

for the re-appointment of KPMG Audit Ple, London as auditor
of the Company. Since the completion of the merger on

6 April 1999, KPMG Audit Pic, London and Deleitte & Touche,
London have been the Company’s joint auditers. Prior to that
date, KPMG Audit Plc, London was the auditor of the
Company.

Purchase of Own Shares

At the AGM, the Company will be seeking a renewal of its
current permission from shareholders to purchase its own
shares.

In its half year results announcement for 1899, the Company
stated that its distribution policy would contain both a regular
dividend cash flow and a share repurchase component tc give
the Company more flexibility in managing its capital structure
over time, During 1999, in line with this policy, the Company
purchased for cancellation 4,338,444 of its own Crdinary
Shares with a nominal value of $0.25 each for an aggregate
sum of $183 million. This number of shares represents 0.24%
of the Company's total issued share capital,
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. Allotments

Changes in the Company’s Ordinary Share capital during the
year, including allotments of shares under the Company’s
share schemaes, are given in Note 40 to the Financial

! Statements.

! Charitable Contributions

| The Company and its subsidiaries contributed $20 miion to
 charity in 1899. This includes a donation of $16 milion made
to the AstraZeneca Science Teaching Trust.

/ Political Contributions

i No political contributions in respect of which the Company is
required to make any staterments in this report were made in
i 1999.

. Payment of Suppliers

: Although it is not Company policy formally to comply with the
Confederation of British Industry’s code of practice on the
prompt payment of suppliers, it is Company policy to agree

| appropriate payment terms with all suppliers when agreeing
the terms of gach trangaction, ensure that those suppliers are
made aware of the terms of payment and, subject to their

: compliance, abide by the terms of payment. The total owed by
the Company’s subsidiaries to trade craditors at the balance
sheet date was equivalent to 50 days’ average purchases. No
equivalent disclosure is provided in respect of the Company
as it has no external creditors.

Employee involvement
The Company maintaing an open management style and
i involves its employees both in daily decisions and lenger term
| matters. It is fully committed to keeping all of its employees
{ informed about their work unit and the wider business, as well
&s discussing the implications of major business changes and
cther relevant matiers. in line with legal requirements and
i cultural standards, more formal national and business level
i employee consultation arrangements exist in some countries.
A forum for employee consultation at European level, chaired
by the Chief Executive, was introduced in 1995. Detalils of
employees' share schemes appear in Note 33 to the Financial
| Statements,

- Equal Opportunities

The Company believes that every employee should be treated
with the same respect and dignity. It values the rich diversity
and creative potential of people with differing backgrounds
and abilities, and encourages a culture of equal opportunities
in which persenal success depends on personal merit and

| performance. It is Company policy that there should be no

i discrimination against any person for any reason that is not

| relevant to the effective performance of their job. Al

¢ judgements about people for the purposes of recruitment,
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development and promaotion wili be made solely on the basis
of their ability and potential in relation to the needs of the job.
Every manager is responsible for implementing this policy.

Employmernt of People with Disabilities

It is Company palicy that people with disabilities should have
the same consideration as others with respect to recruitment,
retention and perscnai development. Depending on their skilis
and abilities, they enjoy the same career prospects as other
employees and the same scope for realising potential. The
Company also takes all reasonable steps to ensure that its
working environments can accommodate special needs.

Report of the Board on Remuneration of
Directors

Establishment of Separate Remuneration and
Nomination Committees

Fallowing the completion of the merger on 6 April 1999, the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee was divided into
two separate committees. Prior to that, the members of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committes were Sir Richard
Greenbury (Chairman of the Committes), Sir Peter Bonfigld
CBE, FREng, Sir Jeremy Morse KCMG, Frank Meysman,
Dame Bridget Oglivie and Karl von der Heyden.

Membership and Remit of the Nomination Commitiee
The members of the Nomination Committee during 1999 were
Percy Barnevik (Chairman of the Committes), Sir David Barnes
CBE, Hakan Mogren and one Non-Executive Director to be
nominated by Percy Barnevik.

The remit of the Committee is, primarily, to make proposals to
the Board for any new appointments as Directors of the
Company.

Membership and Remit of the Kemuneration
Commnittee

The members of the Remuneration Commitiee during 1999
were Lars Ramavist {Chairman of the Committea), Erna Mdller :
and Sir Peter Bonfisld CBE, FREng. They are all Non-Executive
Directors of the Company, independent and have no personal ;
financial interest in matters to be decided, no potential
confiicts of interest arising from cross-directorships and no
day-to-day involvement in running the Company.

The remit of the Committee is, among other things, to
recommend to the Board the fundamental remuneration policy
for the Company and to ensure the proper operation of all
schemes involving the Company's shares. More particularly,

it makes specific proposals in respect of the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and the Company’s
most senicr executives.
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! The Company is committed to developing a dynamic

. performance culture in which every employee champions the
growth of sharehclder value; they wilt be clear about the
Company’s objectives, know how their work impacts on them
and that they will benefit from achieving high levels of

| performance.

- With this vision in mind, the Remuneration Gommittee has
. reviewed remuneration policy. The Board has confirmed that

the overall policy and purpose should be to:

. # attract and retain pecple of the quality necessary to sustain

the Company as one of the best pharmaceuticals
companies in the world; and

. ¥ motivate them to achieve the level of performance

necessary to create sustained growth in shareholder value.

In order to achieve this, remuneration policy and practice will
. be designed to:

# closely align individual and team reward with business

performance at each level;

o encourage employees to perform to their fullest capacity;

% encourage employees to align their interests with those of
shareholders;

' & support managers’ responsibility to achieve business

performance through pecple, and for them to recognise
superior performance, in the short and longer term;

% be as locally focused and flexible as realistic;

# be competitive and cost effective in each of the relevant
employment markets; and

# be as internally consistent as realistic taking due account of
market need.

. Components of the Remuneration Package
The cost and value of the components of the remuneration
¢ package will be considered as a whole and designed:

# to ensure a proper balance of fixed and variable
performance related components, linked to short and
long term objectives; and

o to reflect market competitiveness taking account of the

total value of all of the components.
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The compenents contained in the total remuneration package
should be:

# annual salary - based on conditions in the relevant
geographic market, with the provision o recognise, in
addition, the value of individuals’ sustained personal
perfarmance, resulting from their ability and experience;

# ad hoc rewards — special payments and other measures
available to reward individuals and teams following a
particular and outstanding business contribution;

W

¢ short term bonus - a lump sum payment related to the
targeted achieverment of identified business drivers and,
where appropriate, personal performance goals, measured
over a year within a specific scheme;

# Jonger term bonus — a measure of reward (cash, shares
or share opticns) related to the targeted growth in
sharehclder return over the longer term (three years or
longer);

# share participation — various schemes to provide the
opportunity for all employees to take a personal stake in the
Company's wealth as shareholders; and

% other benefits — benefits such as holidays, sickness benefit
and pensions which are cost effective and compatibie with
the relevant national welfare arrangements.

The way in which these elements are combined and appilied
will vary depending, for example, on market need and practice
in various countries.

For Executive Directors, the individual components are:

# annual salary - the actuat salary for each of the Executive
Directors is determined on behalf of the Board by the
Remuneration Committee; these salaries reflect the
experience and sustained performance of the individuals
to whom they apply, as judged annually by the Committee,
taking account aiso of market competitiveness;

# short term bonus — in respect of 1999, (apart from
transitional arrangements applicable to Executive Directors
who were formerly employees of Astra AB for the period
prior to the merger), Executive Directors were entitled
to an annual bonus calculated on the performance of the
Company as measured against targets agreed with the
Remuneration Committee for the year; for Directors, the
annual bonus is calculated on a scale of 0-50% of salary;
25% of salary is payable for the achievement of target
business performance; the Committee may apply an
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individual muitiplier of 0-1.5 to the bonus on a

discretionary and exceptional basis to reward or reflect
individual performance; 50% cf the bonus payable must be
taken in Ordinary Shares in the Company and the remainder
in cash or shares at the option of the individual Director;
bonus taken in shares is normally matched by an equivalent
number of shares by the Company; shares are awarded
through an employee benefits trust, by way of a conditicnal
appropriation, and are released to the Director upon
satisfaction of the conditicn which, subject to exceptions, is
that the Director must remain employed by the Company for
three years after the appropriation; shares are ctherwise
forfeited; no dividends are payable pricr to release;

# jonger term bonus — Directors are also rewarded for
improvement in the share price performance of the
Company sustained over a period of years by the grant
of share options; share options are granted incrementally to
the equivalent face value of four times each Director’s
salary: the exercise of options granted under the Zeneca
1994 Executive Share Option Scheme is currently subject to
the perfermance condition that before any exercise,
earnings per share must grow by at least the increase in the
UK retail prices index plus 3% per annum over a continuous
three year period following grant; there has been a policy,
subject to the discretion of the Remuneration Committee, of
phasing the grant of replacement options following any
exercise; and

P pensicn and other benefits — normally, UK Directors

participate in the Zeneca contributory pension scheme and
are members of the Zeneca pension fung which provides a
pension of up to two-thirds of basic saiary on retirement at
age 62 with at least 20 years’ service; the scheme also
provides for dependants’ pensions and lump sums on death
in service.

In respect of those UK Birectors, namely Michaeg! Pragnell and
Jonathan Symonds, whose pensionable earnings are capped
by the earnings limit imposed by the Finance Act 1989, money
purchase funded unapproved retirement benefit schemes are
available, The Company has agreed to pay 50% of basic salary
. in excess of the earnings limit with the intention of providing

| equivalence of benefits with non-capped UK Directors. If this
does not provide equivalence, then the Company has agreed
to make up the difference.

. Normally, Swedish Directors participate in the collectively
i bargained ITP pension plan, which provides pensions,
dependants' pensions and lump sums on death in service.

In respect of those Swedish Directors, namely Hakan Mogren,
- Ake Stavling and Class Wilhelmsscn, whose pensionable
earnings are in excess of the eamings limit imposad oy the
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Communal Tax Law (Kommunalskattelagenj, supplementary
pensicn commitments are made. The Company has agreed
to pay 70% of pensicnable salary from age 60 to age 65 and
50% of such earnings from age 65. The ITP provisions are
included in this additional promise.

Note 35 io the Financial Statements sets out the information
required by the Listing Rules of the London Stock Exchange
relating to Directors’ pension entitiements.

Other customary benefits (such as car and fuel, health
benefits, savings related share option scheme} are made
available as required.

From 2000 there will be a new annual bonus scheme related to
the achievement of both the targeted performance of earnings |
per share and the achievement of individual measures relevant
to each Director's particular area of responsibility. The bonus
payable will be on a scale of 0-100% of salary; 50% of salary
will be payable for the achievement of target business
performance. 80% of the bonus will relate to the achievement
of the earnings per share target.

it is proposed that a new executive share opticn scheme will
be put to the AGM on 26 May 2000 for approval and full
details of this will be sent to sharshelders with the Notice of
AGM.

Emoluments in 1999: the emoluments of Directors of the
Company are set out in Note 35 to the Financial Statements.

Full details of Directors’ interests in Crdinary Shares of the
Company and its subsidiaries (including cptions), together with
options granted and exercised in 1999 are set out in Note 34
to the Financial Statements.

Service Contracts

Each Executive Director normally has a service contract with
a notice pericd of two years subject 1o retirement, normally,
at the age of 62, At the time of the AGM on 26 May 2000,
the unexpired term of Executive Directors’ service contracts
will be 2 maximum of 24 maonths.

External Appointments i
With the specific approval of the Board in each case, Executive
Directors may accept external appointments as non-executive “
directors of other companies and retain any related fees paid
to them.

On behalf of the Board

G H R Musker K
Group Secretary and Solicitor
23 February 2000
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Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the preparation . |
of the financial statements

The Directors are required by United Kingdom company law to prepate for each accounting period financial statements which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the Company as at the end of the accounting period and of the profit or loss .
for that periodl. in preparing the financial statements the Directors are required to select and apply consistently suitable accounting
policies and make reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. Applicable accounting standards also have to be followed

and a statement made to that effect in the financial statements, subject to any material departures being disclosed and explained in
the notes to the financial statements, The Directors are required to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless

it is inappropriate to presume that the group will continue in business. The Directors are responsibie for ensuring proper accounting
records are kept which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are also responsible for taking reasonable steps to
safeguard the assets of tha Company and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Auditors’ report to the members of AstraZeneca PLC

We have audited the financial statements on pages 58 to 128, .

Respective responsibifities of Directors and Auditors

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Form 20-F, As described on page 586 this includes responsibility for
brepan'ng the financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom faw and accounting standards; the Directors have
also presented additional information under United States requirements. Qur responsibilities, as independent auditors, are established in
the United Kingdom by statute, the Auditing Practices Board, the Listing Rules of the London Stock Exchange, and by our profession’s
ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Directors’ Report is not consistent with the financiat
statements, if the Comparty has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or if information specified by law or the Listing Rules regarding Directors’ remuneration and transactions with the
groug is not disclosed.

We review whether the statement on page 49 reflects the Compary’s compliance with those provisions in the Combined Code
specified for our review by the Stock Exchange, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider whether the Board's
statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s corporate
governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.,

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report and Form 20-F, including the comporate governance statement, and
consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial statements. Wea consider the implications for our report if wa become aware
of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financlal staternents. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements macde by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the group's circumstances, consistently applied and adsquately disclosed.

Wea planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient. evidencs 1o give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whather caused by fraud or cther irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the financlal statements.

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Compary and the group as at 31 December
1999 and of the profit of the group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

Generally accepted accounting principles in the United Kingdom vary in certain significant respects from generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States. Application of generally accepted accounting principles in the United States would have affected results
of operations for each of the years in the three-year period ended 31 Dacember 1999 and consolidated Shareholders’ equity at

31 December 1999 and 1898, to the extent summarised on pages 120 to 128.

S e A | JS@‘{G‘H’@ o Touwtr

KPMG Audit Plc Deloitte & Touche
Chartered Accountants T Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor : Registered Auditor

8 Salisbury Square 1 Little New Street
London EC4Y 888 ' London EC4A 4TR

The above opinion is provided in compliance with UK requirements. An opinion complying with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States will be inciuded in the Annual Report and Form 20-F filed with the United States Securities & Exchange
¢ Commission.
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i Group Profit and Loss Account
! For the year ended 31 December

: 15,334 2,657 T B82 18,653
Less: Share of joint ventures’ turnover (200} - - (8) {208)
Operating costs . S S (11704 .. 2438) _..(1.162) ] (586) ... (15,888}
! Other operating income ' : 2 140 46 - .3 189
Group operating profit 2 3,570 267 (1,162) 71 2,746
Share of operating (oss)/profit of joint ventures
: endassociales 3 (19 2 v S, S, o
Profits less losses on sale and closure of operations & ST LT UL A 237
D MIGRrCOSIS Do e SOV o 8013)
E Profits on sale of fixed assets 5 - _ _ _ _
Profit on ordinary activities before interest 3,560 269 (2,175} 309 1,963
Net interest 6 (@ - - - @
an-g._f.i"t'_gn ordinary activities before taxation 3586 . 269 {2,175} 309 1,959
Taxation . . . 7 {1,048) {93) 448 (122) {815}
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation =~~~ =~ 2808 76 (727 187 1,144
Attributable to minorities - () - - )
| Netprofitfor the financialyear 2508 ... 175 072D 187 1148
| Dividends to Shareholders 8 {1,242)
Profit/(loss) retained for the financial year . {99)
Earnings per $0.25 Ordinary Share before
. exceptionalftems e SAAY L 8000 8008 154
| Eamings per $0.25 Ordnary Share tbasio) 9. $i41 8090 (80.97) 3010 - S084
| Eamings per $0.25 Ordinary Share (diluted) s VAL $010 . goery _$o10 $0.64
Weighted average number of
i Qrdinary Shares in issue {millions) G 1,776

1999
Continuing operations

Operations
tobe
inued

Ongoing

Exceptional
" N

Discontinued

1

Group Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

For the year ended 31 December

D T et AT LA

i Net profit for the financial year : 1,143

i Movement in unrealised holding gains and losses
i on short-term investments 22 -

Translation differences on foreign

currency borrowings o o 22 ] 132

Tax on transtation differences on foreign
i currency borrowings ) 22 {22)

Total recognised gains and losses
{ relating to the financial year 513

$m means, millions of US dollars

@
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Continuing operations

Operations
Ongoing to be
cperations  discontinued

Ciscontinued
rations

Exceptional

itermns 4]

12,3838 2790 T

{1,065} - - (15)

1998

Financial Statements

Continuing operations

Cperations
ic be
discontinued

Ongoing
‘operations

Exceptional
items

1997

Discontinued

operations Total

{1,388} ~ -

L1369 14,574
(10) {1,408)

L1818 2790 T
Lesen o feds2)
119 61 163 10

B -~ 2. S
72) ... (1.158)

15402
_(12,813)

353

8202 .. 2008 T

(2,307) -

11,359 13,166
(1,222)  (10,435)

B DO . S-S ..

B A Y
- - - (46)

- - 17 -

3242

- 539

(486)

B8O BBD

LY. S A

17 .. A,

45 3579

= 81

827380

: OB
(903)

{126) (16) (41)

L3098 38T
(899) (131) -

Y

1453860 ¢
(51)  (1.081) |

2,224 234 92 63
{3) 1 - -

2,249 236 -
@) ) -

94 2,579

22 S - 6.

5 L . = S

- @
94 ...2570 ¢
(086)

1,584

$0.04

©® &
iy
NN
B O

5006

3004

L..s005
$0.05
L3008

$1.45
$1.45
$1.44

L

2870

(786}

(%)

1,802
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Group Balance Sheet
At 31 December

1999

1968

Fixed assets

373

Goodwill and intangible ass

Investments in joint ventures 13
Investments in associates ST -

Other investments 13

71

5,981 ...

108
6,,

9,902

i Current assets

Short-term investments S - 16

429

2,156 .
4,470
2,850

2009

3963 |

2,702
710

9,914

9.404

Total assets

19,816

18,478

Creditors due within one year

Current instalmenis of loans 19

{34)

(6,640)

(344 ...

34D
(30)
®)

{5,268)

Other creditors 18

{7,019)

2,895

6.650 |
3.754

© Net current assets

12,797

12,828

! Total assets less current Habilities

Creditors due after more than one year

Other creditors 18

{739

(462}

(761)
.8
25) |

(1,202}

Provisions for liabilities and charges 21

{1,253)

Net assets -

10,342

! Capital and reserves

| Calleg-upsharecapital 40

| Share premium account - S

. Capital redemption reserve L << SO

Otherreserves B3

Profit and toss account 23

8,538

676

Shareholders’ funds - equity interests .~ 22

Minority equity interests

10,302

40

Shareholders’ funds and minority interests

10,342

10,982

The financial statements on pages 58 to 128 were approved by the Board of Directc;rs on 23 February 2000

Jonathan Symonds

! behalf by:

Torh McKillop
Director

Direcior

were signed on its
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Statement of Group Cash Fiow
~ For the year ended 31 December

Notes 1999 1998 1997

Cash flow from operating activities

: Net cash inflow from trading operations 24 ... 499 3817 3463

{Outflow)/inflow related 1o exceptional items 25 {1,586) 15 (108}

Net cash inflow from operating activities 3,113 3,832 3,355
 Dividends received from joint ventures and associates_

 Joint ventures 3 262 369

Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Dividends paid by subsidiaries to minority interests {6} @) {74)

29 103 (31)

Tax paid {1,020) {775) {750)
Capital expenditure and financial investment

Cash expenditure on tangible fixed assets M ABA9O)(1392)(2289)
| 90
Disposals of fixed assets 28 155 52 :
. (2,731) (1.368) (1,292)

B L5
o 118)

. Cash expenditure on intangibie assets

ew fixed 2556 stments

Acquisitions and disposals
| Acquisitions and purchases of miorityinierest 28 oo (28) (2013 . f821) |
| Investments in joint ventures and associates SO OO

| Disposals of business operations LN ... KO . -1

Disposals of investments in associates 20 - 2
: 1,978 (2,013) (321}
Equity dividends paid to Shareholders {1,216) (995) (882}

Net cash inflow/{outflow) before management
i of liquid rescurces and financing 29 156 (955) 448

Management of liquid resources
. Movement in short-term investments and fixed deposits (net) (254) 974 (252)
. Financing 30 {182} (208} @)

{Decrease)/increase in cash in the year {280) (186) 192

ASTRAZENECA - ANNUAL REPORT AND FORM 20-F 1999 61



Financial Statements
Basis of consolidation and presentation of financial information

i The financial statements have been prepared using the merger method of accounting in relation to the merger of Zeneca Group PLC
and Astra AB which became effective on 6 April 1999. Under merger accounting, the results and cash flows of Zeneca Group PLC
and Astra AB are combined from the beginning of the financial period in which the merger occurred and their assets and liabilities
combined at the amounts at which they were previously recorded after adjusting to achieve consistency of accounting policies.
Profit and loss account, balance sheet and cash flow comparatives are restated on the combined basis. See Note 31 for further

i information.

Following completion of the merger, AstraZeneca PLC’s share capital has been redenominated from sterling into US dollars and, as
the US dollar is now considered to be the primary currency in which the group conducts business, these and all subsequent

¢ financial statemants will therefore be presented in US dollars. The parent company's functional currency has also changed as a

: result.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
; estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
! liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reperting period.
: Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Following the merger of Astra AB and Zeneca Group PLC a detailed comparison has been undertaken of the accounting
conventions used by the two companies. As a result, there has been a reclassification of agrochemicals rebates from cost of sales
to sales of $95m in 1898 (1997 $67m}. This is in line with industry practice.

Continuing operations

© Continuing operations include the ongoing Healtheare operations of the group and the group’s agrochemicals business. Zeneca
Agrochemicals (excluding the Advanta joint venture) has been classified as 'Operations to be discontinued’ following the
announcement on 2 December 1999 of the agreement with Novartis to spin off and merge the two companies’ agrochemicals
businesses to create a new company, to be named Syngenta AG.

Discontinued operations

© Following the sale of the Zeneca Specialties business on 30 June 1999, Zeneca Specialties results (including the contract
manufacture of textile colour intermediates for BASF which was retained by AstraZeneca and which ceased early in 2000) for the
year have been reported separately as discontinued operations. Marlow Foods is now classified in ‘Other Trading’ within continuing
i operations.

The following new accounting standards were adopted during the year:

UK Financial Reporting Standard 12 — ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ sets out the appropriate recognition
criteria and measurement bases to be applied to provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets. The adoption had no
impact on prior years’ profits or cash flows, nor on net assets at 31 December 1998.

UK Financial Reporting Standard 13 — ‘Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments’ sets out the narrative and numerical disclosure
required regarding informaticn about the impact of financial instruments on an entity's risk profile, how the risks arising from financial
instruments might affect an entity's performance and financial condition and how they are being managed. Such disclosures are

. provided in Note 20.

In addition, the following new accounting standards have been issued but were not adopted:

UK Financial Reporting Standard 15 - “Tangible Fixed Assets’ is applicable for accounting pericds ending on or after 23 March
2000. The standard sets out the principles of accounting for initial measurement, valuation and depreciation of tangible fixed assets,
with the exception of investment properties. AstraZeneca will adopt this standard in 2000. The impact of adoption on AstraZeneca’s
financial statements is not anticipated to be material.

UK Financial Reporting Standard 16 — ‘Current Tax’ specifies how current tax, in particular withholding tax and tax credits, should be

reflected in financial statements. AstraZeneca will adopt this standard in 2000. The impact of adoption on AstraZeneca’s financial
i statements is not anticipated to be material.
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Accounting policies

| Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, medified to include the market value of ceriain current
asset investments held by group subsidiaries as described below, in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAR). Where there are significant differences to US GAAP these have been
described in the UK/AJS GAAP section on pages 120 to 128. The net profit and shareholders’ funds in accordance with International
Accounting Standards are not significantly different from those presented under UK GAAR. The following paragraphs describe the
main accaunting policies under UK GAAP. The accounting policies of some overseas subsidiaries and associated undertakings do
not conform with UK GAAR and, where appropriate, adjustments are made on consolidation in order to present the group financiaf

| statements on a consistent basis.

Depreciation and Amortisation

AstraZeneca’s policy is to write off the cost of each tangible fixed asset evenly over its estimated remaining life. Reviews are made
periodically of the estimated remaining lives of individual productive assets, taking account of commercial and technological

| obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear. Under this policy it becomes impracticable to calculate average asset lives exactly.
However, the total lives approximate to 25 years for buildings and 15 years for plant and equipment. Intangible assets, including
patents, acquired are capitalised and amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives (generally not exceeding 20
years) in line with the benefits accruing. If related products fail, the remaining unamortised amounts are immediately written off to
revenue expense. Internally developed intangible assets are not capitalised. All fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when there
are indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable,

Environmental Liabilities

AstraZeneca is exposed 10 environmental liabilities relating to its past operations, principally in respect of soil and groundwater
remediation costs. Provisions for these costs are made when there is a present obligation, it is probable that expenditure on
remedial work will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the cost.

: Foreign Currencies
i Profit and ioss accounts in foreign currencies are translated into US dollars at average rates for the relevant accounting periods.
i Assets and liabiiities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the group balance sheet.

Exchange gains and losses on short-term foreign currency borrowings and deposits are included within net interest payable.
Exchange differences on all other transactions, except relevant foreign currency loans, are taken to operating profit,

In the: consolidated financial statements exchange differences arising on consolidation of the net investments in overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are taken directly to reserves via the statement of total recognised gains and losses.

i Goodwill

On the acquisition of a business, fair values are attributed to the net assets acquired. Goodwill arises where the fair value of the
consideration given for a business exceeds the fair value of such net assets. Goodwill arising on acquisitions since 1998 is
capitalised and amortised over its estimated useful life (generally not exceeding 20 years). The group’s policy up tc and including
1997 was to eliminate goedwill arising upon acquisitions against reserves. Such goodwill will remain eliminated against reserves until
dispesal or termination of the previously acquired business, when the profit or loss on disposal or termination will be calcuiated after
charging the gross amount, at current exchange rates, of any such goodwill. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment when there are
indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Investments
i An asscciate is an undertaking, not being a subsidiary or joint venture, in which AstraZeneca has a participating interest and over
whose commercial and financial policy decisions AstraZeneca exercises significant influence.

. Ajoint venture is an entity in which AstraZeneca holds an interest on a long-term basis and which is jointly controlied by
AstraZeneca and one or more cther venturers under a contractual arrangement.

AstraZeneca’s share of the profits less losses of all significant joint ventures and asscciates is included in the group profit and loss
account on the equity accounting basis or, in the case of joint ventures, the gross equity accounting basis. The holding value of
significant associates and joint ventures in the group balance sheet is calculated by reference to AstraZeneca's equity in the net

! assets of such associates and joint ventures, as shown by the most recent accounts available, adjusted where appropriate and
including goedwill on acquisitions made since 1 January 1998.

E]
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Accounting policies (continued)

Fixed asset investments are stated at cost and reviewed for impairment if there are indications that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

Current asset investments held by the group's insurance company subsidiaries, to the extent that they are actively matched against
insurance liabilities, are vatued at market value and unrealised gains and losses are taken directly fo reserves via the statement of
total recognised gains and losses. Realised gains and losses are taken to the profit and loss account.

Leases

Assets held under finance leases are capitalised and included in tangible fixed assets at fair value. Each asset is depreciated over
the shorter of the lease term or its useful life, The cbligations related te finance leases, net of finance charges in respect of future
periods, are included as appropriate under creditors due within, or creditors due after, one year. The interest element of the rental
obligation is allocated to accounting periods during the lease term to reflect a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the obligation for each accounting period. Rentals under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.

Post-retirement Benefits

The pension costs relating to UK retirement plans are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent quzlified actuaries.
The armounts so determined include the regular cost of providing the benefits under the ptans which it is intended should remain a
level percentage of current and expected future earnings of the employees covered under the plans. Variations from the regular
pension cost are spread on a systematic basis over the estimated average remaining service fives of current employees in the plans.
Retirement plans of non-UK subsidiaries are accounted for in accordance with local cenditions and practice. With minor exceptions,
these subsidiaries recognise the expected cost of providing pensions on a systematic basis over the average remaining service lives

of employees in accordance with the advice of independent quatified actuaries. The costs of providing post-retirement benefits other

than pensions, principally healthcare, are charged to the profit and loss account on a consistent basis over the average service lives
of employees. Such costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries.

Research and Development
Research and development expenditure is charged to profit in the year in which it is incurred,

Stock Valuation

Finished goods are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value and raw materials and other stocks at the iower of cost or
replacement price, The first in, first out or an average method of valuation is used. in determining cost, depreciation is included but
selling expenses and certain overhead expenses {principally central administration costs) are excluded. Net realisable value is
determined as estimated selling price less costs of disposal.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profits for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of timing differences
between the treatment of certain items for taxation and for accounting purposes. However, no provision is made for texation
deferred by reliefs untess there is reasonable evidence that such deferred taxation will be payable in the foreseesable future.

Turnover .
Turnover excludes inter-company turnover and value added taxes. Revenue is recognised at the point at which title passes.

Principal Financial Instruments
Forward foreign exchange contracts for existing transactions are stated at fair value at the balance sheet date and the gains/losses

arising are recognised in the group profit and loss account. Contracts to hedge anticipated exposures are not marked to market and :

gains/losses are deferred until the transaction is completed.

Forward currency option contracts are not marked to market as they are designated hedges and reduce the group's exposure to
risk. The gains/losses on these contracts are deferred until the date of the underlying transaction being hedged is completed.

interest rate swaps are accounted for on an accruals basis. Cross-currency swaps are translated at year end exchange rates;

gains/losses arising are included in the measurement of the related liabilities and dealt with.in the group profit and loss account or
reserves as appropriate.
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Notes relating to the Financial Statements

. 1 Composition of the group

The greup financial statements consolidate the financial statements of AstraZeneca PLC (the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries, of
which there were 324 at 31 December 1999. Owing to local conditions and to aveid undue delay in the presentation of the group
financial statements, Salick Health Care prepares its financial statements to 30 November.
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Notes relating to the Financial Statements

: 2 Group operating profit

Continuing operations

Ongoi'ng

QOperations
tobe  Exceptional Discontinued

Group turnover

15,134

ORBIAtING COSES e e oo e ere e e

Distribution costs

Research and development

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Leoen

(230)

242

{4,915)

2,657 - 654 '

0,510 B0 808 16037)

(84 - 29) (343)
R TC O L1 I .. (2,923)

(548) (1,015) {110} {6,585)

(11,704)

Other operating income
Government grants ...
Rovyaities

Other income

123
17

(2,436) (1,162} (586) (15.888)'

36 - - 159 .

10 - 3 30

140

48 - 3 189 o

Group operating profit

3,570

267 (1,162) 71 2,746

Charges included above
- for depreciation
—foramortisation

_.oforimpairment

Gross profit, as defined by the Companies Act 1985

(600)

.. 1298)

11,047

Year 2000 and EMU conversion costs included above 48 .0

(128) 28 (756)
BT T D 81D
e T $149)
1,147 37) 251 12,408

3 Share of operating profits/(losses) of joint ventures and associates

Share of operating (ioss)/profit of joint ventures

Share of operating profit of associates

199¢

Continuing operations

cperations

Ongoing

discontinued tems operations TJotal

ag

QOperations
io be Excepticnal  Discontinued

{10)
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Continuing operations

Ongoing

discontinu

Qperations

to be

Exceptional
items

Discontinued

2,790

1,294

1998

15,402

Financial Statements

Notes relating to the Financial Statements

Continuing operations

Ongoing

Cperations

to be

Exceptional
item

Discontinued

1997

1,359

13,168

(2.651) (1,511} - {799) (4,861) (1,810) (1,401) - {852) (4,063)
RN Mom - gse)  (@e7) GBS on - 7a)(@6d)
A @88 - 88 (2473 828 @eT - e (2470)
(3,936) (588) (72) {216) (4,812) (3,093) (526) - {219) {3,838)
18.891) {2,492) {72) {1,158) . {12,613} 6,912) {2,307) - (1,222) (10,435):

1 - - 2 - 2 ~ - 2

s6 a8 - - s a7 31 - - 78

B2 22 163 10 257 13 28 - 5 46

119 61 163 10 353 &0 81 - 5 126 :

2,548 359 91 146 3,142 2,350 365 - 142 2,857

B =)

......1508)

AL S
4L S

@

L S

G R

89

_.680)
e $140)

8.667 1,279 - 495 10,441

B .-
) S

L/

T

s

(588},

1998

- - e (1)
7,392 1,204 - 507 9,103

Continuing operations

Operations
Ongoing to pe
operations discontinued

Exceptional Discontinued
items operations Total

B3 T T 0 888,

1997

Continuing operations

Operations
~ Ongoing tobe Exceptional Discontinued
operations  discontinued items operations Tot

AT =8 T2

534 1 - 4 539

717 2 - 3 720

o 4 e
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: 3 Share of operating profits/(losses} of joint ventures and associates (continued)

Cn 1 Jjuly 1998, Astra Merck Inc., the joint venture with Merck Inc., was restructured in connection with the formation of a new
operating entity and the results of these US operations have been fully consolidated since this date. Prior to this restructuring, the
joint venture has been accounted for, under UK GAAPR, on the equity accounting basis in these financial statements. The group's
50% share of Astra Merck Inc.’s results in 1897 and the first six months of 1988, which are included within ‘Continuing Cperations’,
and the share of net assets at 31 December 1997 and 30 June 1998 were as follows:

8 months 12 months
to 30 June to 31 December
1998 1997

1189

. Profit on ordinary activities before taxation : .- UL

Taxation

210) @15y

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 326 401

! Balance sheet 1908 1997

Creditors due within one year

30 June 31 December

. S

@37) |

Creditors due after one year or more (30 {43)

| Net assets 536 715

4 Note of historical cost profits and losses

There were no material differences between reported profits and losses and histerical cost profits and losses on ordinary activities
i before taxation. :

| AstraZenecaL.P. restrucluring costs e
. Salick Health Care - impairment and rationalisation costs

Agrochemicals restructuring costs

5 Exceptional items

D Inteqration and SYNEIGY COSIS e e e e

{125) - -

Granting of US imdur marketing rights - 163 -

Exceptional items included in operating profits

{1,162) N -

Gain on disposal of Speciallies business {after charging
: $408m of gooowill previously written offtoreserves) BT T T

© Loss on closure of organophosphate intermediates business - (46) -

Profits less losses on sale and closure of operations 237 (46) -

Merck "Trigger Event’ payment and related costs

Other merger costs

B09) T T

(204)

| Merger costs

{1,013)

Profit on sale of fixed assets

17

{1,938)

62

Total exceptional items before taxation

351

{4)

Net taxation credit/{charge)

68

| Total exceptional items after taxation

{1,587)

58
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{ 5 Exceptional items (continued)
i Details of the 1999 exceptional items are as folows:

¢ Acharge of $864m for the costs committed by the end of 1999 on the AstraZeneca integration and synergy programme

: {including $379m manpower related costs, $160m legal and other advisors' costs, $145m in respect of information
systems integration, $45m for asset impairment and $135m other costs) of which $316m relates to integration and
$548m to synergy. Detailed plans now indicate that the total cost of this programme is expected to be $1.3bn compared
with original estimates at the time of the merger announcement of $1.2bn. Job reductions in excess of 2,800 were
achieved in 1999 and the detailed plans indicate that the overall target of 6,000 job reductions will be met.

*  Acharge of $28m (1998 $72m) to complete the programme to rationalise Astra's US operations following the Astra Merck
: inc. restructuring in mid 1998.

»  Acharge of $145m to recognise the conseguence of refocussing the Salick Health Gare business on a smaller base of
’ profitable cancer centres and the impairment of certain fixed asset carrying values ($78m) and debtors in the light of the
prospects for the business.

+« Acharge of $125m in relation to restructuring projects commenced by Zeneca Agrochemicals resulting in scme 600 job
1 losses and including $26m of asset impairments.

i »  Again of $237m before tax realised on the sale of Zeneca Specialties {$140m after tax) after allowing for the write back of
goodwill ($408m) previcusly charged to reserves, costs of separation from other AstraZeneca businesses {including
$63m asset impairments) and provisions for pension liabiiities.

*  Merger costs of $1,013m, including the $803m trigger event payment to Merck (including related costs) following the
: merger of Astra and Zeneca and asset impairments of $6m. This research and development payment was made in
exchange for the release by Merck of certain claims under a license agreement with a Merck affiliate (see Note 36).

| The 1998 exceptional charges included rationalisation costs of Astra’s US operations (as noted above), a gain on granting US Imdur
marketing rights of $163m, a loss on closure of the organophosphates intermediates business of $46m and profit on sale of fixed
assets of $17m.

. 6 Netinterest

Interest payable and similar charges

Loan interest (57) (64) 61)

. Interest on snon-term borrowings and other financing eosts @) D) 68

Joint ventures 3) 2 @

(170) (133) (21

Interest receivable and similar income from investments

Securities 70 _ 13g 108

CShorttermdeposts ... s 3 %

Joint ventures 1 2 2
166 180 202

Net interest (payable}/receivable {4) 47 81

i The discounting charge above relates to amounts owed in respect of the re-acquisition of certain distribution rights which are payable
over the next four years. All interest has been classified within ongoing operations as the management of the group’s liquidity and
i funding i carried out by the central treasury function and it is not practicable to allocate interest to the different reporting segments.
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7 Taxation

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation, as shown in the group Profit and Loss Account, was as follows:

1999

1968

1897

L UNHOH KINGOOM e NT8 870 938
{ Overseas 1,783 3,029 2,722
1,959 3,699 3.660

Taxes o profit on ordinary activities were as follows:

B L30T 318880
.. Doubletaxation refief e 168 10y (12)
Deferred taxation {58) (21) 12
: 141 194 250
L. Overseas taxes e S 845 692 588
Deferred taxation {172) (14) {22)
: 673 678 516 :
Share of taxation of joint ventures
and associates 1 214 315
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 815 1,086 1,081

The charge for taxation has been allocated between ongoing operations, operations to be discontinued and discontinued operations

| based on the effective tax rates for the group in the territories in which these operations are based.

UK and overseas taxation have been provided at current rates on the profits earned for the periods covered by the group financial
i statements. To the extent that dividends remitted from overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are expected to resuit in

additional taxes, appropriate amaounts have been provided. No taxes have been provided for unremitted earnings of group

companies overseas as these are, in the main, considered permanently employed in the businesses of these companies and, in the
i case of joint ventures and associates, the taxes would not be material. Cumulative unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries and
i related undertakings totailed approximately $9,213m at 31 December 1999. Unremitted earnings may be liable to overseas taxes

and/or UK taxation (after allowing for double taxation refief} if they were to be distributed as dividends.

Exceptional items included in tax on ordinary activities

Tax {credity/charge on exceptional items* ' (351)

" Includes deferred tax relief of $375m (1998 $7m, 1997 $niY,
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. 7 Taxation (continued)

Statement of total recognised gains and losses

In certain circumnstances, tax charges or credits on currency differences on borrowings are taken 1o reserves via the statement of
total recognised gains and losses. Tax charges on such currency translation differences amounted to $22m in 1999 (1998 $2m

i credit, 1997 $2m credit). and have been reported in the statement of total recognised gains and losses.

Tax reconciliation to UK statutory rate
The table below reconciles the United Kingdom statutory tax charge to the group’s charge on profit on ordinary activities before
: taxation.

' ¢ Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,959 3,699 3,660

Taxation charge at United Kingdom corporation tax rate
: of 30.25% for 1999 (31% for 1998, 31.5% 01 1997} e D98 M1AT 3188

Timing differences not recognised 280 (53} (26)
Exceptional items e e 288 e T T
e 8n
| Other @2n 66 35
Taxes on profit on ordinary activities 815 1,086 1,081

| Net effect of lower rates and eligible costs in other jurisdictions ~~~ (266)

: Balance sheet 1899 1998 1997

Deferred taxation asset movement

S Profitand loss account e 28008810
Other movements {34) 66 (68)

At end of year 369 173 72

S e
1

"
&
B

[
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i Deferred taxation
The amounts of deferred taxation acceunted for in the group balance sheet and the full potential amounts of deferred taxation
comprised the foilowing deferred tax liabilities and assets:

Year ended 31 Decembér 1999 Year ended 31 December 1998

Partial Not Full Partial Not Full
provision accounted provision provision  accounted provisicn
for for for for for for
deferred deferred deferred deterred deferred deferred

K O BSOS e oottt D DD 208 908
NO”UKf"‘edasset563303355 B 0288 2%
| Capitalgains rolkdover - 99 93 - 68 68
interest accruals 13 - 13 22 - 22
| Other 78 90 168 57 20 77
: 154 947 1,101 g2 828 910

| Deferred tax assets

- Itercompany nvenvorytuanslers - 36 8% - 13 73
| Merger, infegration and restructuring cherges 328 85 383 19 4 23
Environmental 36 _ 26 62 45 15 80
§F’ensi,onand. postrefirement benefts 62 &1 143 8188 L. 142
Cther Q7 354 451 182 134 316
@ - (5) (5)
523 518 1,341 255 454 709

! Deferred tax asset/{liabitity) 369 (129) 240 173 {374) (201) |

Valuation allowance - 4

72
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| 8 Dividends

1998 1989 1998 1967

i Zeneca Group PLC

- Interim _ - £0.14 £0.185 - 220 210
. Final - £0.28 £0.250 - 448 388
- £0.42 £0.385 - . 668 598
Astra AB

Dividend ‘ -~ SEK1.90  SEK1.80 - 393+ 388

AstraZeneca PLC

| Interim, paid on 25 October 1999 . $0.23 - - 408 - -
. Second inferim, tobe confimed as final, S
payable 17 April 2000 $0.47 - - 834 - -
: $0.70 - - 1,242 - -
1,242 1,061 986

= The record date for the payment of Zeneca's final dividend and Astra's dividend for the 1998 fiscal year was 8 April 1998. Former Astra stockhelders who accepted
the merger offer prior to the record date received a dividend corresponding to 28 pence per AstraZeneca share {total payment $359m). Astra steckholders whe
did not accept the merger offer prior to the record date received Astra’s proposed dividend of SEK1.90 per share,

9 Earnings per $0.25 Ordinary Share

: Net profit for the financial year before exceptional tems $r) 2730 2553 2570
© Exceptional items after tax ($m) (see Note 5) {1,587) 58 -
Net profit for the financial year (3m) 1,143 2,611 2,570
. Earnings per Ordinary Share before exceptional tems(®)  §1.54  $144  §145
{Loss)/gain per Ordinary Share on exceptional items {$) ($0.90) $0.03 -
. Earnings per Ordinary Share (§) $0.64 $1.47 $1.45
| Diluted earnings per Ordinary Share before exceptionalitems (€) ~ $1.54  $143  $144
Diluted {loss)/gain per Ordinary Share on exceptional items ($) (50.90) $0.03 -
 Diluted earnings per Ordinary Share (8) $0.64 $1.46 $1.44

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue

| forbasic earnings (millons) o ATTe 779 1777
Dilutive impact of share options outstanding (millions) 3 4 2
i Diluted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue {millions) 1,779 1.783 1,780

There are no options, warrants or rights outstanding in respect of unissued shares except for employee share option schemes. The
i number of options cuistanding and the weighted average exercise price of these opticns is shown in Note 33. The earnings figures
i used in the calculations above are unchanged for diluted earnings per Ordinary Share.

Earnings per Ordinary Share before exceptional iterms has been calculated to eliminate the impact of exceptional items on the results
i of the business. -

5
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. 10 Segment information

Classes of Business

AstraZeneca’s principal reporting segments for ongoing operations are Healthcare {including Pharrnaceuticals and Salick Health
Care), and Other (including Marlow Foods and miscellanecus operations). Continuing operations also includes the Zeneca
Agrochemicals business, which has been classified as ‘operations to be discontinued’. Each of these segments is managed andg
monitored separately and represent strategic businesses that offer different products and serve different markets. A description of
the principal activities of each of the businesses is given in the Operational Review on pages 11 to 31. Discontinued operations

. comprise the former Zeneca Specialties business, with the exception of Marlow Foods which is now included in ‘Other trading’

i within continuing operations.
H Turnover

1999 Jo98

i Healthcare 15,042

Other trading

Ongoing operations 15,134 11.318

. Operstions to be discontinved - Agrochemicals  Exermal . 2687 2790
Intra-Group 3 -

; 2,660 2,790

Continuing operations 17,794 14,108

Discontinued operations — Specialties External 654 1,294

. ' Intra-Group 3 8 13

; 657 1,302 1372

Intra-Group eliminations (6) (8) (13)

Share of joint ventures' turnover 208 1,080 1,408

Group turnover and share of joint ventures' turnover 18,653 16,482 14,574

The group’s policy is to transfer products internally at external market prices.

Operating profit/{ioss) Profit/{loss} before
after exceptionals interest and taxation

1998 1998 1997 1999 1998 1997

© Profit/{loss) arising in

. Other trading (25) 7 e7) (25) (10 @7)
Ongoing operations e 25982887 28380 1520 2654 . .23%0
COperations to be discontinued - Agrochemicals 142 359 365 142 359 365
Continuing OPErations | . 2000 2,998 2718 1662 L8018 LLE2TIS
Discontinued operations — Specialties 71 146 142 308 100 142
. 2,746 3,142 2,857 1,970 3,113 2,857
Share of operating {loss)/profit of joint ventures

i and associales {7) 539 722
: 1,963 3,652 3,579

: Corporate overheads have been atlocated to each business segment on a consistent basis over the periods presented. The effect of

= these allocations is not material.
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L Sement nfornaion (continued)
: Operating profit/loss) is stated after Year 2000 and EMU compliance costs as fallows:

1999 1998 1997

Cther trading 3 9 3

Ongoing operations 48 53 12

{ Operations to be discontinued — Agrochemicals 7 2% 9

Discontinued operations — Specialties - 11 3

55 90 24

Net assets/(liabilities) Total assets
1999 1998 1997 1999 1998 1997

Other trading {108) 88 23 564
Operations to be discontinued — Agrochemicals 1,860 2,027 1,387 2,879
Continuing operations - 9,248 9,090 7,043 15,846 13,811 10,433

2,234

Discontinued operations - Specialties {164) 656 893 19 1,002 119
PSubdotal . 2084 0748 7736 15865 14813 11852

NEGroU SIIINANONS e o d1OBL (1D 23
Non-operafingassets’ . 4144 1074 1,728 3939 3520 4346
Investments in joint ventures and associates 114 162 141 114 162 141 ’
A 10,342 10,982 9,606 19,816 18,478 16,016

i~ Non-operating assets include short-term investments and cashk, short-term borrowings, loans, and debtors and creditors not attributable to individuat business segments.

Depreciation, amortisation
Capital expenditure** and impairment
1998 1997 1909 1998

1997

Cther trading
 Ongoingoperations 288 1097 1048

Operations to be discontinued - Agrochemicals 194 333 232
| Continuing operations . 3176 1430 1260 1,196 765 628

. Discontinued operations - Specialties 55 96 95 91 56 53
' 3,239 1,526 1,375 1,287 821 676

~ Capital expenditure includes expenditure on intangible assets. Pharmaceuticals capital expenditure in 1992 included the $967m first option payment
to Merck and $720m in respect of the re-acquisition of marketing rights.
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{ 10 Segment information {continued)

Geographic areas

The tables below show information by geographic area and, for turnover and tangible fixed assets, material countries. The figures
for each area show the turnover, operating prefit and profit on ordinary activities before interest and taxation made by companies
located in that area/country, together with net operating assets and tangible fixed assets owned by the same companies; export
sales and the retated profit are included in the areas from which those sales were made.

Turnover

i United Kingdom :
LSOV 2. .2 JUSUU FL LA SN £t A B
Intra-Group : 1,905 "1,553 1,385

3,020 2,669 2,536

Continental Europe
849 861 B14

CNethedends .z s 22
Spain 441 273 207
Intra-Group 1,203 862 782

5,735 4,806 4,472

The Americas

: Canada 419 367 342
L L 7,344 4,331 2,463

Intra-Group 201 182 142

i Asia, Africa & Australasia
i Japan 715 567 677
| Others e ... 115 577 887

' Intra-Group 120 74 69
1,550 1,218 4,333

Ongoing operations . e OTOOB e 0089 11,580

Operations to be discontinued - Agrochemicals ' 3,971 4,117 3,753
Continuing operations 22,534 18,106 15,333

Discontinued operations — Specialties 784 1,663 1,634
| Intra-Group eliminations 4879 (4257  (3.801)
: 18,845 15,402 13,166

" As disclosed above, sales in the United States do not inglude the group’s share of sales of Astra Merck Inc., which amounted to $857m for the first six months of 1998 and
i $1,169m for 1997. :

Export sales from the UK tctalled $3,587m for the year ended 31 December 1999 (1998 $3,388m, 1997 $3,119m).
Turnover of operations to be discontinued is primarily in the UK $1,408m (1998 $1,401m, 1997 $1,269m) and the Americas
© $1,381m {1998 $1,593m, 1997 $1,366m). '
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10 Segment information (continued)

QOperating profit Profit after exceptional items
after exceptional iterns before interest and taxation
1999 199 1997 9 1998 1997

i Profit from

. Continental Europe 4,572 11460 968 1515 1163 948

- The Americas a78 790 436 {322) 1,344 1,136
Asia, Africa & Ausiralasia 40 135 146 39 133 155

. Ongoingoperations .25 2637 280 150 3188 806
Operations te be discontinued - Agrochemicals 142 359 365 144 360 367

. Continuing operations 2675 2095 2715 1654 3548 3434

Discontinued operations - Specialties 7t 146 142 309 104 145

2,746 3,142 2,857 1,863 3,652 3,579

Operating profit of operations to be discontinued is primarity in the UK $32m (1998 $27m, 1997 $72m} and Continental Europe
$75m (1998 $93m, 1997 $64m).

Net operating assets

. Asia, Africa & Australasia 747 2,791 1,761

ONgoINg OREIANiONS s 03887083 .56
Operaticns to be discontinued - Agrochemicals 1,860 2,027 1,387
. Continuing operations , . 9,248 9,090 7,043

Discontinueg operations — Specialties {164) 656 693

9,084 9,746 7,736

Net operating assets of operations to be discontinued are primarily in the UK $1,250m (1998 $1,364m, 1997 $893m) and the
Ametricas $514m (1998 $522m, 1997 $275m).

Tangible fixed assets
1999 1998 1997

[

operations

ngoi 4735 806 ..53981

1,246 1,336 1.043

Discontinued operations - Specialties - 539 528

5,981 6,281 5,552

Tangible fixed assets of operations to be discontinued are primarily in the UK $741m (1988 $812m, 1997 $821m) and the United
| States $321m (1998 $360m, 1997 $361m).

it

ASTRAZENECA - ANNUAL REPORT AND FORM 20-F 1999 77




Financial Statements
Notes relating to the Financial Statements

. 10 Segment information (continued)

- Geographic markets

 Tumover in each geographic market in which customers located

4050 3,688
5,068 3,142
1,312 1,469

2,790 2.605

The Americas

Asia, Africa & Australasia

i Operations to be discontinued ~ Agrochemicals

i Discontinued operations - Specialties 654 1,294 1,359
: 18,445 15,402 13,166

Turnover by customer location of operations to be discontinued is primarily to the Americas $1,275m (1998 $1,483m, 1997
! $1,319m) and Continentat Europe $846m (1998 $809m, 1997 $472m).

Employees

. Average number of people employed by the group in

Asia, Africa & Australasia 5,400 6,000 5,300

Operations to be discontinued - Agrochemicals 8,100 _ 8,000 7,600
| Discontinued operations - Specialties 2,700 5,500 5,800

58,000 58,300 53,800

The number of employees in North America was affected by the agreement with Merck. Before 1 July 1888, employees of Astra Merck (1898 2,332, 1597 2,268) have not
been ncluded above, as the joint venture was not consclidated. From 1 July 1998 cnwards, fellowing the restruciuring, all employees of the new subsidiary, AstraZeneca,
L.P., have been included in the AstraZeneca Group.

The number of peopie empioyed by the group at the end of 1999 was 55,200 (1998 60,900, 1997 53,900) of which 47,000 related
{ to ongaing operations.
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- 11 Tangible fixed assets

i Impairment

i The net book value of land and buildings COMPSE | oottt
| Short leases ' 6 16
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Capital

expenditure
and assets in Total
Land and Plant and course of tangible
buildings equipment  construction assets

; Cost )
. At beginning of year e 2848 6752 927 10527 .

. Capital expenditure 58 347 1071 1,476

Depreciation

S AN ONGr MOVBMONYS e A2

144 - 204

| Atend of year 852 3,362 - 4,214
| Net book value at 31 December 1999 1,943 2,999 1,039 5,984
Net book value at 31 December 1998 : 2,033 3,321 927 6,281

Capital expenditure in the year of $1,476m {1998 $1,415m) did net include any capitalised finance ieases (1998 $2m); cash
. expenditure on tangible fixed assets was $1,490m (1998 $1,392m). Land and buildings includes non-depreciated land which cost
i $206m {1998 $210m).

The net book value of the tangible fixed assets of the group at 31 December 1999 included capitalised finance ieases of $6m, ;
comprising cost of $14m and accumulated depreciation thereon of $8m. In respect of capitalised leases, the depreciation charge for !
the year was $2m and finance charges were $1m. j

1999 1098

1,943 2,033
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i 12 Goodwill and intangible assets

Intangible
Goodwill assets Total

: Cost
 Exchengeadustments T - T - (135)

Disposals and other movements ' - (45) {45)
Al end of year 1,184 3,223 4,407

Depreciation
| Atbeginningofyear 5352 388

Exchange adjustments . (8 @) (15)

. Disposals and other movements o - L )

ORI FOr Yl e e B8 290 BB
14

: impairment 8 6
At end of year a9 572 671
Net book value at 31 December 1999 1,085 2,651 3,736
Net book value at 31 December 1998 1.216 1,224 2,440

13 Fixed asset investments

Joint Other investments
ventures Associates Listed Unlisted Total

Cost
| Atbeginingofyear A2 272 W19 365

L Additions

Disposals and other movements, including exchange (34) 1 21) (104) {158)

. At end of year 138 3 51 20 212

Share of post-acquisition reserves

At beginning of year (15} 3 - - (12}
 Retainedloss L T - SO N 1. I

Exchange 1 - - - 1
At end of year (30) 3 - - 27)
Net book value at 31 December 1999 108 6 51 20 185
Net book value at 31 December 1998 ) 157 5 72 119 353

The market value of the listed investments at 31 December 1999 was $111m (1998 $63m).
i The fair values of the unlisted investments are not materially different from their carrying values.

Share of joint ventures’ assets and liabilities

1999 1998

| Gross liabiiities : {110} ©9) |

108 157

! Information on principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of the group is given on pages 118 and 119. -
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{ 14 Stocks

1999 1998

; Raw materials and consumables 581 509
| Stocksin process S G e R 699 .. .T08
Finished goods and goods for resale 876 812

2,156 2,029

15 Debtors

1999 1998

Amounts due within one year
Less: Amounts provided for doubtiul debts {118) (139) :
. 2,908 2,981

O LSO URLL. SO -
: Prepayments and accrued income* 225 327

3,830 3,628

Amounts due after more than one year
EDeferredtaxaﬁor_l______ SO R . . . o Lws e

Prepayments and accrued income™ 94 183

640 329

Securitised rent receivables - 5
. Debtors , 4,470 3,963

Figures include prepaid pension costs (Note 32).

. Provisions for doubtful debts

1999 1998 1997

: Balance at beginning of year 139 127 112
Profit and loss account charge o 7 S . 39 53

Amounts utilised and other movements (81) (27) (38)
Balance at end of year 118 132 127
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i 16 Short-term investments

: At 31 December

1999 1998

ez 1898
17 17

Other debt securities

i Investment securities

| Fixed deposits

559 1.412
2,300 1,290

2,859 2,702

The group’s insurance subsidiaries hold cash and short-term investments totalling $234m (1998 $214m), of which $150m
i (1998 $103m) is required to meet insurance solvency requirements and which, as a result, is not readily avaiiable for the general

purposes of the group: In addition, some $453m of short term investments shown above are committed as security against deferred
payments due under a contractual obligation of the group (see Note 36). '

17 Short-term borrowings

: At 31 December

Bank borrowings

Secured by floating charge

Unsecured

3B B

299 224

343 261

Other borrowings (unsecured)

344 347
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18 Other creditors

1993 1998

Amounts due within one year
Corporate taxation 640 444
Value added and payroll taxes and social securty .- .75

B R 1 784

Dividends to Shareholders ] 834 841

Amounts due after more than one year

| Otnercreditors a0 22

Grants not yet credited to income 2 3
462 25

Included in other creditors are amounts totaling $171m (1988 $117m) to meet insurance obligations of the group's insurance
subsidiaries. Also included in other creditors are amounts due within one year in connection with the group's exceptional charges

as detailed in Note 5, The amounts comprise $396m in respsct of synergy and integration costs, $94m trigger event payment to
Merck, $15m in respect of the Salick Health Care rationalisation, $81m in respect of the Agrochemicals restructuring programmes and
$170m in respect of the Speciaities divestment and other minar restructurings. The comparative balance included $53m in respect

- of minor restructurings.

19 Loans

Repayrment
Dates 1999 1998

i Secured loans

Secured by fixed chargs ) 2006/2007 19 26
Secured by fioating charge 2003/2010 28 -
Total secured 47 26

Unsecured loans
: 7% Guaranteed debentures 2023 295 295
. Others 2000/2013 153 193

Total unsecured 726 765

80

Loans due after more than one year 739 761

i Less: current instalments of loans (34)

In the above tabile loans are shown after taking account of associated cross-currency swaps (see Note 20).

Loans from banks included in the table above amounted to $169m (1998 $178m) of which $42m (1998 $9m) was secured.

3

&
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i 20 Financial instruments

A discussion of the group’s objective, policy and strategy in respect of risk management and the use of financial instruments is
included in the financial review on pages 45 to 47.The following disclosures exclude all short-term debtors and creditors.

Interest rate risks of financial assets and liabilities
i The interest rate profile, after taking account of interest and currency swaps, of the financial assets and liabilities of the group as at
! 31 December 1999 was:

Financial Weighted  Weighted
liabilities average average
cn which fixed  period for
Floating Fixed no interest interest  which rate

fixed

rate

; Financial liabilities

CUsdoler 2 s06 453 1131 68 15
: 242 76 _ 318 4.4 5
Total 448 671 453 1,672

Financial assets

| US dollar 2,502 - - 2,502

Other 608 - - 608

| Total 3,288 - - 3,288

The floating rate financial liabilities comprise bank borrowings bearing interest at rates fixed by reference to local interbank rates.

Financiat liabilities on which no interest is paid comprise deferred payments due relating te the re-acquisition of certain marketing
i rights,

The financial assets principally comprise cash on avernight deposit and shert term investments with an average maturity of 44 days.
These include deposits where the interest rate is fixed until maturity but, as the original maturity is less than one year, they are
classified as floating rate financial instruments, The benchmark rates for financial assets are the LIBID rate for euro and US dollar
liquidity balances and the average Federal Funds effective rate for US dallar overnight balances. In addition to the amounts above,
financial assets include $71m of other fixed asset investmets on which no interest is received.

i Currency exposures

One hundred per cent of the group’s transactional currency exposures on working capital balances, which typically extend for up to
three months, are hedged using forward foreign exchange contracts. As a result, as at 31 December 1999, there were no material
monetary assets or liabilities in currencies other than the functional currencies of the group companies concerned, having taken into
account the effect of forward exchange currency contracts that have been utilised to match foreign currency exposures.

Additionally approximately 50% of forecast future foreign currency transaction exposures extending for twelve months is selectively
hedged. Currency exposures are aggregated inta baskets representing the principal currency exposures (GBF, SEK, euro and yen)

and then hedged using a mixture of purchased currency options and forward fareign exchange contracts. As at 31 December 1999
the group held forward and option contracts to hedge the following forecast foreign currency transaction exposures.
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Analysis by vear of repayment
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1999
Hedged

. SEK payables 635

. Euroreceivables L o 704

Yen receivables ) 41

| Maturity of financial liabilities
i The maturity profile of the group’s finarcial liabilities, other than short-term creditors such as trade creditors and accruals,
i at 31 December 1999 was as fallows:

1999 1998

Loans Other Total

L2 L

Fromthrestotwoyears Y827 4580 2 %2
From two to one years 95 116 211 35 2 37

Due after more than one year 739 351 1,080 761 18 779
! Due within one year 34 448 482 3¢ 349 379
! Total 773 799 1,572 791 367 1,158

Cther financial liabilities comprise deferred payments to re-acquire certain maturity rights, short-term borrowings and finance leases.

! Borrowing facilities

The group has various borrowing facilities available to it, the majority of which offer a currency option of US dollars, euros or sterling.
Unused short-term credit facilities (both committed and uncommitted) totalled approximately $2bn at 31 Decemiber 1999. Included
in this were undrawn committed facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met at that date were as follows:

1999 1998

Expiring in more 1than one year but net more than two years ] 375 -
Expiring in more than two years .. 150 1,325
- Total ) . 525 1,325

amount
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. 20 Financial instruments (continued)

! Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

i Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying values and fair vaiues of all the group’s financial assets and financial liabifities
i as at 31 December 1999 and 1998.

1999 1999 1998 1998
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value valug value

{ Primary financial instruments

| Short-termborrowings o < B4 @A (347)
O8I e ATSRY  ATT8) . (806)  (854)
| Cash ' 429 420 710 710
Fixed asset investments 71 131 191 182

Derivative financial instruments held to manage
i the interest rate and currency profile

Cross-currency swaps 19 14 15 7

Derivative financial instruments held or issued
to hedge the currency exposure on existing transactions

- Forward foreign exchange contracts o 20 20 U

! Forward currency option contracts 3 - 2 -

Derivative financial instruments held or issued to hedge
i the currency exposure on expected future sales

| Forward foreign exchange contracts ST NN L) SO

Foreign currency option contracts 32 35 46 42

In addition to the primary financial instruments above, the group has financiat liabilities of $453m comprising deferred payments due,
: totalling $513m before discount.

| The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of financial instruments are as follows:

a. Short-term investments - the fair value of listed investments is based on year end quoted market prices. For unlisted

b. Fixed asset investments {excluding equity investments in joint ventures and associates) - the fair vaiue of listed investments

investments carrying values approximate fair value.

is based on year end quoted market prices, For unlisted investments carrying values approximate fair value.

¢. Loans - the fair value of publicly traded debt is based on year end quoted market prices; the fair value of floating rate debt

is nominal value, as mark to market differences would be minimal given frequency of resets; the fair vatue of remaining debt
is estimated using appropriate zero coupon valuation techniques based on rates current at year end.

d. Forward foreign exchange contracts — the group has forward foreign exchange contracts to sell currency for the purpose of

hedging non-dollar commaercial transaction exposures which existed at the date of the balance sheet and to hedge
anticipated, but not firmly committed, non-dollar commercial fransactions for 1999. The majority of the contracts for
existing transactions had a maturity of six months cr less from year end. The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is estimated using the spot rates of exchange existing at year end and accruing any interest differential.

e. Forward currency option contracis — the group has forward currency option contracts to hedge anticipated, but not firmly

committed, non-dollar commercial transactions for 1999. The fair value of option contracts is estimated using Black-
Scholes valuation techniques as adapted by Garman Kohlhagen.

f.  interest rate and cross-currency swaps — AstraZeneca uses interest rate and cross-currency swaps to hedge the group's

exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange movements on borrowings in accordance with a formal risk
management strategy. The fair value is estimated using appropriate zero coupon valuation techniques based on rates
current at year end. ' ’
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. 20 Financial instruments (continued)

i The above financial instruments are subject to credit and market risk. AstraZeneca contains credit risk through the use of
counterparty and product specific credit limits and by ongoing review procedures. All financial instruments are transacted with
commercial banks and in line with standard market practice are not backed with cash collateral. The notional principal values of off
balance sheet financial instruments do not represent amounts exchanged by the parties and are not a measure of the credit risk to
the Group of these instruments. The credit risk of these instruments is limited to the positive fair values of such contracts.

Market risk is the sensitivity of the value of financial instruments to changes in related currency and interest rates. The group is not
exposed to material market risk because gains and losses on the derivative financial instruments are largely offset by gains and
! losses on the underlying assets, liabilities and transactions subject to hedge.

Hedges :

The group's policy is to hedge 100% of transactional currency exposures and 50% of forecast future transaction exposures using
forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign currency option contracts. It also uses cross-currency and intergst rate swaps to
manage its borrowings profile.

Gains and losses on instruments used for hedging are not recognised until the exposure that is being hedged is itself recognised.
i Unrecognised gaing and losses on instruments used for hedging, and the movements therein, are as follows:
: Total Net

Gai
| Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges at 1 January 1980 ot (4 (18)
Gains and losses arising in previous years that were recognised in 1999 N - €) (€
Gains and losses arising in previcus years that were not recognised in 199¢ - (3)] (8
Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges at 31 December 1999 03 B @
Gains and losses expected to be recognised in 2000 . e 3o ) I 1)
Gains and losses expected to be recognised in 2001 or later - (8) (5}

21 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Environmental

Integration Employee and other

and synergies benefits provisions
Profit and loss account - 115 42 157
Net amounts paid or becoming current e B = en (125) (252}
Other movements, including exchange - 13 (29) {16}
. A131 December 1998 e e T A0 1045
| Proftandiossaccount e B19 128182 1079 ,
Net amounts paid or becoming current (703} {98) (71) 872)
CAcquistions o mn @08
Other movements, inciuding exchange (2 (35) 53 16

| At 31 December 1999 114 780 359 1,253

The carried forward integration and synergies provision, as at 31 December 1999, comprises obligations in respect of integrating
the pharmaceuticals businesses of Astra and Zeneca, the majority of which is expected to be spent in 2001, Employee benefit
provisions comprise pension, post retirement and other employee benefit provisions. These will crystallise, in the main, over the
estimated working lives of the employees concerned. The environmental provisions are principally in respect of sites in the US,
further details of which are given in Note 36. Other provisions include $144m in respect of deferred taxation.

' No provision has been released or applied for any purpose other than that for which it was established. s
%
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P22 Reconciliation of movements in Shareholders’ funds
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1999

1998

1997

Sharehaolders’ funds at beginning of year

ot

10,929

9,552

9,022

© Net profit for the financiatyear

(1,242)

e

Laen

(1,061}

2270
{986)

Dividends

. Repurchase of AstraZeneca PLC Osdinary Shares

' Astra AB minority interest buy out

(99)

1.55C

1,584

| Issues of AstraZeneca PLC Ordiary Shares

..1183)

i Exchange adjustments on net assets

. Transtation differences on foreign currency borrowings

Movement in unrealised holding gains and losses

: on short-term investments — e

Other movements

(740)

]

5. B
410

{(178)
RO

2
(4

26

819

(766)
&

Net (reduction in)/addition te Shareholders’ funds

{627)

1,377

530

10,302

10,929

9,552

Shareholders’ funds at end of year

23 Reserves

Share Capital
premium redemption
account reserve

Merger
reserve

Joint
Other ventures and
reserves associates

Profit
and loss
account

| Merger reserve adjustment L8

(5381
L2078

23

Total

5,943

49

Accounting policy atignment - -~

. At 31 December 1996 15 -

DPIOMIBMANGA IOT YERY e
Sharepremiums 2B

Exchange adjustments:

DT
1 .

(18 |

8,425
1,584

Goodwill

Net assets

Fareign currency borrowings tax effect

41

41 2

| Movement in unrealised holding gains and losses

i Other movements

Net movements 25 -

88

(273) 7
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. 23 Reserves (continued)
: Share Capital Jaint Profit
premium redemption Merger Other ventures and  and loss
ount

. At31Decembert997 40 - . S8 e (15 8249 8954

Profit retained for year (3) 1,553 1,550
. Share premiums R M , (@ 10

Exchange adjustments:

O OO O e e e e

e {43) ... S
LB (84 (178)

Neta

On fereign currency borrowings {7) {7}
Fareign currency borfow;'ngs tax effect 2 2

{43) B (146) {183)

. Movement in unrealised holding gains and losses e e 2,

! Other movements (4 (4

Net movements 14 1,375

10329
o9

| At31December 1998 o BA

Redenomination of share capital e BT e BT
Astra AB minority interest buyout e L (142) . e e

Exchange adjustments:
On foreign currency borrowings 132 132 L
Foreign currency borrowings tax efiect (22 22)

80 1 (711)__ (630)

Movernent in unrealised holding gains AN IOSSES et e e
Other movements 2} (2)
Net movements 148 1 (142) 847 (15 (1,110) @y
At 31 December 1999 202 1 441 703 (27) 8,538 9,858

The movement in other reserves in 1997 relates to goodwill on acquisitions and purchase of minority interest written off against
reserves prior to the adoption of FRS 10 on 1 January 1998. The movements in the current year relate o the realisation of
goodwill, principally on the disposal of Zeneca Specialties and the redenomination of share capital.

The cumulative amourt of goodwill resulting from acquisitions, net of disposals, prior to the adoption of FRS 10, amounted to
| $1,5637m (1998 $2,027m, 1997 $1,884m), using 1999 year end rates of exchange.

e

t
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i 23 Reserves (continued)

There are no significant statutory or contractual restrictions on the distribution of current profits of subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associates; undistributed profits of prior years are, in the main, permanently employed in the businesses of these companies.
The undistributed income of AstraZeneca companies overseas may be liable to overseas taxes and/or Unitegd Kingdom taxation
(after allowing for double taxation relief) if they were to be distributed as dividends (see Note 7).

The Company’s Articles of Association state that borrowings, after deducting cash and short-term investments, must not
exceed an amount egual to three times Shareholders’ equity after adding back goodwill gliminated against Shareholders’ equity
on retained acquisitions and the amount set aside for deferred taxation. Any borrowings, cash or short-term investments heid
by partly owned subsidiaries are exctuded from the calculation in so far as they are attributable to minorities.

24 Net cash inflow from trading operations

. Operating profit before exceptional tems . .808 3051 2857
Depreciaticn and amortisation _ 1,069 821 676
DEBMOIS INCIOBSe (448 479) (821
 Crediorsinrease .G85 818 309
Other non-cash movernents (59) (132) (16)

4,699 3,817 3,463

S
5

25 Cash flows related to exceptional items

The exceptional cash outflow for the year includes $28m attributable to rationalising Astra's operations in the US, $809m merger
costs (including $713m for the Merck trigger event payment}, $303m in respect of synergy and integration costs {including :
manpower related costs of $150m), $338m in respect of the Specialties disposal and $8m in respect of other restructuring and
rationalisation projects.

The 1998 cash inflow included receipts in respect of the granting of Imdur marketing rights of $183m net of payments relating

to expenditure charged to exceptional provisions raised in prior years for business rationalisation and restructuring (including
severance and other employee costs). It also includes $7m of expenditure relating to the closure of the organophosphate
intermediates business and $72m in respect of the rationalisation of Astra’s US operations. Included within the $155m cash inflow
from the disposal of fixed assets is $87m relating to sale of fixed assets accounted for as an exceptional item.

The 1997 cash outflow is in respect of exceptional provisions raised in prior years.
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. 26 Acquisitions

There were no significant acquisitions in 1998. The principal acquisitions during 1898 were the purchase of Ishihara Sangyc Kaisha
Ltd's worldwide chlorothalonil business on 4 February 1988, the remaining 50% of the Astra Merck partnership on 30 June 1998,
and the pharmaceuticals business of Crica Ltd on 4 September 1998. All these acquisitions have been accounted for by the
acquisition method of accounting.

1999 1998 1697
Total Total Total
ir value i

. Creditors due after more thanoneyear By
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (79) -

Minority interest 4} - -

: Fair value of net assets acqui

Goodwill acguired 7

. Consideration for subsidiaries and operations acquired 02563 83

Purchases of minority interest 20 7 241

: i 29 2,570 324
Less:

. Equity actounted camying value of existing interest s 88T s
Cash included in undertaking acquired e AW BB ::

Deferred consideration 15} (17) -

Net cash consideration 23 2,013 321

Assets and liabilities are adjusted to their fair values based on external valuations and internal assessments. There were no
significant differences between bocok and fair values in respect of the acquisitions made in the year.

B e e e e
e
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i 27 Disposals

1999
Discontinued
Specialties

Conti

1999
nuing
GCther

1998

Total

Current assets
| Creditors due within one year

Creditors due after more than one year and provisions

646
~ (374)
(18}

DORiXed BSSENS OB

..567
651

@78
{18)

. Book value of net assets disposed _

567

WBIT ]

Disposal costs

406

... Goodwill previously charged to reserves written back on disposal 406

Profit on disposals

237

526

1A
LA

237

{ Less

22

- B

49)

12,050

o

{49)

Cash consideration

1,956

25

1,981

! The sale consideration received is principally in relation to the sale of the group's Specialties business, which was completed on

i separately as 'discontinued operations’.

Other disposals represent the dispasal of the dialysis business of Salick Health Care.

! respect of exceptional items and $41m in respect of fixed capital expenditure.

28 Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds

(Decrease)increase in Ccash

1999

i Cash outflow from decrease in loans, shon-term
; borrowings and leases

Cash outflow/{inftow) from increase/({decrease)

1

254

280) ...

1998

B8]

974}

30 June 1999. Zeneca Specialties results have been consoiidated for the peried until disposal (to 30 June 1999) but reported

© Prior 1o its disposal, the Specialties business contributed $44m to operating cash flows before exceptional items, absorbed $29m in

1997

29

252

192

i in short-term investments

Change in net funds resulting from cash flows

 De

released

sals/cash acquired on ac:

[ Othernon-cashchanges

! Exchange movements

(92)

(63)

(349)

o43) 473

©2)

- Movementinnettunds

© Net funds at 1 Jenuary

2,254

I B

2,871

B

2,839

a2

© Net funds at 31 December

2,169

2,254

2,871
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29 Analysis of net funds

At 1 Jan Cash Acquisitions® Other Exchange At 31 Dec
flow disposals  non-cash emenis 1999

BT T B 1B T39)

{ Finance leases

i Total ioans and lease finance

254 .. e T T T 2859

Short-term investrients L2584
A9 8 429

Short-term borrowings, excluding overdrafts

(12 - - (109 2,944
(5} 12 - {(92) 2,169

. Net funds

Financing item included in cash movements above
: Net purchase of shares L .- L PSP S,

Net cash inflow before management of
; liquid resources and financing 156

" Excluding cash and overdrafts

30 Financing

1999 1998 1997

Issue of shares by subsidiaries to minority interests 3 - -

tssues of shares 29 (161) 12 25

Repayment of lease finance 29 &) (9) 13

| Net decrease in short-lerm borrowings 29 (14) (98] 22
f {15) (208) (16)
Net cash outflow from financing (182) (205) 4

The only major non-cash financing translation was the issue of shares in connection with the merger, as described in Note 40.

i 31 Merger accounting

The financial statements have been prepared using the merger method of accounting in relation to the merger of Zeneca and Astra.
i which the merger occurred. Their assets and liabilities are combined at the amounts at which they were previously recarded, after

i adjusting to achieve consistency of accounting policies. Profit and loss account, balance sheet and cash flow comparatives are

i restated on the combined basis.

The merger became effective on 6 April 1898, The company issued a tatal of 825,932,791 ordinary shares with a nominal value of

$208m to Astra shareholders under the terms of the merger agreement between Zeneca and Astra. In addition, AstraZeneca has
provided $142m in connection with the purchase of the remaining outstanding Astra shares.
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i Issues of AstraZeneca PLC Ordinary Shares 19 12 23,
. Repurchase of AstraZeneca PLC Ordinary Shares o (183 ==

Under merger accounting, the resuits and cash flows of Zeneca and Astra are combined from the beginning of the financial peried in
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i 31 Merger accounting (continued)
© Set out below are:

{a) The nature of the accounting adjustments made to align Astra's accounting policies with those of Zeneca.

(b) Analyses of the principal components of the current and prior year profit and loss accounts and statements of recegnised

gains and {osses inte pre and post-merger amounts including analyses of the pre-merger amounts between Astra and
Zeneca.

{c) The net assets of Astra and Zeneca at 31 March 1988, being the nearest practical date to the actual date of the merger.

Accounting adjustments to align Astra's accounting policies with those of Zeneca and in accordance with UK GAAP

Astra Merck

i The Group's interest in Astra Merck was recorded in the translated historicad financial statements of Astra, in accordance with
the proportional method, for the periods until 30 June 1988, This has been restated to the gross equity method required under
UK GAAP. This adjustment has no impact on profit after taxation or net assets.

! Consolidation bases

Astra’s foreign subsidiaries’ financial statements were translated using the temporal method. According to Astra's policy, non-
monetary assets and shareholders’ equity were translated to Swedish kronor at the exchange rate in effect &t the time of
acquisition or year end respectively. Under the closing rate method applied by Zeneca, in accordance with UK GAAP, all balance
sheet items of overseas subsidiaries were translated using the exchange rate at the balance sheet date and all profit and loss
account items were translated using the average exchange rate for the period. Resulting differences have been recorded in the

i balance sheet.

. Goodwill
tinder International Accounting Standards, goodwill arising from business acquisitions was capitalised by Astra and amortised

over the estimated useful life. Goodwill arising from business acquisitions prior to 1998 is eliminated directly against reserves by

Zeneca, as allowed under UK GAAP.

Restructuring costs
Certain costs incurred in connection with the Astra Merck restructuring recorded as liabilities on acquisition by Astra in 1998 have
been charged as operating costs to comply with UK GAAF.

. Deferred taxation

Deferred taxes recorded under the full liability method under Astra's accounting policy {in accordance with International Accounting
Standards) have been restated to the partial liability method required under UK GAAF. Under the full liability methed used, deferred
| taxes are calculated on the difference betwesen the reported value and the tax value of all assets and liabilities using the respective

country’s enacted tax rate. Under the partial liability method, deferred taxes on temporary differences are recorded only to the extent

that the effect is expected to be realised in the foreseeable future, normally no mere than three to five years.

Short-term investments

Under International Accounting Standards Astra reflected unrealised losses on short-term investments in the profit and loss account
and unrealised gains are not recorded. In accordance with UK GAAP unrealised gains and losses on short-term investments are
refiected in the balance sheet.

94
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. 31 Merger accounting (continued)

i Group Profit and Loss Account :

; 1999
9 menths :

ended
3 months ended 31 March 1999 31 De¢ 1999 Total
IAS/UK
: GAAP Astra
¢ For the year ended 31 December 1999 Astra  adjusiment UK GAAP* Zeneca"

L TUINOVEE o 2348 Z 3452811 18789 18,445

. Operating profit before exceptionalitems 546 7 ....563 L.407 2938 3908

! Share of operating profit/(loss) of ‘
i joint ventures and associates - B ) 2 en o

| Profits less losses on sale or closure of operations e T LT 287 237

) 1,013)
i Net interest 8 13 21 (17 (8} {4)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 554 30 584 410 965 1959
i Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 385 28 413 281 450 1,144

CMEIGET COSIS == 01

1998 -

1AS/UK
GAAP Astra
For the year ended 31 December 1998 Astra  adjustment UK GAAP* Zeneca® AstraZeneca

| Operating profit o119 (598) L1819 3142

Operating profit before exceptional tems . 1828 (596) 1232 1819 8051

_Exceptional ems e 3L T B T 8T

Share of operating profit/(loss) of joint vertures and associates 5065868538

Profits less logses on sale or closure of operations e A3B) L 148)
. Net interest 151 (45) 106 (59) 47
: Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2,070 (105) 1,965 1,734 3,699

. Taxation {584) 46 (538) (548) (1,086}

¢ Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 1,486 (59) 1,427 1,186 2,613

Al Astra UK GAAP amounts relate to continuing operations. Of the Zeneca amounts, $296m (1998 $1,302m) of turnover and $31m (1898 $146m) of operating profit relate
to discontinued operations .
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i 31 Merger accounting {continued)

i Profit for the period
. .. .Astatodateof merger

.. Zenecatodate of merger

AstraZeneca from date of merger

. .. B
2B

449

1,427,

Exchange and other adjustments
Zeneca to date of merger, (30) 57
AstraZeneca from date of merger {433} -
! Total recognised gains and losses 513 2,430
Analysis of Net Assets IAS/UK
GAAP Astra
As at 31 March 1999 Astra  adjustment UK GAAP Zeneca AsiraZeneca

P ASSBIS e 0IAB e 30 1088 80094 9,382
Current assets 5,148 1 5,149 4,687 9,836
Total assets 10,091 46 10,137 9,081 18,218
Creditors due withinone year - @0 87e) @418 @322 5737
Creditors due after more than one year @479 - @rs) (778 (1.258)
Provisions for liabilities and charges {628) 239 (389) (629) (1,018}
. Netassets 6,049 (91) 6,858 4,362 11,210
Capital and reserves

| Sharcholders’funds —equityinterests 6949 (O1) 6858 4299 11157
Minority equity interests - - - 53 53
Shareholders’ fund and minority interests 6,949 {91) 6,858 4,352 11,210

32 Post-retirement benefits

! Pensions

The Company, and most of its subsidiaries, operate or participate in retirement plans which cover the majority of employees
(including Directors) in the group. These plans are either defined contribution, where the level of company contribution is fixed at

a set level or percentage of employea's pay, or defined benefit, where benefits are based on employees’ years of service and final
pensionable pay. Former Zeneca plans are, generally, funded plans which are effected through separate trustee-administered funds.
The Swedish plan for salaried employees is administered by Pritjianst AB, a joint company for Swedish industry, and benefit levels
and actuarial assumptions are established by Forsakringsbolaget SPP. The pension cost for the group’s main defined benefit plans
is estaplished in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries based on valuations undertaken on varying dates.
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. 32 Post-retirement benefits (continued)

With regard 1o the group's main UK defined benefit fund, the latest actuarial valuation was carried out at 31 March 1997 and the
pensicn cost assessed using the projected unit credit method. The significant assumptions used in this valuation were that, against a
background of long-term UK price inflation averaging 4% pa, investment returns would average 8.4% pa, salary increases 8% pa, and
pension increases 3.75% pa. The asset valuation model assumes long-term dividend growth in UK and overseas equities of 1% pa
and 2.5% pa respectively above the rate of inflation. The valuation took account of the consequences of the removal of UK dividend
tax relief. The market value of the UK fund's assets at the valuation date was £1,745m, equivalent, after allowing for future increases in
earnings and pensions, to 88% of the benefit obligation that had accrued to members at the valuation date, The group has increased

: its rate of contributions to the fund in accordance with the actuary’s advice and taken other measures to address the deficit including
a substantiai one off contribution. The cost of the deficit is being charged in the financial statements as a level percentage of salaries
over active members’ remaining service lives. The actuary estimated that had the Minimumn Funding Requirement basis applied at the
time of the last valuation, the fund's soivency level would have been in excess of the reguired 100%.

Although full actuarial valuations are only undertaken every three years, an interim assessment by the actuary has indicated that

were the actuarial valuation to be updated to reflect subsequent interest rates, stock market returns and fund performance (but
without considering changes to the demaographics of membership), the fund deficit would have increased. AstraZeneca’s accounting |
policy, in accordance with UK GAAP, is to spread the cost of any deficit over active members’ remaining service lives. The cost of '
the deficit, as currently foreseen, wili not have a material impact on AstraZeneca’s results of operations or financial position.

In total the group’s main funded defined benefit plans (including the UK plans) held assets at their most recent valuation dates
whose market values amounted to $3,815m. After allowing for future increases in earnings and pensions, over 90% of the
benefit abligation that had accrued to members at the valuation dates were covered by the actuarial value of the assets of the
plans and by the value of provisions set aside in subsidiary companies’ accounts at the same dates.

The total pension cost for the group for 1989 was $298m (1998 $265m, 1997 $236m). In the group balance sheet at 31 December
1999, accrued pensicn costs amounted to $44m (1998 $37m) and were included in other creditors (Note 18); provisions for
unfunded benefit obligations, includead in provisions {Note 21), amounted to $451m (1998 $450m). Prepaid pension costs

: amounting to $74m (1998 $89m) were included in debtors (Note 15).

! Post-retirement benefits other than pensions

In the US, and to a lesser extent in some other countries, AstraZeneca’s employment practices include the provision of healthcare
and life insurance benefits for retired employees. Some 8,600 retired employees and covered dependants currently benefit from
these provisions and some 8,900 current employees will be sligible on retirement. AstraZeneca accrues for the present value of
such retiree obligations over the woerking life of the empioyee,

The cost of post-retirement benefits other than pensions for the group in 1999 was $21m {1998 $22m, 1987 $22m). Provisions for
i the benefit obligations at 31 December 1999 amounted to $232m {1998 $237m, 1997 $232m). Other than this provision there were
: no plan assets at 31 December 1999.

33 Employee costs and share option plans for employees
Employee costs

The average number of people employed by the group in 1998 was 58,000 (1998 58,300, 1997 53,800) and the costs incurred
during the year in respect of these employees were:

1999 1998 1997

CPensoncosts o 288 285 23
Other employment costs 98 _ 115 110
: 3,724 3,670 3,171
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: 33 Employee costs and share option plans for employees (continued)

The Directors believe that, together with the basic salary system, the group's employee incentive schemes should provide a
competitive and market-related package to motivate employees. They should also afign the interests of employees with those
of shareholders, as a whole, through long-term share ownership in the Company. The group’s UK, Swedish and US schemes
are described below; cther arrangements apply elsewhere. All of the existing schemes (both former Zeneca and former Astra
schemes) are being reviewed and proposals for revised schemes, for the new AstraZeneca group, are being deveioped.

The Zeneca Employee Performance Bonus Plan
i A discretionary bonus scheme based on trading results, related to the achievernent of performance targets at both individual
: business unit and overall levels,

Employées are offered the opportunity to fake any bonus that may be payable under the scheme in the form of cash or of
.i Ordinary Shares in the Company through a share retention scheme.

The Zeneca Executive Performance Bonus Plan

A similar bonus scheme and share retention scheme for senior employees who de not participate in the Zeneca Employee
Performance Bonus Plan. Bonuses for senior employees, as well as reflecting corporate and business performance, can also
: be affected (both up and down) by individual performance.

The Zeneca 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme
i QOptions to subscribe for Ordinary Shares in the Company may be granted to selected qualifying employees upon the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.

| The Zeneca Savings-Related Share Option Scheme
Employees may make regular manthly savings contributions over a three or five year period and may apply for options to
i acquire AstraZeneca shares. Further details are set out below.

The Astra Global Profit-Sharing Scheme

Astra introduced a profit-sharing plan in 1984 for all employees. The size of allocations is linked to Astra’s return on capital
employed, but may not exceed one-third of the year's dividend payout. In 1999 the payment to former Astra employees

{ totalled $46m.

The Astra Shareholder Value Incentive Plan
i A stock option programme established in 1996 in respect of a limited number of Astra employees in key positions. Allocations
i are made annually and linked to the futfilment of group-wide targets and increases in the group’s economic value added.

US Schemes

In the US, there are four senior staff incentive schemes, under which either AstraZeneca ADSs or stock appreciation rights
related to AstraZeneca ADSs are awarded to participants. There are currently approximately 160 participants in these schemes.
AstraZeneca ADSs necessary to satisfy the awards under these schemes are purchased on the open market, and no
subscriptions for new Crdinary Shares have been involved.

Share Opticn Schemes

At 31 December 1999 there were options outstanding under the Zeneca 19893 Senior Staff Share Option Scheme, the Zeneca
1994 Executive Share Option Scheme, the Zeneca Savings-Related Share Option Scheme and the Astra Shareholder Value

i Incentive Plan.

(1) Summary of the Zeneca 1993 Senior Staff Share Option Scheme
The Zeneca 19983 Senior Staff Share Option Scheme was introduced at the time of demerger in 1993. The last date for grant of
options was 19 May 1994 and the scheme has been replaced by the Zeneca 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme,

(2) Summary of the Zeneca 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme

. Eligibility
Employees required to devote substantially the whole of their fime to the business of AstraZeneca, and not within two years of

i
BE

their contractual retirement ages, are eligibie to participate at the discretion of the Directors.
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: 33 Employee costs and share option plans for employees (continued)

© Grant of Options

Options may be granted within six weeks after the announcement by the Company of its results for any period and at other
times in circumstances considered to be exceptional by the Directors. No options may be granted later than ten years after the
approval of the Scheme by shareholders.

The grant of options will be supervised by the Remuneration Committee which is comprised wholly of Non-Executive Direciors.
i No payment will be reqguired for the grant of an aption. Options are not transferable.

Acquisition Price
i The price per Ordinary Share payable upon the exercise of an option will not be less than the higher of:

{a) the arithmetical average of the middle-market quotations for an Ordinary Share on the London Stock Exchange on three
: consecutive dealing days immediately before options are granted (or such other day or days as may be agreed with the
Inland Revenue); and

(b) the nominal vaiue of an Ordinary Share (unless the option relates only to existing shares).

Exercise of Options
An option will normally be exercisable between three and ten years following its grant provided the relevant performance condition
has been satisfied. Cptions may be satisfied by the issue of new shares or by existing shares purchased in the market.

An option will not normally be exercisable unless a performance condition set by the Remuneration Committee has been satisfied.
The performance condition is that earnings per share must grow by at least the increase in the UK Retait Price Index over three
years plus 3% per annum. Satisfaction of this condition would be tested annually by reference to the audited financial statements.
Once the condition is satisfied in respect of any rolling three year pericd beginning no earlier than the end of the financial year prior
to the grant of the option then it need not be satisfied again in respect of that option. The Remuneration Committee will review the
performance criterion at intervals to ensure its ongoing appropriateness.

Options normally lapse on cessation of empioyment. Exercise is, however, permitted for a limited pericd {irrespective of the periog
for which the option has bean heid or whether the performance condition has been satisfied) following cessation of employment
either in certain compassionate circumstances or at the discration of the Directors, and on an amalgamation, take-over or winding-
up of the Company.

{3) Summary of the Zeneca Savings-Related Share Option Scheme {the “SAYE Scheme”}
i Eligibility
UK resident employees of participating AstraZeneca companies are automatically eligible to participaie.

! Grant of Options

Invitations 1o apply for options may be issued within six weeks after the announcement by the Company of its results for any
period and at other times in circumstances considered to be exceptional by the Directors. No invitations may be issued later
than ten years afier the approval of the SAYE Scheme by shareholders.

Options may onily be granted to employees who enter into UK Inland Revenue approved savings contracts with the savings
body nominated by the Company, under which monthly savings of a fixed amount {currently not less than £5 nor more than
£250) are made over a pericd of three or five years. The number of shares over which an opticn is granted will be such that the
totai amount payable on its exercise will be the proceeds on maturity of the related savings contract. No payment will be
required for the grant of an option. Options are not transferable.

. Individual Participation

Monthly savings by an employee under all savings contracts finked to options granted under any SAYE Scheme may not
i exceed £250 or such lower amounts as may be determined by the Directors.
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i 33 Employee costs and share option plans for employees (continued)
: Acquisition Price
The price per Ordinary Share payable upon the exercise of an option will not normally be less than the higher of;

{a) 90 per cent of the arithmetical average of the middle-market quotations for an Ordinary Share on the London Stock

Exchange on three consecutive dealing days shortly befere the date on which invitations to apply for options are issued
(provided that no such day may fall before the Company last announced its resuits for any period) or such other deating day
or days falling withir the six week period for the issue of invitations as the Directors may decide; and

(b} the nominal value of an Crdinary Share (unless the option is expressed to relate only to existing shares).

Exercise of Options
i An option will normally be exercisable only for six months commencing on the third or fifth anniversary of the commencement of the
| related savings contract, Options may be satisfied by the issue of new shares or by existing shares purchased in the market.

Opticns normally lapse on cessation of employment. Exercise is, however, permitted for a limited period {irrespective of the
period during which the option has been held) following cessation of employment in certain compassionate ¢ircumstances or
where an option has been held for more than three years (except on dismissal for misconduct) and on an amalgamation, take-
over or winding-up of the Company.

(4) Summary of the Astra Shareholder Value Incentive Plan {ASVIP')
In 1996 Astra established a stock option programme, the ASVIP for some 100 Astra employees in key positions in research,
marketing, production and central functions. Allocations through the programme are intended 1o be made on a yearly basis.

The option allocation is coupled 1o the fulfilment of a target related to Astra’s growth in value during the year. Growth in
i value is defined as an increase in Astra’s economic value added (EVA). Employees in the programme are classified
inte four categories, with a different number of shares being allocated t¢ employees within each of the respective categories.

EVA is calculated as consolidated earnings after tax, with certain adjustments. These earnings are charged with a capital cost
for stockholders’ equity and borrowed capital. The capital cost consists of a weighted average of calculated interest on loans
and & calcufated required rate of return for stockholders.

Cn complgtion of the merger with Zeneca, options in Astra shares granted under this scheme were replaced by options to
acquire a number of AstraZeneca shares based on the exchange ratio used in the exchange offers employed to effect the
AstraZeneca merger. The ratic of AstraZeneca options granted in respect of former Astra options was 0.5045 AstraZeneca
options for each Astra option held and the table opposite has been restated throughout accordingly.

The exercise pericd of the options is seven years. Valuation at the time of allocation was made on strictly commercial terms and will
correspond to the value of options purchased on the market for hedging purposes.

100

ASTRAZENECA - ANNUAL REPORT AND FORM 20-F 1999




Financial Statements
Notes relating to the Financial Statements

33 Employee costs and share option plans for employees (continued)

1994 Scheme SAYE Scheme ASVIP
Shares
under
Options WAEP* Qptions WAEP* option WAEP"

i Movements during 1997
Optionsgranted 67T 801 17 1758 214 a1
. Options exercised o JO9 B84 88 80T N

 Optionsforfeited 823780 191 952 N

Weighted average fair value of options
¢ granted during the year 536 604 17

| At 31 December 1997
© Options outstanding 2,633 1289 5,341 1114 905 330

Movements during 1998

Oplions exercised e O 8 B7T . 8TA N
. Optionsforteited e M 1495 197 278 N
- opt

Weighted average fair value of options
i granted during the year 569 : 540 117

lapsed .. |

At 31 December 1998
Options outstanding 2,664 1618 5.940 1252 1.243 =

Movements during 1999 i
Optionsgranted o B0 28841211 2264 NI
| Optionsexeraised e 4321205 2876 860 . Ni

- Optionsforfeited .8 1893 . 387 . 1865 NI

. Weighted average fair value of options
i granted during the year

| At 31 December 1999
Options outstanding 300t 1934 4388 1,708 1,249 961

Range of exercise prices B26p to 2749p 754D to 2264p 298SEK to
: o BAZSEK

| Weighted average remaining contractualife  2672days  BABdays  1625days
Options exercisable 1,292 1419 218 1,008 1,249 361

"Weighted Average Exercise Price

In addition to the schemes disciosed above at 31 December 1999 there were 110,000 options cutstanding issued under the
| Zeneca 1993 Scheme with a WAEP of 682p.
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: 34 Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

The interests at 31 December 1999 or on date of resignation of the perscns who on that date were Directors (including the interests
of their families) in shares and debentures of the Company and its subsidiaries are shown below, all of which were beneficial.

Interest in Interest in

Ordinary Shares, Ordinary Shares,
including shares Shares held inciuding shares Shares heid
held in trust, at in trust at Net hetd in trust, at in trust at
1 January 1299 1 January 1999 shares 31 December 1999 31 December 1999
or appointment date or appointment date acquired or resignation date  or resignation date

i Percy Barnevik ‘ - - 100,000 100,000 -
 SirDevidBames 208967 22,080 5609 ...214576  19.026

TomMcKillop e, 80,404 280202 477285176 18414
Michael Pragnell 1880 .. D330 1864 ...89894 o ...B4c4
A Staing AT BB
Jonathan Symonds 3266 @86 296 6262 3302
Claes Wilhelmsson o 18340 = ... 18349 o -

. Marcus Wallenberg _ 74,504 - - 74,504 -

Former direCtOrS e e

‘ Frank Meysman 500 - - 500 -
Sir Jeremy Morse 2,387 - - 2,387 -

Shares held in trust above are long-term incentive bonus shares appropriated under the Zeneca Executive Performance Bonus Plan
which have not yet been released. During the peried 1 January 2000 to 23 February 2000 there was no change in the interests of
Directors shown in this note. In the event that Ordinary Shares are appropriated in 2000 to Directors pursuant to the Executive
Performance Bonus Pian in respect of the year to 31 December 1999 the Directors would have an interest in such appropriated

i shares.

The interests cf Directors in options to subscribe for Ordinary Shares of the Company, which include options granted under the
Savings Related Share Option Scheme, together with options granted and exercised during the year are included in the following
i table.
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34 Directors’ interests in shares and debentures (continued)

Exercise Market price

No. of shares price at date of First date Last date
under option per share™ exercise exercisable* exercisable*
Sir David Barnes At 1 Jan 1999 145,680 983p 28.05.95 28.03.06
Exercised 1,372 754p 2834p 01.11.99 30.04.00
Exercised 287 1357p 2845p 01.12.88 31.05.00
At 31 Dec 1999 144,031 984p 28.05.895 28.03.06
Hakan Mogren At date of appointment - - - -
Grantegd 49,108 2749p 13.12.02 12.12.09
At 31 Dec 1999 49,108 2749p 13.12.02 12.12.09
Tom MeKilicp At 1 Jan 1999 115,188 1439p 05.04.97 25.03.08
Granted 28,421 2674p 25.03.89 24.03.09
Granted 447 2264p 01.12.04 31.05.05
Exercised 1,372 754p 2885p 01.11.99 30.04.00
At 31 Dec 19589 142,684 1694p 05.04.97 24.03.09
Michael Pragnell At 1 Jan 1899 102,770 1301p 06.04.98 25.03.08
Granted 3,739 2674p 25.03.02 24.03.08
At 31 Dec 1999 106,509 1349p 06.04.98 24.03.09 !
Ake Stavling At date of appointment - - - .
' Granted 30,701 2508p 26.05.02 25.05.09
At 31 Dec 19899 30,701 2508p 26.05.02 25.05.09
Jenathan Symonds At 1 dan 1989 44,064 2158p 01.10.00 16.08.08
Granted 29,342 2505p 25.08.02 24.08.09
Granted 298 2264p 01.12.04 31.05.05
At 31 Dec 1999 73,704 2296p 01.10.00 24.08.09
Claes Wilhelmsson At date of appointment - - - -
Granted 33,492 2508p 26.05.02 25.05.09
At 31 Dec 1999 33,492 2508p 26.05.02 25.05.09
 Peter Doyle At 1 Jan 1999 102,387 1443p 27.03.98 19.08.08
At resignation date 102,387 1443p 27.03.98 19.08.08
. Alan Pink At 1 Jan 1988 66,594 1481p 27.03.98 13.08.07
) At resignation date 66,594 1491p 27.03.98 13.08.07

. ¥ Exercise prices at 1 January and 31 December are weighted averages.
" First and last exercise dates of groups of options, within which periods thers are shorter sxercise periods.

In addition to the above the following Directors held options under the Astra Shareholder Value incentive Flan which were converted
. into options over AstraZeneca shares on completion of the merger based on an exchangs ratio of 0.5045 AstraZeneca optians for

. each Astra option held. None of these options were exercised during 1999 and no further opticns have been or will be granted

© undar the schere.

" Hékan Mogren At date of appointment 37,480 3598EK 06.04.99 23.01.06
At 31 Dec 1999 37,480 3598EK 06.04.99 23.01.06
Ake Staviing At date of appointment 16,193 3695EK 06.04.55 23.01.08
At 31 Dec 1999 16,193 369SEK 06.04.99 23.01.06
Claes Wilhelmsson At date of appointment 17,168 3655EK 06.04.99 23.01.06 |
At 31 Dec 1289 17,168 3658EK 06.04.99 23.01.06

The aggregate amount of gains made by Directors on the exercise of share opticns during the year amounted to $0.1m {1998 $ni,

1997 $11m) and the gains made by the highest paid director were $47,000 (1998 $nil, 1997 $2.5m). The market price of the shares |
. at 31 December 1992 was 2568p and the range during 1999 was 2208p to 3037p. The Register of Directors’ Interests (which is |
. open to inspection) contains full details of Directors’ shareholdings and options to subscribe. i

g‘;{;%u_..__w .

Q
o
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35 Emoluments of Directors

The aggregate remuneration, excluding pension contributions, paid to or acerued for all Directors and officers of the Company for
. services in all capacities during the year ended 31 December 1999 was $14m {including $300,000 to the Chairman). Remuneration
of individual Directors was as follows:

Salary Taxable Total Total Total
and fees Bonuses* benefits Other 1999 1508 1997
$000  $000 $000  $000 000  §000  $000
. Percy Barnevik {from 6 April 1999) 300 - - - 300 - -
_ SrDavidBames . 823 373 il - 1,217 1,426 1,057
- Hakan Mogren (from 6 Aprit 1999) ) 839 65 26 - %s00_ - . -
© Tom MokKillop , 1,154 566 21 - 1,741  B4B 705
. Michael Pragnell , 654 79 34 104t 87 B37 508
. Ake Staviing from 6 April 1999) o471 329 2 - 842 - -
. Jonathan Symonds 667 338 28 116t 1,149 734 148
Clags Wilhelmsson (from 6 April 1999] St4 %88 12 T 885 S -
© Sir Peter Bonfield _ 57 - - - 57 45 44
Karl von der Heyden . ... B _ i T T, 61 .12 =
* Eina Maller from 6 Aprl 1999) ) ® - - - -
: Dame Bridget Ogilvie - 57 - - - 57 45 44
Lars Ramaqvist (from 6 April 1999) ) 49 - - - 49 - -
Marcus Wallenberg (from & Aoril 1999) - 46 - T T 46 e

- Former Directors
- Sir Sydney Li B -1 8 m T8 281 272
" Peter Doyle _ 158 223 5 602# 988 740 593
© Alan Pink e 175, - N S... . 253 853 648
© §ir Richard Greenbury 20 - - 2@ 53 52
. Frank Meysman _ 1T - - - 17 45 a4
- Sir Jeremy Morse 20 T T 2080 44
¢ Others 22 813
: 6195 2,975 203 822 10,195 5791 4,970

. " The figures stated above includa the cost to the company of providing the maiching contribution of shares in respect of that part of the bonus which is 1c be taken in
shares by each Director. All such shares are held in trust and will be released to sach Director upon fultiiment of the conditions and under the terms of the plan described on

page 53.

; 1 Paymants for pension related tax liabilities.

! # Compensation tor loss of office.

Emoluments shown are for the directors’ services as a director of AstraZeneca PLC, formerly Zeneca Group PLC. Therefore the
emoluments of former Astra diractors and employees, who are now directors of AstraZenaca, (l.e. Hakan Mogren, Ake Staviing,

¢ Claes wilhelmsson, Erna Maller, Lars Ramgvist and Marcus Wallenberg) are for the pericd from their appointment as directors

of AstraZeneca PLC (6 April 1909) to 31 December 1999,

Some Directors and officers were also granted options to subscribe for Crdinary Shares under the group’s share option schemes,
Details of share options granted to, and exercised by, Directors and the aggregate of gains realised on exercised options in the year
~ are given on page 103.

 In accordance with English law and practice there are written conditions of employment between AstraZeneca and all its monthly
. salaried employees. Contracts of employment of Directors and officers are subject fo termination on reaching the age of 62 years
" {unless extended by mutual consent) or on notice periods of up to two years being given by AstraZeneca or such employae.

- No Director or officer has a family relationship with any other Director or officer.
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i 35 Emoluments of Directors (continued)

! Transactions with Directors

During the year Hakan Mogren purchased a flat from the Company for approximately $717,000 and four Directors purchased cars
and/or furniture for a total consideration of $140,000. All transactions were subjected to independent valuations and carried out at
fair market values.

The remuneration of the Executive Directors is determined by the Remuneration Committee comprised entirely of Non-Executive
Directors and chaired by Lars Ramgvist. Remuneration above consists of annual salary, health and car benefits, a bonus scheme
and an executive share option scheme. Salaries are reviewed each year in the light of comparison with other companies, the
performance of the Company and individual experience and contribution. Further details are provided in the Report of the Beard on
. Remuneration of Directors on pages 52 to 54.

The Non-Executive Directors were not eligible for performance related bonuses or share options and no pension contributions were
: made on their behalf.

in commen with other senior employees in the UK who are members of the main UK Pension Fund, the normal pension age for _
¢ each Director is 62. However, their accrued pension is available from age 60 without any actuarial reducticn. In addition, the accrued
i pension is available, unreduced, from age 50 if the Company consents to a request for early retirement. :

Directors’ Pension Entitlement Sir David Barnes  Pater Doyle Tom MeKillop Alan Pink  Hakan Mogren  Ake Stavling  Claes Wilheimsson

Defined Benefit Arrangements

1. Accrued pension at 1 January 1998 ‘
. ..ordateofappointmert 705 42t %2 427 903 o212 360

i 2. Increase in accrued pension

3. Adjustment 1o accrued pension as
H as a result of salary increase relative

to inflation - @ 244 ] - - -
4. Increase in accrued pension as a )
i fesultofadditional service o m BB A 2SR
5. Accrued pension at 31 December 1999
. ordateofresignation o JO8 48454 439 928t AN 1)
8. Employee contributions during year BB i " M eeeseesses e -
© 7. Age at 31 December 1999
i (vears) or date of resignation 83%, 605, 56%; 611, 55%, 541, 60%;
! 8. Pensionable service {years) 41 357, 30%, 365, 27%,, 26", 32%,

{ * Includes fate retirement upfift

T Accrued pension payable between the age of 60 and 65. Once 85 the pensicn payable is reduced by 21‘71hs {or 28.6%) from the figurss shown

Money Purchase Arrangements

Company contributions paid 162 223

The contributions and accrued benefits shown above are paid in pounds sterling or Swedish kronor and have been translated
i into US dollars for convenience purposes ai rates of $1=£0.6157 and $1=SEK 8.2189 respectively.
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i 36 Emoluments of Directors {continued)

Former Zeneca directors pension entitlement

On death in retirement, the accrued pension shown is guaranteed payabie for the first five years of retirement and then reduces
to two thirds of this amount should there be a surviving spouse or other dependant. Any member may choose higher or lower
levels of survivor's pensions at retirement, subject to inland Revenue limits, in return for an adjustrment to their own pensicn of
equivalent actuarial value. Pensions are also payable tc dependant children. In the event of a senior employee becoming
incapacitated from performing his work then a pension is payable immediately as if such person had reached normal retirement
age, based on current pensicnable salary. In the event of death prior to retirement, dependants are entitled to a pension of two
thirds of the pension that would have been earned had such persen remained in service to age 62 plus a capital sum of four
times pensianable pay. Pensions in payment are increased annually in line with infiation, as measured by the Retail Price Index, up
to a maximum of 5%,

| Former Astra directors pension entitiement

Former Astra directors are entitled to a total pension of 70% of pensionable salary from age 6C to 65 and of 50% of such
earnings from age 85. As a result the accrued pensions shown above are only payable from age 80 to age 85 after which

they will be reduced by 27 ths of the amounts shown. Paid in pension capital may also be used in the event of retirement or
termination before the age of 60. The pensionable salary is adjusted yearly in accordance with the consumer price index. In the
event of long term iliness then a pension is payable immediately as if such person had reached the normal retirement age, of
70% of current pensionable salary. On death in retirement the accrued pension shown is payable to a surviving spouse or other
dependant. In the event of death prior to retirement the accrued pension shown is payable to a surviving spouse or other

dependant plus a capital sum of three times pensionable salary less $100,000 if married or twe times pensionable salary less
: $100,000 if not.

36 Assets pledged, commitments and contingent liabilities

Assets pledged

Mortgages and other assets pledged 47 47 132

Contingent liabilities

Contracts placed for future capital expenditure
i not provided for in these accounts : 383 411 396

Included in the above total are contracts related to certain product purchase and licence agreements with deferred congideration
obligations, the amounts of which are variable depending upon particular ‘milesione’ achievernents. Sales of the products to which
these ‘milestones’ relate couid give rise to additional payments, contingent upon the saies levels achieved. Guarantees and
contingencies arising in the ordinary course of business, for which no security has been given, are not expected to result in any

| material financial loss.

-
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. 36 Assets pledged, commitments and contingent liabilities (continued)

© Commitments

. Commencing in 1999, AstraZeneca is required to pay appreximately $800m over at least a five-year period, under the terms of
agreement with Schering-Plough. With effect from 1 January 1999, in connection with this agreement, AstraZeneca obtained a stand-
by letter of credit in the amount of $608m. This letter of credit is collateralised by high-grade government securities which are not
available to AstraZeneca to the extent of the outstanding balance of the letter of credit. The amount outstanding under the letter of
credit is automaticalty reduced with each payment made by AstraZeneca to Schering-Plough. Under the terms of this agreement
AstraZeneca reacqguired the rights to market omeprazole under the Losec trade mark and felodipine under the Prevex and Perfudal
trade marks in italy and Spain. Payments under this agreement for 1999 totalled approximately $276m.

Pursuant to the restructuring of the joint venture with Merck Inc. {see Note 3), AstraZeneca is obliged to make certain contingent
payments to Merck based on sales of certain current and pipsline AstraZeneca products until at least 2008. AstraZeneca is also
required 1o make certain payments to Merck in the form of partnership distributicns, including a pricrity return and certain variable
returns which are based upon sales of certain cther AstraZeneca products in the US,

As part of the Astra Merck Restructuring and as a result of the merger of Astra and Zeneca, an option (the First Option) exists under
which Merck has the right to require that AstraZeneca purchase Merck's rights to all products other than omeprazole and perprazole
(the ‘First Option assets’} in 2008, If Merck does not exercise the First Option in 2008, then AstraZeneca may exercise the First Option
in 2010. In the event the First Option is exercised, AstraZeneca shail pay cormpensation to Merck based on a multiple of an average of

© the three preceding years' pre-tax payments from AstraZeneca to Merck for all products except for omeprazole and perprazole, subject
to a minimum of at least $4.4bn.

| In addition, AstraZeneca has an option to purchase Merck's rights to payments in respect of omeprazole and perprazole two years after
i the First Cption is exercised {the Second Option). The exercise price for the Second Option will be the fair vatue of such rights as
determined at the time of such exercise.

If neither the First Option nor the Second Cption is exercised by AstraZeneca or Merck, the license agreement wil continue indefinitely
with respect to the compounds still subject to the license agreement at the time of the merger, the value of which license rights will
{ diminish over time.

in connection with the consummation of the merger, AstraZeneca was also required, under the Astra Merck restructuring agreements,
to pay Merck a lump sum based on Astra's and Zeneca's respective pharmaceutical research and development expenditure over a 12
month pericd. In April 1999 AstraZeneca paid Merck $713m to settle this obligation but Merck disputed the basis of calculation and
claimed a payment some $110m higher. The matter went to arbitration and in February 2000 a ruling in the dispute was delivered under
which AstraZeneca has paid Merck a further $34m, including interest. This amount, together with the original $713m and related legal
costs has been charged as part of the exceptional merger costs in the 1999 accounts.
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. 36 Assets pledged, commitments and contingent liabilities {continued)

Envircnmental

AstraZeneca has environmental liabifities at some currently or formerly owned, leased and third party sites in the USA. AstraZeneca, or
its indemnitees, have been named under US legislation (the Comprehensive Environmental Respense, Compensation and Liability Act
of 1980, as amended} as potentially responsible parties in respect of 36 sites {although AstraZeneca expects to be indemnified against
liabilities associated with seven of these sites by the seller of the businesses associated with such sites) and, where appropriate,
actively participates in or monitors the clean-up activities at sites in respect of which it is a PRP. Stauffer Management Company, a
subsidiary of AstraZeneca established in 1987 to own and manage certain assets of Stauffer Chernical Company which was acquired
that year, has identified 41 sites {including 22 for which AstraZeneca has been named a PRP) for which it may have responsibility that
will, in aggregate, require significant expenditure on clean-up and monitoring.

The requirement in the future for AstraZeneca ultimately to take action at its cost to correct the effects on the environment of prior
disposal or release of chemical substances is inherently difficult to estimate. AstraZeneca has provisions at 31 December 1999 in respect
of such costs in accordance with the accounting policies on page 67. Although there can be no assurance, management believes that,
taking account of these provisions, the costs of addressing currently identified environmentat obligations, as AstraZeneca currently views
those obligations, is unlikely to impair materially AstraZeneca’s financial position. Such contingent costs, 1o the extent that they exceed
appliceble provisions, could have a material adverse effect on AstraZeneca’s results of operations for the relevant pericd.

i Legal Proceedings

i Losec (omeprazole)

In June 1997, the German federal patent court dectared invalid a previcusly granted supplementary protection certificate which
extended protection for omeprazote, the active ingredient contained in Losec, from 1999 to 2003. The decision was appealed and on
1 February 2000, the German supreme court decided to refer the case to the European Court of Justice for a preliminary ruling. The
case does not involve any financial claims.

During 1999, Astra filed a number of patent infringemenit actions in Germany against companies launching generic capsule VErsions
of omeprazole in Germany. AstraZeneca maintains that these companies' actions infringe AstraZeneca’s formulation patent for
omeprazole, which expires in Germany in 2007. In addition, AstraZeneca maintains that such actions infringe AstraZensca's
supplementary protection certificate for the omeprazole substance patent. These proceedings do not currently include claims for
monetary amounts. In one case, a preliminary injunction has been granted preventing Ratiopharm GmbH from marketing its product
until the main action for patent infringement has been decided. If the final decision goes against AstraZeneca, Ratiopharm may claim
damages for lost sales due to the preliminary injunction.

In 1998, Astra filed suit in the USA against Andrx Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Genpharm, Inc. The law suits followed the filing of
abbreviated new drug applications by Andrx and Genpharm with the US Food and Drug Administration concerning the two companies’
intention to market generic omeprazole products in the USA. The suit is continuing. The basis of the proceedings is that the actions of
Andrx and Genpharm infringe several patents related to Prilosec/Losec. in AstraZeneca’s opinion, these patents provide protection until
at least 2001. During 1999, Astra also filed suit against Kremers Urban Development Company and Schwarz Pharma, Inc., and against
Cheminer Drugs, Ltd., Reddy-Cheminor, Inc. and Schein Pharmaceutical, Inc. in the USA on similar grounds.

In May 1999, the Federal Court of Australia in Sydney handed down a patent ruling pertaining to omeprazole in connection with a
dispute between Astra and the generic company, Alphapharm Pty Ltd. The court established that the formuation used by Alphapharm
in its generic omeprazole infringed the patented formulation technology of Astra . However, the court also declared that, under

i Australian patent law, Astra's formulation patent was invalid. The judgement is now under appeal.
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: 36 Assets pledged, commitments and contingent liabilities (continued)

Nolvadex {tamoxifen)

I January 1998, Zeneca Limited received a letter from Mylan Pharmaceuticals Inc. stating that Mylan had filec an abbreviated new
drug application with the FDA seeking permission to market tamoxifen citrate in the USA and asserting that Zeneca's patent for
tamoxifen citrate is invalid and unenforceable. Zeneca disputes Mylan’s position and in February 1996 filed an action against Mylan in
the Federal District Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania. Among other things, Mylan asserted affirmative defences and
counterclaims alleging patent misuse, unclean hands and collaterat estoppel (based on Zeneca's settiement of an earlier patent dispute
in 1993), which Zeneca denies. The case has been suspended pending the resolution of the Pharmachemie case, described below.

Notification was received by Zeneca Limited in February 1996 that Pharmachemie BV had filed an abbreviated new drug application

with the FDA to market tamoxifen citrate in the USA and asserting that Zeneca's US patent for tamoxifen citrate is invalid and

unenforceable. Zeneca disputes Pharmachemie's position and in March 1996 filed an action against Pharmachemie in the Federal :
District Court for the District of Maryland. This matter was transferred to the US District Gourt for the District of Massachusetts. After the f
close of discovery in this case, Zeneca filed a motion for partial summary judgement on Pharmachemie's affirmative deferces of patent
i misuse, unclean hands and collateral estoppel (similar to those asserted by Mylan). (n February 1899, the court issued an order
granting the motion and dismissing such affirmative defences with prejudice.

:n September 1989, a jury trial of this case commenced in Boston. Pharmachemie asserted that the tamoxifen patent was invalid for

failure to comply with the “best mode” and "enablement” requirements cf the US patent statute. It also asserted that the patent was

! unenforceable due to “inequitable conduct” in the prosecution of the patent. Pharmachemie withdrew one of its unenforceability
defences before the trial began and dropped its “enablement™ defence prior to the close of evidence. Foliowing several weeks of trial,
¢ the District Court ruled from the bench in Zeneca's favour on one of Pharmachemie’s inequitable conduct defences. It also indicated
that it was regerving judgement on the sole remaining inequitable conduct defence and exercising its discreticn to decide the issue
without submitting it to the jury for an advisory fact-finding. Pharmachemie’s “best mode” defence thus became the sole issue
submitted to the jury.

In Novermber 1899, the jury returned a verdict for Zeneca, rejecting Pharmachemie’s “best mode” defence. The District Court has yet 1o
i rule on the remaining inequitable conduct issue and has not vet entered judgement,

: Diprivan (propofol)

AstraZeneca’s new formulation of Diprivan (propofol) containing the antimicrobial agent, disodium edetate, has patent protectioninthe
USA expiring in March 2015. In 1998, notices were received by Zeneca Limited that GensiaSicer Pharmaceuticals, Inc. had submitted a |
propofol product that contained no antimicrobial agent, and a propofol preduct that contained an antimicrobial agent different from that
| contained in new formulation Diprivan, for FDA approval. Zeneca Inc. filed with the FDA a “Gitizens Petition” asking the FDA to withdraw
ts approval for the formulation of Diprivan that did not contain the antimicrobial agent used by Zeneca and the FDA granted this petition ﬁ
i on 10 December 1998. Zeneca also petitiched the FDA not to approve any generic version of propofal which (i) does not contain any :'
antimicrobial agent and {ji) contains any antimicrobial agent other than the one used in Diprivan, without adequate clinical and scientific
studies to support the product’s safety. On 4 January 1999, Zeneca learned that this petition was denied and that the FDA had granted
approval to GensiaSicar’s abbreviated new drug application for a propofol product containing the antimicrobial agent, sodium
metabisulfite. AstraZeneca does not agree with the FDA's decision and on & February 1999 Zeneca Inc. filed a lawsit in the US District
Court for the District of Maryland seeking a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining (i) the FDAs approval of GensiaSicor's ANDA
for a propofol product that contains the antimicrobial, sodium metabisulfite, and (i) the FDA's approval of GensiaSicor's propofol product
until AstraZeneca’s market exclusivity terminated on 11 June 1999. Shortly after Zeneca filed the action against the FDA, GensiaSicor :
intervened. fn March 1999, the District Court denied Zeneca's motion for preliminary injunction. Shortly thereafter, Zeneca filed a rmotion
for summary judgement and the FDA and GensiaSicor filed cross-motions for summary judgement. In August 1899, the District Court
denied Zeneca's motion for summary judgement and granted the FDA's and GensiaSicor's cross-motions for summary judgement and
entered judgement in their favour. Zengca has appealed against the District Court's decision.
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- 36 Assets pledged, commitments and contingent liabilities (continued)

Retail pharmacies'/drug purchasers' actions

Since October 1993, several thousand retail pharmacies and certain retail drug purchasers have commenced purported class actions
and individual acticns in varicus federal and state courts throughout the USA alfteging that, with respect to brand name prescription
drugs, manufacturers and wholesalers engaged in discriminatory pricing practices, discriminatery discounting and rebate practices,
and/er conspired with one another to fix prices and artificially maintain high prices to the plaintiffs in restraint of trade and commerce.
More than 20 brand name prescription drug manufacturers and eight wholesalers have been named defendants in some or all of these
. suits.

Zeneca Ing. was named a defendant in more than 140 separate complaints, including: a consofidated action on behalf of a class of
retail pharmacies now pending in the federal court of Chicago, llinois {in November 1994, the federal court in Chicago certified this
class); four actions on behalf of purported classes of retai! pharmacies pending in state court in San Francisco, California; one action in
. an Alabama state court; one purported class action in a Wisconsin state court; one purported class action in a Minnesota state court;
an individual action in state court in Mississippi; and fourteen purported class actions on behalf of consumers in Alabama, Arizona,
California, Florida, Kansas, Maine, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Carolina, Tennessee, Washington, Washington DC, and
Wisconsin state courts. The Alabama action purports to bring claims on behalf of consumers from the following states: Kansas, Maine,
Michigan, Minnesota, Washington DC, Mississippi, New Mexico, North Dakota, South Dakota and West Virginia. A second Tennessee
action brought in 1998 asserts claims on behalf of consumers of Tennessee, Alabama, Arizona, Florida, Kansas, Maine, Michigan,
Minnescta, New Mexico, North Carolina, North Dakota, South Dakota, West Virginia and Wisconsin. During 1999, four new consumer
class actions were filed in New Meaxico, North Dakota, Scuth Dakoeta and West Virginia. Classes have been certified in the California
retaiter and consumer actions and the 1998 Tennessee action. The actions in federal court generally allege violations of Section 1 of the
Sherman Act, and in some cases, violations of Section 2(a) and Section 2(d) of the Robinson-Patman Act. The actions in California
state court allege violations of the California Unfair Practices Act, the Cartwright Act and the Unfair Competition Act, The state cases
allege violations of the respective state statutes analogous to the federal anti-trust and/or unfair competition laws. The complaints
generally seek injunctive relief barring the allegedly unlawful conduct, and unspecified damages which would be trebled under
applicable law. The complaints also seek costs, interest and reasonable attorney’s fees.

Zeneca entered into a Settlement Agreement with the retail class plaintifis whose anti-trust claims were consaolidated in a federal muiti-
district litigation proceeding pending in the Northern District of llingis. Zeneca has also reached settlements with numerous
independent and chain pharmacies that opted out of the federal class action, although there are still actions brought by certain chain
and independent pharmacies pending in the federal court of Chicago, {llincis. Zeneca has also settied the Minnesota and Wisconsin

| retail cases as well as all the consumer cases, except for Alabama, California, and the 1998 Tennessee action, and the four consumer
© cases fited in 1999. Zeneca has consistently denied liability and continues to believe it has meritorious defences to all of these claims.
However, it believes that entering into these settlemeants is the prudent course of action given the inherent risks and costs of litigation

. and to avoid further business disruption.

i CERCLA

AstraZeneca is subject to a number of envircnmental litigation proceedings in the USA. In particular, in 1990, the US and State of |
California Trustees filed an action under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as
amended, in the US District Court for the Central District of California against defendants including Stauffer Management Company,
Montrose Chemical Corporation of California and several other AstraZeneca-related entities alleging DDT related natural resource
damage near two ocean dump sites, the Los Angeles/Long Beach Harbors and the Palos Verdes Shelf. Rhéne-Poulenc Inc.,

an indemnitee of SMC, was added as a defendant in 1991. The source of alleged DOT release is the Montrose plarit in Torrance,
California. Montrose conducted operations at the facility from 1847 until 1982 during which time the property was owned by Stauffer
Chemical Company but is currently owned by a subsidiary of SMC. The plaintiffs are seeking recovery for allieged damages to natural
resources as well as a declaration of liability for past and future response costs with respect to the former Montrose plant site and the
Palos Verdes Shelf. The defendants are opposing this amendment. The plaintiffs are claiming $482 million in natural resource damages
and response costs with respect to the Palos Verdes Shelf but AstraZeneca does not believe such claims are supportable. The
AstraZeneca entities have moved for summary judgement in their favour on the natural resource damage claims. The government
plaintiffs are oppesing this motion and have cross moved for partial summary judgement on such claims, The government plaintifis are
also moving for a summary judgement that Montrose, Rhdne-Poulenc and the AstraZeneca entities are liable for response costs at the
Torrance piant site and off-site areas, Those defendants are opposing this motion. The defendants have moved for the imposition of
sanctions on the governmeants, based upon alleged misconduct with respect to expert reports. The defendants have also moved for
reconsideration or certification of an order denying their motion that the federal and state governments are liable parties because of i
their ownership of the Palos Verdes Shelf. A new judge has just been assigned to the case and trial has been set for October 2000. The
defendants view this as a favourable development.
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: 36 Assets pledged, commitments and contingent liabilities (continued)

AstraZeneca is also involved in an action instituted in 1991 with the US District Court for the Eastern District of California. US and
California state environmental agencies brought suit under CERCLA against Rhone-Poulenc for a deciaration of liability with respect to
past and future response costs related to the release of mining wastes at the Iron Mountain site in Northern California. Zeneca has an
indemnity obligation to Rhéne-Poulenc for all liabilities arising from this site as a result of the acquisition and subsequent sale of Stauffer
Chemical Company in 1987. Rhéne-Pouienc brought counterclaims against state and federal agencies relating to the government'’s
construction and operation of dams in the vicinity of Iron Mountain and the federal government's World War il and post-World War Il
activities at Iron Mountain. The Court ruted that as to the response activities conducted to date, the government was not a liable party.
The Court also ruled that Rhone-Pouienc was the successor to the company which had conducted the mining at Iron Mountzin.
Owing to a change in the law, Rhéne-Poulenc has requested that the Court reconsider this decision. Because of pending settiement
discussions, the Court agreed to review Rhéne-Poulenc'’s request if settiement is not reached. At the request of the Court, the parties
have retained a mediator in an attempt to setile the matter and have had ongoing settiement discussions. If settlement is not reached,
trial is not expected before 2001. The governments are seeking recovery of more than $31 milion in past response costs and a
declaration of liability on future costs. AstraZeneca is complying with certain orders issued to Rhéne-Poulenc by the Environmental
Protection Agency to undertake response actions at the site. Costs incurred by AstraZeneca now exceed $130 million.

EEOC investigation

During 1997, the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission in the USA completed its investigation of certain allegations of
discrimination, including sexual harassment, at Astra USA, Inc. (the business and assets of Astra USA, Inc. were transferred to Astra
Pharmaceuticals LP in connection with the Astra/Merck restructursing arrangements; following the merger, Astra Pharmaceuticals LP

is now called AstraZeneca LP). In March 1997, the EEOC and Astra USA, Inc. inifiated conciliation sessions which in February 1998
resulted in a consent decree pursuant to which Astra USA, Inc. established a claim fund of $9.85 million, This fund was apportioned
among the eligible claimants by an independent Special Master, which apportionment was approved by the US court handling this
matter. During 1999, the fund was distributed according to the court’s instructions. The $9.85 million has been charged to the
Company's earnings. In addition to those membeérs of the class who filed a claim and, as a result, will be barred from seeking additional
damages through an action filed in the US court system, a small number of individuals have pursued actions which remain i litigation.

- Monsanto and Touchdown

in June 1988 Monsanto Company brought an action in Alabama state court against Zeneca Inc. and Pioneer Hi-Bred International Inc.
seeking a declaratory judgement that Zeneca’s testing of its Touchdown herbicide on glyphosate-tolerant soybeans constituted a
breach of contract or tortious interference with a licence between Monsanto and Pioneer. In July 1998, Zeneca filed an action against
Morsanto in the Federal District Court in Delaware asserting anti-trust and patent claims against Monsanto arising out of Monsante'’s
practices in the development, marketing and sale of glyphosate-tolerant soybeans. Zeneca was seeking declaratory relief, injunctive
relief, unspecified compensatory damages, treble damages, punitive damages, pre-judgerment interest, costs and attorney’s fees.
Monsanto's Alabama action was dismissed by the court in August 1998. Zeneca then amended its federal action to include a request,
in which Pioneer joined as co-plaintiff, for adjudication of the breach of contract claims raised by Monsanto in the state court action.

In QOctober 1998, Monsanto moved to dismiss the complaint. Monsante's motion was denied by the Federal Court in Delaware in
December 1998, In August 1938, Monsanto brought an action in Missouri state court against Zeneca and Fioneer, Monsanto sought
unspecified actual damages in excess of $50,000, pre-judgement interest, punitive damages, injunctive relief and costs. In October
1998, Zeneca moved to dismiss, or alternatively stay, Monsanto's Missouri complaint on the basis of Zeneca's prior pending federal

¢ lawsuit.

“In March 199¢, both the Delaware litigation and the Missouri litigation were settied on terms favourable to Zeneca, including a licence
i for Zeneca to sell Touchdown for use over Monsanto’s glyphosate-tolerant soybeans, corn and cotton. Orders of dismissal were
. entered in both cases.

i General

AstraZeneca is also involved in various other legal proceedings considered typica!l to its businesses, including some remaining US retail
pharmacy anti-trust class and individual actions outside the scope of the settlement described above, litigation relating to product
liability and infringerents of intellectual property rights and the validity of certain patents. Although there can be no assurance regarding
the outcome of any of the legal proceedings referred to in this Note 36 to the Financial Statements, AstraZeneca believes that they wil
rot have & materially adverse effect on AstraZeneca’s financial position.
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37 Leases

Total rentals under operating leases charged to profit and loss account were as follows:

1999 1998 1967

: Hire of plant and machinery

40 26

8

Other

8

64 36

Comraitrnents under operating leases to pay rentals during the year following the year of these financial statements analysed
according to the period in which each lease expires were as follows:

Land and buildings Other assets

¢ Expiringinyears 2105 e 2V 18288

Expiring thereafter 10 15 3 1

The future minimum lease payments under operating leases that have initial or remaining terms in excess of one year, and
{ future minimum lease payments under capitalised leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments at
. 31 December 1999 were as foliows:

Cperating leases Finance leases

1989 1998 1999 1998

Obligations under leases comprise

Rentals due within 1 year 64 66 1 7

Rentals due after more than 1 year
| After 5 years from balance sheetdate g4 77 - 40
ROmMAOSYeaS A8 25 =2

From 1 to 2 years 48 48 1
207 219 1 18
21 285 2 25

Less: amounis representing interest - (5)

Present value of net MInimum 18888 PAYMBNLS | || oo B 20

Less: current lease obligations - &)

Non-current lease obligations 2 15

The group had no commitments (1998 $nil) under finance leases at the balance sheet date which were due to commence thereafter.

i

-
—
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38 Statutory and other information

Included in debtors are interest free loans of $24,000 and $4,000 to two officers of the Company. These loans are provided in
accordance with the Company’s policy of providing relocation assistance to staff who have been transferred.

i Audit fees

KPMG Audit Plc 3.7 4.3 3.8
. Deloite & Touche 202017
Others 0.3 0.8 0.6
| ' 6.1 7.1 6.1

| Fees for other services

| KPMG Audit Ploandassogiates = UK 196 22 26
- Worldwide 4.9 3.5 1.5
 Deoitte&Touche - UK 4ot

The charge for the statutory audit of the Company, AstraZeneca PLC, was $1,600 {1998 $1,600, 1997 $1,600).

The group had no material related party transactions which might reascnably be expected to influence decisions made by the
i users of these financial statements.
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: 39 Company information
i Company Balance Sheet

At 31 December 1999 1998

: Fixed assets
| Fixed asset investments 39 905 890

905 890

Current assets
Debiors — amounts owed by subsidiaries due after more than one year 37,957 3,116
| Total assets ‘ 38,862 4,006

Creditors due within one year
Other creditors 39 {2,015) (528) :
: (2,015) (530) |

| Net current assets 35,942 2,586

Total assets less current liabilities 36,847 3,476

Creditors due after more than one year (
! Loans — owed 1o subsidiaries 39 {590) (590}
Net assets 36,257 2,886

{ Capital and reserves

| Galled-upsharegapital a0 444 394

Profit and loss account 39 33,371 356
. Shareholders’ funds -~ equity interests 36,257 2,886

The financial statements on pages 58 to 128 were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 February 2000 and were signed on its

© behalf by: %% é/,
TorrfcKillop Jonathan Symonds ¢

Director Director :
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Deferred taxation
The parent company had no deferred tax assets or liabilities {actual or potential) at 31 December 1999,

Investments in subsidiaries :

! Fixed asset investments Shares Loans Total

209 . ....591  ....8%0

Acquisitions 15 - 15
| Net book value et 31 December 1999 314 591 905
Net book value at 31 December 1998 299 591 890

! Other creditors 1899 1998

i Amounts due within one year

. Amounts owedtosubsidiaries 181 86
Dividends te Shareholders 834 442
2,015 528

Repayment
Eaate

Loans {unsecured)

US dollars

6.58%Joan e ... .. 2008 285 @ ...29%
7.2% loan 2023 295 205

| Total Ioans 590 590

toans or instalments thereof are repayable
From 1tc 2 years -

Totat unsecured 590 590

Total due within one vear -
| Total ioans ' 590 590
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{ Reserves account reserve aceount

At beginning of year 54 - 2,082 356 2,492
| Netprofitfor the financialyear 34807 34,807
Bhare IBPURCHASE, et O VR T

Share Capital Profit
premium  redemption QOther and loss 1999

Share preriums o 148 148
. Atend of year 202 1 2,239 33,371 35,813

The ret profit for the financial year includes a net gain of $32,918m in respect of the sale to a subsidiary of the Company's investment in

2475

1998
Totat

671

.\668)

14

2,492

Astra AB. This amount is not distributable. Included in other reserves is the special reserve of $157m arising on the redencmination of
share capital. Of the total balance on the other reserve, $410m is distributable.

As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Company has not presented its profit and ioss account.

)
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i 40 Called-up share capital of parent company

: Ordinary Shares ($0.26 each) S .. SRS ... S 394

Redeemabie Preference Shares - _ _

{ The movements in share capital during the year can be summarised as follows:

P AtDEQINNING Of YEBN e - e e 980 394

Nominal value of shares issued 10 Astra AB sharehaolders - 206

. Group share capital atbeginning ofyear e 950 800

* Issues of shares _ 3 2
Repurchase of shares (4 (1
. At 31 December 1999 1.775 444
Redenomination

In connection with the merger, AstraZeneca's share capital was redenominated intc US dollars.

i On 6 April 1999, Zeneca shares were cancelied and US dollar shares issued, credited as fully paid on the basis of one Dollar Share
! for each Zeneca share then held. This was achisved by a reduction of capital under section 135 of the Companies Act 1885. Upon
i the reduction of capital becoming effective, all issued and unissued Zeneca shares were cancefled and the sum arising as a result
thersof credited to a special reserve which was converted into US dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing on the Reccrd Date.
This US dollar reserve was then applied in paying up at par newly created US dollar shares.

At the same time as the US dollar shares were issued, the Compariy issued £50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares for cash at
| par. The Redeemable Preferance Shares carry limited class voting rights and no dividend rights. This class of shares is also capable
i of redemption at par at the option of the Company on the giving of seven days’ written notice to the registered holder of the shares.

Merger

i Atotal of 825,032,791 AstraZeneca shares were issued to Astra shareholders who accepted the merger offer before the final 7
i closing date, 21 May 1999. AstraZeneca received acceptances from Astra shareholders representing $9.6 per cent of Astra’s shares
i "and the compulsory acquisition procedure has been initiated to acquire for cash the outstanding shares. ‘

* Share buy-back

During the second half of the year the company purchased, and subsequently cancelled, 4,338,444 Ordinary Shares at an average
price of 2603 pence per share for a consideration, inciuding expenses, of $183 million. The excess of the consideration over the
nominal value has been charged against the profit and loss account reserve.

Share options
! A total of 3,593,062 shares were issued during the year in respect of share options. Details of movements in the number of shares
i under option are shown in Note 33, details of options granted to Directors are shown in Note 34.

Financial Statements
Notes relating to the Financial Statements

Allotted, cailed-up
Authorised and fully paid

1999 1999 1998

denomination of share capital : B e T 4187

B |
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Financial Statements
Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

: Percentage of voting
i At 31 December 1999 Country share capital held Principal activity

United Kingdom
Zeneca Limited £ngland 100# Research, production, marketing

AstraZeneca insurance Company Limited ~ England 10  Insurance and reinsurance underwriting

Astra Pharmaceuticals Ltd England 100 Research, production, marketing

Continental Europe
CASPSA .. FNCE o M00 . Production

© Laboratoires Astra France France 100 Production, marketing

© Zeneca Pharma S.A. e e TBICR 100 Research, production, marketing

| AstraGmbH . Germany 400 Development, production, marketing

. Zeneca Holding GmbH e Germany 100 . Prodution, marketing

e Y QO ......Marketir

| Astra Fz
- ZenecaSpA. My 100 Production, marketin

Laboratorio Astra Espana S.A. ) Spain 100 Production, marketing
Astra AB Sweden 99.7 Research and development,
... production, marketing |

| Astra Arcus AB SWEAEN it O L SEICN 2N development

 ASUADracOAB ... Sweden 10 ... RESEATCH and development

 AstraMassleAB o Sweden ey 190 ........Research and development

. Astra Production Chemicals AB
Astra Production Liquid Products AB Sweden 100 Production
. Astra Production Tablets AB  Sweden 100 . Produciton |

{ Astra Tech AB Sweden 100 Research and development, |
| ....production, marketing

AdvantaBY. oo TheNetherands 80t ... Processing and marketing of seeds
| Stauffer ChemicalBV,  TheNethedends 100 Production
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¢ At 31 December 1999

Country

Financial Statements

Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Percentage of voting
share capital/interest held

i The Americas

Zeneca Brasii Lida.

. AstraZeneca do Brasi Lida.
IPR Pharmaceuticals Inc.
| AstreZeneca P

! Salick Health Care, Inc.

Brazil

Brazil

Puerto Rico

UBA

USA

USA

LLanada

100

1w
LY. S
100 e

99.....................A..

1c0

100

Production, marketing
~ Production, marketing

. Research, production, marketing

Development, production, marketing

Provision of disease-specific

. healthcare services

Zeneca Holdings Inc.

© Asia, Africa & Australasia

Astra (Wuxi) Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.

| ZenecaAsiaPacificitd.
| AstraJapanltd R
Zeneca K.K.

Zeneca Yakuhin K.K.

Japan

Japan

UAustrafia
L N
JHongKONg

o JBRAN e d OO e

90
TO0
100 s

100
60

Production, marketing -

. Research, production, marksting

Production, marketing

Production, marketing

Producticn, marketing

i # shares held directly
1 equity accounted joint venture

ASTRAZENEGA - ANNUAL REPCRT AND FORM 20-F 1999

Production !

The companies and other entities listed above are those whose results or financial position principally affected the figures shown in
. the group’s annual financial statements. A fult list of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates will be annexed to the Company's
next annual return fited with the Registrar of Companigs. The country of registration or incorporation is stated alongside each

i company. The accounting dates of principal subsidiaries and associates are 31 December, except for Salick Health Care, Inc.
which is 30 November. AstraZeneca operates through 324 subsidiary companies. Products are manufactured in some 20 countries
worldwide and are sold in over 100 countries,

Principal activity

_Production

_Praduction |
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Financial Statements
Additional information for US investors

Differences between UK and US accounting principles

The accompanying consolidated financial statements included in this report are prepared in accordance with UK GAAF. Certain
significant differences betwean UK GAAP and US GAAP which alfect AstraZeneca’s net income and shareholders’ equity are set out
below.

Purchase accounting adjustments
Under UK GAAP the merger of Astra and Zeneca has been accounted for as a ‘merger of equals’ {posling-of-interests). Under US
GAAP the merger has been accounted for as the acquisition of Astra by Zeneca using 'purchase accounting’. Under purchase

accounting, the cost of the investment is calculated at the market value of the shares issued together with other incidental costs and

the assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are recorded at fair value. As a result of the fair value exercise, increases in the values
of Astra’s tangible fixed assets and inventory were recognised and values attributed to their in-process research and development,
existing products and assembled work force, together with appropriate deferred taxation effects. The difference between the cost of

investment and the fair value of the assets and liabilities of Astra has been recorded as goodwill. The amount allocated to in-process

research and development is required, by US GAAP, to be expensed immediately in the first reporting pericd after the business
combination. Fair value adjustments to the recorded amount of inventory have been expensed in the period the inventory was

utilised and additional amortisation and depreciation have also been recorded in respect of the fair value adjustments to tangible and

intangible assets and the resulting goadwill. Pre-acquisition results of Astra are excluded from US GAAP net income.

In the consolidated financial statements prepared under UK GAAP, goodwill arising on acquisitions made pricr to 1 January
1998 accounted for under the purchase method has been eliminated against shareholders’ equity, whilst under US GAAP this
goodwilt {after allocations 1o the fair value of tangible and intangible assets) is required to be capitalised and amortised. Under
the requirements of UK Financial Reporting Standard 10 'Goodwill and Intangible Assets’, goodwill on acquisitions made after
1 January 1998 is capitalised and amortised over its estimated useful life which is generally presumed not to exceed 20 years.
UK GAAP requires that on subsequent disposal or termination of a previously acquired business, any goodwill previously taken
directly to shareholders’ equity is then charged in the income statement against the profit or loss on disposal or termination.

For the purpose of the adjustments to US GAAP inciuded below, goodwill {including that capitalised under UK GAAP) is being
amortised through the income statement over the estimated useful lives assigned to each individual acquisition. At 31 December
1999, these lives varied between 5 years and 40 years with a weighted average life of approximately 28 years. |dentifiable intangible
assets, which principally include patents, “know-how” and product registratfons. are amortised over their estimated useful lives
which vary between 4 years and 40 years with a weighted average life of approximately 16 years.

At 31 December 1999 and 1998, shareholders’ eguity includes capitalised goodwill of $15,793m and $1,480m respectively {net
of amortisation and impairment of $1,845m and $658m) and capitalised identifiable intangible assets of $13,825m and $314m
respectively (net of amortisation and impairment of $1,439m and $86m). The carrying value of geodwill is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Provision is made where
there is a permanent impairment to the carrying value of capitalised goodwiil and intangible assets. Goodwill on businesses
disposed of is charged 1o the gain or loss on disposal.

On disposal of a business, the gain or loss under US GAAP may differ from that under UK GAAP due principally to goodwils
capitalised and amortised, together with the appropriate share of other differences between UK and US accounting principles
recognised previously.

Capitalisation of interest
AstraZeneca does not capitalise interest in its financial statements. US GAAP requires interest incurred as part of the cost of
constructing fixed assets to be capitalised and amortised over the life of the asset.

Dividends
Under UK GAAP ordinary share dividends proposed are provided for in the year in respect of which they are recommended by
tne Board of Directors for approval by the shareholders. Under US GAAP such dividends are not provided for until declared by

the Board.
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Financial Statements
Additional information for US investors

- Differences between UK and US accounting principles (continued)

. Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided on a full liability basis under US GAAP, which permits deferred tax assets to be recognised if
their realisation is considered 16 be more likely than not; under UK GAAP, provision is made for deferred taxation only if there
is reasonable evidence that such deferred taxation will be payable in the foreseeable future.

Pension and post-retirement benefits
i There are four main differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP in accounting for pension costs:

(i) US GAAP requires that plan assets are valued by reference to their fair market values whereas UK GAAP permits an

alternative measurement of assats which, in the case of the main United Kingdom retirement pian, is on the basis of the
discounted present value of expected future income;

(i) US GAAP requires measurements of plan assets and obligations to be made as at the date of the financial statements or a

date not more than three months prior to that date. Under UK GAAPR, calculations may be based on the results of the latest
actuarial valuation;

(i) US GAAP mandates a particular actuarial methed - the projected unit credit method - and requires that each significant

assumption necessary 1o determine annual pension cost reflects best estimates solely with regard to that individual
assumption. UK GAAP does not mandate a particular method, but requires that the method and assumptions taken as a
whole should be compatible and lead to the actuary’s best estimate of the cost of providing the benefits promised; and

under US GAAP, a negative pension cost may arise where a significant unrecognised net asset or gain exists at the time of
implementation. This is required to be amortised on a straight-line basis over the average remaining service period of
employees. Under UK GAAFP, AstraZeneca’s policy is not to recognise pension credits in its financial statements unless a
refund of, or reduction in, contributions is likely.

=

© Restructuring costs

Under UK GAAP, provisions are made for restructuring costs once a detailed formal plan is in place and valid expectations have
been raised in those affected that the restructuring will be carried out. US GAAP requires a number of specific criteria to be met
before such costs can be recognised as an expense. Among these are he reguirements that the costs incurred are incrementat to
other costs incurred by the company, or represent amounts 10 be incurred under contractual obligations which are not associated
with or do not benefit activities that will be continued. Also, all sigrificant actions arising from a restructuring and their completion
dates must be identified by the balance sheet date. To the extent that restructuring costs are related to the activities of the acquired
company, US GAAP aliows them to be recognised as a liability upon acquisition.

Software costs
i Under UK GAAP, AstraZeneca expenses all software costs. Under US GAAR, with effect from 1 January 1999, certain of these costs
are required to be capitalised and amortised aver three years.

: Foreign exchange

Under UK GAAP, unrealised gains and losses on foreign currency transactions to hedge anticipated, but not firmly committed,
foreign currency transactions may be deferred and accounted for at the same time as the anticipated iransactions. Under US GAAP
such deferral is not permitted except in certain defined circumstances.

ASTRAZENECA - ANNUAL REPORT AND FORM 20-F 1699
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Financial Statements
Additional information for US investors

i Ditferences between UK and US accounting principles (continued)

Current assets and liabilities

Current assets under UK GAAP include amounts which fall due after more than one year, Under US GAAP such assets would be
reclassified as non-current assets. Borrowings under UK GAAP are classified according to the maturity of the financial instrument,
while under US GAAR, certain borrowings would be ¢lassified according to the maturity of the available back-up facility. Provisions
for liabilities and charges under UK GAAP include amounts due within one year which would be reclassified to current liabilities
under US GAAP. In addition, provisions would be shown as part of amounts payable and accrued liabilities due after one year.

Statement of cash flows: Basis of preparation

AstraZeneca’s Statement of Group Cash Flow is prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Financial Beporting Standard 1“FRS
1 (Revised 1998)", whose objective and principles are simitar to those set out in SFAS No.95, “Statement of Cash Flows”. The
principal differences between the standards relate to classification and also that the UK GAAP cash flow statement combines the
cash flow statements of Astra and Zeneca for all pericds whilst the US GAAP cash flow statements includes the cash flows of Astra
only from the date of acquisition. Under FRS 1 (Revised 1996), the Company presents its cash flows for (a) operating activities; (b)
dividends received from joint ventures and associates; (c) returns on investments and servicing of finance; {d) tax paid; (e} capital
expenditure and financial investment; (f) acguisitions and disposals; (g) dividends paid to shareholders; (h) management of liquid
resources; and (}) financing. SFAS No.95 requires only three categories of cash fiow activity being (a) operating; (b) investing; and {)
! financing.

Cash flows from taxation, returns on investments and servicing of finance and dividends received from joint ventures and associates
i under FAS 1 {Revised 1996) would be included as operating activities under SFAS No.95; capital expenditure and financial
¢ tnvestment and acauisitions and disposals would be included as investing activities; and distributions would be included as a

financing activity under SFAS No.95. Under FRS 1 (Revised 1996} cash comprises cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand,

less overdrafts repayable on demand; and fiquid resources comprise current asset investments held as readily disposable stores of
value. Under SFAS No.95 cash equivalents, comprising shon-term highly liquid investments, generally with original maturities of
three months or less, are grouped together with cash; short-term borrowings repayable on demand would not be included within
cash and cash equivalents and movements on those borrowings would be included in financing activities.

| New accounting standards adopted

During January 1998, the American Institute of Certified Pubiic Accountants (AICPA) issued Statement of Position 98-1 'Accounting
for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use’ ('SOP 98-17). SOP 98-1 becarmne effective for all fiscal
years beginning after 15 December 1998 and provides guidance on when costs incurred for internal use computer software are and
are not capitalised. AstraZeneca has adopted SOP 98-1.

i New accounting standards not yet adopted

SFAS No. 133 - ‘Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities’ was issued in Jung 1998 and establishes accounting
and reporting standards for derivative instruments and hedging activities, It is effective for fiscal years beginning after 15 June 2000.
AstraZeneca has not yet determined the effect on the financial statements of the adoption of the standard.

122
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Divestr

. Net income from discontinued operations

! Net income

i Net income, as shown in the consclidated statements

Exceptional items after tax

Financial Statements
Additional information for US investors

. Differences between UK and US accounting principles (continued)
The foliowing is a summary of the material adjustments to net income and shareholders' equity which would have been required if
US GAAP had been applied instead of UK GAAPR

(1,587) 58 -

e ee1 2570
{413) (1,427)  (1,374)

: Pre-acquisition results of Astra

Adjustments to conform to US GAAP

Purchase accounting adjustments (including goodwill
i and intangible)

...n-process research and development | e

. lnventory step-up

Amortisation and other acquisition adiustments

L OETS

730 o H184 1,196

B2} - =
,,,,,, (7s9) - -

(308} T ”

On fair values of Astra

Others

| Restructuring costs

Unrealised losses on foreign exchange and others

Capitalisation, less disposals and amortisation of interest e B

5 B2,

547 - -
M7 (8 20 ]

Net income/(loss) in accordance with US GAAP

@ - 20
(3,539) 1,036 1,142

Weighted average number of $0.25 Ordinary Shares
i inissue {millions of shares)

Dilutive impact of share options outstanding (millions of shares)

el income/(loss) from continuing operations

. Gain on disposal of Specialties business 8

4071} T .83
e 240 809
24 T

1,589 ...98C . 948
3 4 3

Diluted weighted average number of $0.25 Ordinary Shares

1,572 954 951

i in accordance with US GAAP {millions of shares)

Net income/{loss) per $0.25 Ordinary Share and ADS
. Inaccordance with US GAAP = basic (8) e

- diluted (8}

(2.25) 1.0¢ 1.20
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Financial Statements
Additional information for US investors

i Differences between UK and US accounting principles (continued)

Net income/(loss) from continuing operations per $0.25 Ordinary Share and ADS

. inaccordance with USGAAP - basic(® oo A2B0) 084 088
Net income from discontinued operations per $0.25 Ordinary Share and ADS

; in accordance with US GAAP - basic(® ... 907 025 082
E — diluted ($)_ S 7 0.07 - 0325 7 0.32

Statement of Comprehensive Income

The group’s total recognised gains and losses under UK GAAP differ from the net income for the year {as set out in the group profit

and loss account) in respect of foreign currency translation adjustments (net of related tax) and net unreaiised gains and losses on
' short-term investments amounting to an aggregate loss of $630m for the year ended 31 December 1999 (1998 loss. $181m, 1997

loss of $768m). The foreign currency translation adjustments are set out in the statement of total recognised gains and losses. The

unrealised gains on short-term investments are included in other movements in the statement of total recognised gains and losses

£ and amounted tc $nil (1998 $2m, 1997 $1m) for the year.

The cumulative balance of net unrealised losses on short-term investments amounted to $nil (1998 $nil, 1997 $2m). The
{ cumulative exchange gains and losses (net of related tax) on the translation of foreign currency financial statements under UK
i GAAP are set out in the following note.

Years ended 31 December

1599 1998 1997
D BEANCE BT JANUAIY | et ATOSY L ABOQ) 169
Movernent in year {630) {183) (769)
| Balance at 31 December {1,413) (783) (600)
Stock compensation

In the group’s financial statements prepared under UK GAAP, no cost is accrued for the share options awarded to employees under
the Zeneca 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme and the Zeneca Savings-Related Share Option Scheme as the exercise price is :
i equivalent to the market value at the date of grant. Under US GAAP the cost is calculated as the difference between the option price

and the market price at the date of grant or, for variable plans, at the end of the reporting pericd. Under the requirements of APB
Cpinion No. 25 any compensation cost would be amortised over the period from the date the options are granted to the date they
are first exercisable. SFAS No.123 sets out an alternative methodolegy for recognising the compensation cost based on the fair
value at grant date. Had the group adopted this methodology, the effect on net incerme under US GAAP is shown below.

1999 1997

. A3:539)

Compensation cost {16}

Prc forma net income {3,555} 1,130
Net income per $0.25 Ordinary Share and ADS under US GAAP (basic):
Asreported N e e k2e2€) 108 120
Pro forma {2.27) 1.08 1.19
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; Dividend yield

| Expected lives : 1994 Scheme

Shareholders’ equity

i Total sharehalders’ equity under UK GAAP

Financial Statements
Additional information for US investors

. Differences between UK and US accounting principles (continued)
i The fair value of options granted is estimated, based on the stock price at the grant date, using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following assumptions:

1999 1998 1997

L 30% o 20% 0 2.0%
e 200% 0 200%  200%
.BDyears

EOyears  6.0years

: SAYE Scheme

4.4 years 4.6 years 4.6 years

The options are based on existing AstraZensca shares and therefore have no dilution effect. Nor do aliocated options entail any
further expense undertaking for the Company. Subsequent to the effective date of the merger no share options have been awarded
under the Astra Shareholder Vialue Incentive Plan.

In the initial phase-in peried, the effects of applying SFAS No.123 for disclosing compensation cost may not be representative of the
effects on pro forma net income and earnings per share for future years.

| Assets of Astra before acquisition

Adjustments {e conform to US GAAP

e DOOAW

. Jengiole and intangible fixed assets .

Others

| Deferedtaxation

. OnfarvaueofAsta

Pension expense
| Post-retirement benefits/plan amendment

i Software costs capitalised

. Dividend

{Others

. Purchase accounting adjustments (including goodwill and infangiles) e

A
480 1,167
151 181

B4 as
(172) (241) |

en ey

Shareholders’' equity in accordance with US GAAP

33,735 5,558
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Financial Statements
Additional information for US investors

i Differences between UK and US accounting principles (continued)

Acquisitions

The adjustments to revalue the assets and liabilities of Astra to fair value and allocate the excess purchase consideration over
fair value of net assets acquired, based on managsment best estimates of fair value, are as foltows:

: Total purchase consideration ..o

| BoOKValug OTASIES ABLASSBIS oo B335,

| Estimated excess fairvalue of Astasinventory @ 828
Estimated excess fair vélue of Astra’s property, plant and equipment (a) 288
Estimated fair value attributed to other intangible assets e e e B TELTOB
| Estimated fair value of in-process research and development projects oo () 8315
Deferred tax liabitities related to purchase price agdjustments {3,765)
Goodwil {c) 14,538

(@) The excess of fair value over book value of Astra’s reported net tangible assets is related primarily to buildings and land
: and inventory.

Fair values attributed to other intangible assets relate to Astra’s product rights on its existing products and Astra's
marketing and R&D warkfarce. The fair value has been determined based on risk-adjusted discounted net future cash flow
analysis for its current approved product portfolio which includes all existing approved products within Astra’s therapeutic
areas and supplemental products in the development process which build upon existing chemical entities within the existing
therapeutic areas and which are in late stages of development. The estimates of the weighted average useful life of the
product rights are based on the future period over which the substantial majority of the estimated net future cash flow value
is expected to be realised.

Goodwill is being amortised over 20 years. .

The amount of total consideration allocated to Astra’s in-process research and development projects {“iPRD") has been
estimated using estimates of the status and prospects for the various research and development projects within Astra's
research and development portfolio as contained in its strategic plans.The IPRD estimates relate only to projects involvirg
NCE research and development and do not include projects involving suppiemental new drug applications based on existing
preducts or preduct extension development activity. The methedology used in deriving the estimated value of IPRD was: {j) to
project net future cash flows for prioritised NCESs in the current research and development portfolio based on estimated current
therapeutic demand and price assumptions, less relevant anticipated expenses, (i) to risk-adjust the projected net future cash
flows for likelihood of future realisation based on Astra’s historical experience-derived probability factors for NCE success, and
(i} to discount the risk-cash flows was based on the first ten years of the post-launch expected life cycle attributed to each
project. In determiring the final value allocated to IPRD, the result of the above valuation methodclogy was further reduced
based on the percentage of R&D activity undertaken to date compared to total B&D activity required to complete the project.

i
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Pension and post-retirement benefits

i retirement benefit obligations, under SFAS No. 132 are as follows:

i Change in projected benefit obligation

{ Bervice cost

interest cost

| Actuarial foss (gain)

Acquisitions and disposals

Settlement and curtaiiment

Other movements including exchange

| Benefit obligation at beginning ofyear

Financial Statements
Additional information for US investors

! Differences between UK and US accounting principles (continued)

For the purposes of US GAAP, the pension costs of the major UK retirement plan and of the retirement plans of the major non-UK
supsidiaries have been restated in the following tables in accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 132. These pians comprise
a substantiai portion of the actuarial liabilities of all AstraZeneca retirement plans. The changes in projected benefit cbligations, plan
assets and details of the funded status of these retirement plans, together with the changes in the accumulated other post-

Other post-retirement
Pension benefits benefits

1998

5199  as77 22 219
147 141 9 5
288 se w15
20 A0 T2
R R o =S
B D A e N

O S .. S
B SN . F
esny okese a0
(111 4 - 4

5,036 5,198 224 222

Benefit obligation at end of year

¢ Change in plan assets

| Acquisitions and disposais

Settlement and curtaifment

. Benefits paid

Pension benefits

4346 3900
805 437
432 198
20 2

242 -
L fesny (236)

{89) 4

Other movements, including exchange

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

5,035 4,346

Pricr service cost not recognised

- Unrecognised netloss

e
110 163
18 60

Unrecegnised net obligation on implementation

(178} (268)

| Adjustments ta recognise minimum liability

: Accumulated other comprehensive income

6

- (15)

| Accrued benefit liability

{178) (346} ;

There were no plan assets in respect of other post-retirement benefits.
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Additional informaticn for US investors

- Differences between UK and US accounting principles (continued)

At 31 December 1999, none of the main funds above had an accurnulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets. At 31
December 1999, the projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of the plan assets in respect of the
retirement plans above with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $4,407m, $3,948m and $3,579m,

i respectively.

Assurned discount rates and rates of increase in remuneration used in calcutating the projected benefit obligations together with
tong-term rates of return on plan assets vary according to the economic conditions of the country in which the retirement plans are
! situated. The weighted average rates used for calculation of year end benefit obligations and forecast benefit cost in the main
retirement plans and other benefit obligations for SFAS No, 132 purposes were as follows:

) Pension benefits Other post-retirement benefits

1999 1998 1997 1999 1998 1997
i Discount rate 5.7 5.7 7.0 7.2 6.4 7.0
Long-term rate of increase in remuneration 45 45 56  nia e _.Va
Expected long-term return on assels 6.3 6.8 8.3 n/a n/a n/a

The group has assumed a long-term rate of increase in healthcare costs of 7.5%, reducing to 5.5%.

Pension benefits Other post-retirement benefits

Net periadic cost

Service cost - present value of benefits’ ;
. acorungduring theyear L MT a8 BB

terest cost on projected be 284 .

. Net amortisation and deferral 69 64 79 - - -
| Net periodic cost for the year 298 199 123 10 20 23

It is estimated that a 1 percentage point change in the weighted average healthcare costs trend wouid have the following effects on
the accumulated benefit obligation and net periodic cost at 31 December 1999:

1 percentage point

: Accumulated benefit obligation e g0 o

Net periodic 'cost 1 (1)

Restatement of cash flow in accordance with US GAAP

Cash inflow from operating activities 1,698 1,493 1,315

Cash outflow from investing activites Coo ey 808 879)
| Cash outflow from financing activities {1,407) (773) 619) |
{Decrease)/increase in cash in the period 67 {186) 121 |
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Companies House Report - Al

Corporate Shareholders Reports

Accounting Status: Subsidiary Undertaking

Operating Status: Active, Dormant,in Liquidation

03/04/00

Class of Capital Held By Held %
Full Name: 6979-ASP.SA, Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  France
Country of Registration France
Full Name: 7619 - A/T Agroprogress ‘A’ Shares Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Ukraine
Country of Registration Ukraine
Full Name: 5337 - Acorga Limited Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Bermuda
Country of Registration Bermuda
Full Name: 7133 - Agroinsumos, S.A. Bearer Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Guatemala
Country of Registration Guatemala
Full Name: 7132 - Agroguimicos Alpha S.A. Ordinary Stock Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Guatemala
Country of Registration Guatemala
Full Name: 6908 - Aktiebolaget Astromen Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden
Country of Registration Sweden .
Full Name: 6914 - Aktiebolaget Draco Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden
Country of Registration
Full Name: 6913 - Aktiebolaget Hassle Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden
Country of Registration Sweden
Full Name: 6901 - Aktiebolaget Medena Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden
Country of Registration Sweden
Full Name: 6893 - Aktiebolaget Rila Subsidiary Undertaking 100
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Companies House Report - All

03/04/00

Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 5544 - Ambulatory Diagnositc Testing Services, Inc. [Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 7136 - Anyl-Mex S.A. de C.V. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Mexico

Country of Registration Mexico

Full Name: 5339 - Arbil International Insurance Limited Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 51
Country of Incorporation: British Virgin Islands

Country of Registration Cayman Islands

Full Name: 7332 - Asterpharm Inc Subsidiary Undertaking 1C0
Country of Incorporation: Taiwan, Republic of China

Country of Registration Taiwan, Republic of China

Full Name: 7319 - Astra (WUX1) Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd., Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: China - People's Republic of China

Country of Registration China - People's Republic of China

Full Name: 6892 - Astra AB Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Fuli Name: 6929 - Astra Arcus AB Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 5566 - Astra Arcus USA, Inc. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 7264 - Astra Biochemicais Pvt. Ltd., Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: India

Country of Registration India

Full Name: 6895 - Astra Biotech AB Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 6988 - Astra Chemicals Benelux B.V. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
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Country of Incorporation:

03/04/00

Germany

Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND

Country of Registration HOLLAND

Full Name: 6986 - Astra Continent B.V., Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND

Country of Registration HOLLAND

Full Name: 6928 - Astra Draco AB Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 6919 - Astra Export & Trading AB Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 6975 - Astra Farmaceutici S.p.A. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: italy

Country of Registration ltaly

Full Name: 6909 - Astra Fondaktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 6980 - Astra France Production Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: France

Country of Registration

Full Name: 6994 - Astra GmbH Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Germany

Country of Registration Germany

Full Name: 6927 - Astra Hassle AB Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 7275 - Astra Japan Ltd Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Japan

Country of Registration Japan

Full Name: 6923 - Astra Lakemedel AB Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 6976 - Astra Luxembourg s.a.r.l. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
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Country of Incorporation:
Country of Registration

China - People's Repubiic of China

Country of Registration Luxembourg

Full Name: 6990 - Astra Management Resources Ag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Switzerland

Country of Registration Switzerland

Full Name: 6905 - Astra Middle East AB Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 6899 - Astra Nordic AB Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 6998 - Astra Norge AS Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Norway

Country of Registration Norway

Full Name: 6926 - Astra Pain Control AB Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 6911 - Astra Pharma AB Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 6992 - Astra Pharmaceutica AG Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Switzerland

Country of Registration Switzerland

Full Name: 6987 - Astra Pharmaceutica B.V. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND

Country of Registration HOLLAND

Full Name: 7176 - Astra Pharmaceutical (Malaysia) SDN BHD Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Malaysia

Country of Registration Malaysia

Full Name: 6792 - Astra Pharmaceutical Production Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 7344 - Astra Pharmaceuticals (China) Subsidiary Undertaking 100

03/04/00
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Country of Incorporation:

03/04/00

Ausiralia

Full Name: 7326 - Astra Pharmaceuticals (HK) Ltd Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Hong Kong
Country of Registration Hong Kong
Full Name: 6942 - Astra Pharmaceuticals (Poland) sp.z.0.0 Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Poland
Country of Registration Poland
Full Name: 7405 - Astra Pharmaceuticals (Pty) L.td Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  South Africa
Country of Registration South Africa
Full Name: 6917 - Astra Pharmaceuticals AB Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden
Country of Registration Sweden
Full Name: 4186 - Astra Pharmaceuticals Holdings Pty Ltd. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Australia
Country of Registration Australia
Full Name: 6945 - Astra Pharmaceuticals Kft Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Hungary
Country of Registration Hungary
Full Name: 6984 - Astra Pharmaceuticals Ltd., Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: England
Country of Registration England

4182 - Astra Pharmaceuticals Productivity
Full Name: Superannuation Pty Ltd Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Australia
Country of Registration Australia
Full Name: 4188 - Astra Pharmaceuticals Pty Ltd Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Australia
Country of Registration Australia
Full Name: 6943 - Astra Pharmaceuticals s.r.o Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Czech-Republic
Country of Registration Czech-Republic
Full Name: 4181 - Astra Pharmaceuticals Superannuation Pty Itd Subsidiary Undertaking 100
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Full Name: 6960 - Astra Portuguesa Lda Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Portugal

Country of Registration Portugal

Full Name: 6898 - Astra Preduction Chemicals Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 6897 - Astra Production Liquid Products Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 6896 - Astra Production Tablets Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Fuli Name: 5565 - Astra Research Center Boston, Inc. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of incorporation: United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 6974 - Astra Simesa SpA Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: |taly

Country of Registration Italy

Full Name: 6793 - Astra Sverige AB Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 68794 - Astra Synthelabo Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 6944 - Astra Tech Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: France

Country of Registration France

Full Name: 8959 - Astra Tech Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of incorporation: Austria

Country of Registration Austria

Full Name: 6939 - Astra Tech A/S Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Denmark

Country of Registration Denmark

03/04/00
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Full Name: 6918 - Astra Tech Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 6932 - Astra Tech AS Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Norway

Country of Registration

Full Name: 6933 - Astra Tech B.V. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND

Country of Registration HOLLAND

Full Name: 6916 - Astra Tech GmbH Subsidiary Undertaking 50
Country of Incorporation: Germany

Country of Registration Germany

Full Name: 5567 - Astra Tech Ltd Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: England

Country of Registration England

Full Name: 5568 - Astra Tech Oy Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Finland

Country of Registration Finland

Full Name: 6962 - Astra Tech S.A. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Spain

Country of Registration Spain

Full Name: 5570 - Astra Tech, Inc. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 5561 - Astra U.S. Holdings Corporation Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America

Country of Registration

Full Name: 5562 - Astra USA, Inc. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America

Country of Registration

Full Name: 6902 - Astra-Sjuco Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 5667 - Astra-Thai Holdings Subsidiary Undertaking 100
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United States of America
United States of America

Country of Incorporation:

03/04/00

Sweden

Full Name: 6985 - AstraPharm Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: England

Country of Registration England

Fuli Name: 6999 - AstraZeneca A/S Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Denmark

Country of Registration Denmark

Full Name: 7117 - AstraZeneca do Brasil Limitada Quotas Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Brazil

Country of Registration Brazil

Full Name: 7358 - AstraZeneca (Thailand) Ltd Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Thailand

Country of Registration Thailand

Full Name: 6440 - AstraZeneca A.G, Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Switzerland

Country of Registration Switzerland

Full Name: 6949 - AstraZeneca AS Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Norway

Country of Registration Norway

Full Name: 5668 - AstraZeneca Canada Inc., Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Canada

Country of Registration Canada

Full Name: 7170 - AstraZeneca Colombia S.A. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Colombia

Country of Registration Colombia

Full Name: 6912 - AstraZeneca Development AB Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 6150 - AstraZeneca Epsilon B.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND

Country of Registration HOLLAND

Full Name: 6145 - AstraZeneca Holding AktieBolag Ordinary Parent 100
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Sweden

Country of Incorporation:

03/04/00

Republic of Ireland

Full Name: 6982 - AstraZeneca Holding France SAS Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: France
Country of Registration France
Full Name: 6267 - AstraZeneca Holdings A/S Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Denmark
Country of Registration Denmark
Full Name: 6226 - AstraZeneca Holdings B.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND
Country of Registration HOLLAND
Full Name: 7336 - AstraZeneca llac Sanayi Ve Ticaret A.S. Subsidiary Undertaking 92
Country of Incorporation: Turkey
Country of Registration Turkey
Full Name: 8044 - AstraZeneca Insurance Company Limited Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United Kingdom
Country of Registration England
Full Name: 6910 - AstraZeneca International Holdings AB Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden
Country of Registration Sweden
Full Name: 7327 - AstraZeneca Korea Ltd Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: South Korea
Country of Registration South Korea
Full Name; 4189 - AstraZeneca Limited Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: New Zealand
Country of Registration New Zealand
Full Name: 6305 - AstraZeneca Osterreich GmbH Capital Stock Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Austria
Country of Registration Austria
Full Name: 6995 - AstraZeneca QY. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Finland
Country of Registration Finland

6983 - AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals (Ireland)
Full Name: Limited Subsidiary Undertaking 100
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Republic of Ireland

Country of Incorporation:
Country of Registration

United States of America
United States of America

Full Name: 7270 - AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals (Phils.) Inc., Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  Philippines

Country of Registration Philippines

Full Name: 5563 - AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals, LP Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 6971 - AstraZeneca S A. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Greece

Country of Registration Greece

Full Name: 7960 - AstraZeneca S.A. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Argentina

Country of Registration Argentina

Full Name: 7318 - AstraZeneca Singapore Pte Ltd Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  Singapore

Country of Registration Singapore

Full Name: 7330 - ASTRAZENECA TAIWAN LIMITED Common Stock Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Taiwan, Republic of China Preferred Stock

Country of Registration Taiwan, Republic of China

Full Name: 1002 - AstraZeneca UK Limited Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom Preference

Country of Registration United Kingdom

Full Name: 5564 - AstraZeneca, LP Subsidiary Undertaking 99
Country of Incorporation: United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 5569 - AstraZeneca, S A . de CV. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Mexico

Country of Registration Mexico

Full Name: 5310 - Atkemix forty Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorperation:  United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 5286 - Atkemix Nine Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100

03/04/00
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Country of Incorporation:

03/04/00

United States of America

Full Name: 5301 - Atkemix Ten Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 5329 - Atkemix Thirty-Seven Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 5303 - Atkemix Twelve Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 5543 - Aurora Medical Supplies Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 3302 - Avlex Limited Cum Preference 10% Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United Kingdom Ordinary
Country of Registration England
Full Name: 5336 - AZ Reinsurance Limited Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  British Virgin Islands
Country of Registration Cayman Islands
Full Name: 3348 - Care Laboratories Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United Kingdom
Country of Registration England
Full Name: 3350 - Care Products Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom
Country of Registration England
Full Name: 8938 - Carl Schneider ApS Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Denmark
Country of Registration
Full Name: 5302 - CCC Management Company of California, Inc. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America

5309 - CCC Management Company of New York,
Full Name: Inc. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
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Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 5305 - CCC Management Company, Inc. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 5553 - CCC of North Miami Beach Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 5552 - CCCLP Corp Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 7115 - CCMB Agrochemicals SDN. BHD Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 51
Country of Incorporation: Malaysia
Country of Registration Malaysia
Full Name: 5541 - Century Dialysis Corporation Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America

5555 - Comprehensive Cancer Centers - West Valley
Full Name: Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 5511 - Comprehensive Cancer Centers Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of incorporation:  United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America

5549 - Comprehensive Cancer Centers, Inc - Kansas
Full Name: City Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America

5547 - Comprehensive Cancer Centers, Inc -
Full Name: Philadelphia Commeoen Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America

5036 - Comprehensive Cancer Corporation of New
Full Name: York Inc Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
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Country of Incorporation:
Country of Registration

Sweden
Sweden

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 6989 - Copthorne Insurance Company Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Switzerland

Country of Registration Switzerland

Full Name: 5530 - Corpus Christi Holdings Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 6903 - Crafon Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 5546 - Day Care Hospitals, Inc. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 5548 - Desert Dialysis Clinic, Inc. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 6922 - Draco Lakemede! Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 6996 - DuraNor AS, Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Norway

Country of Registration Norway

Full Name: 6906 - Durapharm Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 5506 - GB BIOSCIENCES CORPORATION Common Stock Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 5505 - GB BIOSCIENCES HOLDINGS INC. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 6920 - Hassle Lakemedel Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100

03/04/00
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Full Name: 6894 - Hassle Research Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Regisftration

Full Name: 8035 - 1.C. Insurance Heoldings Limited Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 51
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom

Country of Registration England

Full Name: 3330 - IC Insurance Limited Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 51
Country of Incorporation:  United Kingdom

Country of Registration England

Full Name: 6904 - Imeco Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden

Country of Registration Sweden

Full Name: 5651 - Infucare California, Inc. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 5550 - Infusx, Inc. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 5542 - [ntercenter Cancer Research Group Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 7137 - IPR Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Puerto Rico

Country of Registration Puerto Rico

Full Name: 7131 - ISK BIOCIENCIAS, S.A. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Guatemala

Country of Registration Guatemala

Full Name: 7134 - ISK BIOSCIENCES AGROEX, S.A. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Honduras

Country of Registration Honduras

Full Name: 7171 - ISK BIOSCIENCES C.A. Caommon Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Ecuador

Country of Registration Ecuador

Full Name: 7150 - |ISK BIOSCIENCES COMERCIAL LTDA Quotas Subsidiary Undertaking 160
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Uruguay

Country of Incorporation: Brazil

Country of Registration Brazil

Fuil Name: 5205 - ISK BIOSCIENCES LIMITED Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Canada

Country of Registration Canada

Full Name: 7172 - ISK BIOSCIENCES LTDA Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Colombia

Country of Registration Colombia

Full Name: 7162 - ISK BIOSCIENCES, C.A. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Venezuela

Country of Registration Venezuela

Full Name: 7140 - ISK BIOSCIENCES, S.A. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Costa Rica

Country of Registration Costa Rica

Full Name: 7182 - ISK BIOSCIENCES, S.A. Nominal Shares Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of incorporation: Peru

Country of Registration Peru

Full Name: 6105 - lvamed GmbH Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Germany

Country of Registration Germany

Full Name: 4183 - J Glover Distributors Pty Limited Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Australia

Country of Registration Australia

Full Name: 4171 - J Glover Laboratories Pty Limited Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Australia

Country of Registration Australia

Full Name: 6981 - Laboratories Astra France Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: France

Country of Registration France

Full Name: 6973 - Laboratorios Astra Espana, S.A. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  Spain

Country of Registration

Full Name: 7194 - Laboratorios Astra SA Subsidiary Undertaking 100
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Country of Incorporation:
Country of Registration

Indonesia
Indonesia

Full Name: 8062 - Marlow Foods Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United Kingdom

Country of Registration England

Full Name: 6216 - Mogen Beheer B.V. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND

Country of Registration HOLLAND

Full Name: 6215 - Mogen Licensing B.V. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND

Country of Registration HOLLAND

Full Name: 5557 - Multi-Organ Transplant Hospitals, Inc. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 6978 - N.V. Astra Pharmaceuticals S.A. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Belgium

Country of Registration Belgium

Full Name: 6977 - N.V. Vitalpharma Astra 8.A. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Belgium

Country of Registration Belgium

Full Name: 8094 - Novacote Fiexpack Lid Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom

Country of Registration England

Full Name: 6332 - Novastra Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Portugal

Country of Registration

Full Name: 7336 - P.T. AstraZeneca Indonesia Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 95
Country of Incorporation: indonesia

Country of Registration Indonesia

Full Name: 7338 - P.T. Zeneca Agri Products Indonesia Ordinary Stock Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Indonesia

Country of Registration Indonesia

Full Name: 7376 - P.T. Zeneca Colours Indonesia Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100

03/04/00
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United States of America

Full Name: 6108 - Pharma-Stern GmbH Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Germany
Country of Registration
Full Name: 4170 - Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co Pty Limited Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Australia
Country of Registration Australia
Full Name: 6991 - Pharmastra AG Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Switzerland
Country of Registration
Full Name: 3151 - Plant Protection Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United Kingdom
Country of Registration England
Full Name: 3392 - Plant Science Lid Deferred Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorperation: United Kingdom Ordinary
Country of Registration England
Full Name: 6109 - Promed Arzneimittel GmbH Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Germany
Country of Registration
Full Name: 6104 - Rhein-Pharma GmbH Ordinary Stock ‘A’ Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Germany
Country of Registration Germany
Full Name:; 5403 - Salick Health Care Holdings Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorperation:  United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America

Callable Puttable
Full Name: 5560 - Salick Health Care, Inc. Common Stock Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America Common
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 5556 - Salicknet Inc. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 5545 - SHC Laboratories, Inc. Common Stack Suhsidiary Undertaking 100
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United States of America

Country of Incorporation:

03/04/00

United States of America

Full Name: 6129 - Solplant S.p.A. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Italy
Country of Registration ltaly
Fuli Name: 6128 - SOPRA S.A. Ordinary Stock Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: France
Country of Registration France
Full Name: 5554 - Specialty Hospitals Inc. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 3395 - Stahl GB Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United Kingdom
Country of Registration England
Full Name: 6171 - Stahl Polyvinyl International B.V. Ordinary Stock "A' Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND
Country of Registration HOLLAND
Full Name: 6335 - Stauffer Chemical B.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND
Country of Registration HOLLAND
Full Name: 5332 - Stauffer Chemical Co. Canada Limited Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Canada
Country of Registration Canada
Full Name: 8915 - Stauffer Chemical Company Trust Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 5320 - Stauffer Management Company Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
6078 - STUART - PRODUTOS FARMACEUTICOS,
Full Name: LDA Quotas Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Portugal
Country of Registration Portugal
-|Full Name: 5307 - Stuart Disease Management Services Inc Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
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United States of America

Full Name: 6218 - Stuart Pharma AB Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden
Country of Registration Sweden

7421 - Stuart Pharmaceuticals (South Africa) (Pty)
Full Name: Ltd _ Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  South Africa
Country of Registration South Africa
Full Name: 3303 - Stuart Pharmaceuticals Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United Kingdom
Country of Registration England
Fufl Name: 6900 - Swedish Graft Technique Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden
Country of Registration Sweden
Full Name: 6925 - Symbicom Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden
Country of Registration Sweden
Full Name: 5308 - The Breast Center, Inc Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 8921 - Tika Lakemedel Aktiebolag Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden
Country of Registration Sweden
Full Name: 5512 - Ushawl Inic. Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 1007 - Wilmington Pharmaceuticals Limited Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: England
Country of Registration United Kingdom
Full Name: 5502 - Z-Mont Insurance Company Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America

Registered Common

Full Name: 6281 - ZAO Zeneca Shares Subsidiary Undertaking 100
03/04/00
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Russian Federation
Russian Federation

Full Name: 1018 - Zenco (No 10) Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom
Country of Registration United Kingdom
Full Name: 1004 - Zenco (No 5) Lid Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom
Country of Registration United Kingdom
Full Name: 1017 - Zenco (No 8) Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United Kingdom
Country of Registration United Kingdom
Full Name: 1018 - Zenco {No 8) Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom
Country of Registration United Kingdom

5508 - ZENECA BIOSCIENCES HOLDING
Full Name: COMPANY Common NPV Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 7360 - Zeneca (China) Investment Company Limited |Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: China - People's Republic of China
Country of Registration China - People’'s Republic of China
Full Name: 6280 - Zeneca (CZ) s.r.o. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incerporation:  Czech-Republic
Country of Registration Czech-Republic
Full Name: 7166 - Zeneca (Malaysia) SON BHD Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Malaysia
Country of Registration Malaysia
Full Name: 6315 - Zeneca A.G. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Switzerland
Country of Registration Switzerland
Full Name: 6142 - Zeneca A/S Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Norway
Country of Registration Norway

03/04/00
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Portugal
Portugal

Full Name: 6143 - Zeneca AB Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Sweden
Country of Registration Sweden
Full Name: 5311 - Zeneca Ag Products Holdings Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 5312 - Zeneca Ag Products Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 7325 - Zeneca Agro Asiatic Limited Series A Subsidiary Undertaking 51
Country of Incorporation: Thailand Series B
Country of Registration Thailand
Full Name: 6087 - Zeneca Agro Austria GmbH Nominal Shares Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Germany
Country of Registration Germany
Full Name; 6006 - ZENECA Agro B.V., Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation; HOLLAND
Country of Registration HOLLAND
Full Name: 6090 - Zeneca Agro GmbH Nominal Shares Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Germany
Country of Registration Germany
Full Name: 6026 - Zeneca Agro Holding GrmbH Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Germany
Country of Registration Germany
Full Name: 6154 - Zeneca Agro N V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Belgium
Country of Registration Belgium
Full Name: 6518 - Zeneca Agro, S.A. Crdinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  Spain
Country of Registration Spain

6506 - Zeneca Agro-Produtos para a Agricultura,
Full Name: Limitada Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100

03/04/00
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Full Name: 7418 - ZENECA AGROCHEMICALS (PTY) LIMITED |Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  South Africa
Country of Registration South Africa
Fuill Name: 6007 - Zeneca Agrochemicals Alpha B.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND
Country of Registration HOLLAND
Full Name: 6008 - Zeneca Agrochemicals Beta B.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND
Country of Registration HOLLAND

6009 - Zeneca Agrochemicals International Holdings
Full Name: B.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND
Country of Registration HOILLAND
Full Name: 7260 - Zeneca Agrochemicals Limited Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: India
Country of Registration India
Fuli Name: 7408 - Zeneca Agrochemicals SA (PTY) Limited Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  South Africa
Country of Registration South Africa
Full Name: 6111 - Zeneca AS Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Denmark
Country of Registration Denmark

Non-Voting Deferred

Full Name: 7301 - Zeneca Asia Pacific Limited Share Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Hong Kong Ordinary
Country of Registration Hong Kong
Full Name: 4184 - Zeneca Australia Superannuation Pty Limited Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Australia
Country of Registration
Full Name: 6309 - ZENECA Austria GmbH Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of incorporation:  Austria
Country of Registration Austria

(3/04/00

Page 22 of 30



Companies House Report - All

Full Name: 6020 - Zeneca B.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND
Country of Registration HOLLAND
Full Name: 8914 - Zeneca Bioscience Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom
Country of Registration United Kingdom

5503 - ZENECA BIOSCIENCES AMERICAS
Full Name: CORPORATION Common NPV Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 7185 - Zeneca Biosciences de Mexico SA de CV Series B Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Mexico
Country of Registration Mexico

5504 - ZENECA BIOSCIENCES INTERNATIONAL
Full Name: CORPORATION Common NPV Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Fuli Name: 7263 - Zeneca Biosciences Private Limited Equity Shares Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorperation: India
Country of Registration India
Full Name: 5507 - ZENECA BIOSCIENCES PRODUCTS INC.  [Common NPV Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Nams: 7164 - ZENECA BRASIL LTDA Quotas Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Brazil
Country of Registration Brazil
Full Name: 7165 - Zeneca Chile S.A. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Chile
Country of Registration Chile :
Full Name: 5024 - ZENECA CORP. Common NPV Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Canada
Counftry of Registration Canada
Full Name: 7148 - Zeneca Costa Rica S.A. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  Costa Rica
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Country of Registration Costa Rica
Full Name: 5283 - Zeneca Delaware Holdings Inc. Commeon Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 7139 - Zeneca Dominicana, S.A. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 99.96
Country of Incorporation: Dominican Republic
Country of Registration Dominican Republic
Fuil Name: 1012 - Zeneca Employee Share Trust Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United Kingdom
Country of Registration England
Full Name: 6071 - Zeneca Especialidades S.A. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Spain
Country of Registration Spain
Full Name: 6219 - Zeneca Farma S.A. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  Spain
Country of Registration Spain

7161 - Zeneca Farmaceutica y Agroquimica Chile
Full Name: Ltda Unclassified Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Chile .
Country of Registration Chile
Full Name: 8910 - Zeneca Finance {Netherlands) Company Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom
Country of Registration England
Full Name: 8911 - Zeneca Finance Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom
Country of Registration England
Full Name: 5338 - Zeneca Foreign Sales Corporation Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Barbados
Country of Registration Barbados
Full Name: 6103 - Zeneca GmbH Crdinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Germany
Country of Registration Germany
Full Name: 6504 - Zeneca Hellas A E. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 160
Country of Incorporation: Greece
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United Kingdom

Country of Registration Greece
Full Name; 6013 - Zeneca Holding GmbH Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Germany
Country of Registration Germany
Fuli Name: 6159 - Zeneca Holding Spain S.A. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  Spain
Country of Registration Spain
Full Name: 4190 - ZENECA HOLDINGS AUSTRALIA PTY LTD |Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Australia
Country of Registration Australia
Full Name: 5406 - Zeneca Holdings Financial Corp. Comrmon Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name; 5500 - Zeneca Holdings Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 8913 - Zeneca Holdings Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom
Country of Regisfration United Kingdom
Full Name: 6341 - Zeneca Hungary KFT Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Hungary
Country of Registration Hungary

Registered Common
Full Name: 7357 - Zeneca llac Sanayi Ve Ticaret A.S. Shares Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  Turkey
Country of Registration Turkey
Full Name: 5501 - Zeneca Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 5304 - Zeneca International Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 7500 - Zeneca International Ltd Crdinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
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Country of Incorporation:
Country of Registration

United States of America
United States of America

Country of Registration England

Full Name: 8097 - Zeneca Investments Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom

Country of Registration England

Full Name: 6122 - Zeneca Ireland Limited Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Republic of Ireland

Country of Registration Republic of ireland

Full Name: 6030 - Zeneca ltalia S.r.l. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: lfaly

Country of Registration Italy

Full Name: 6208 - Zeneca Jota B.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND

Country of Registration HOLLAND

Full Name: 7342 - Zeneca K K. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  Japan

Country of Registration Japan

Full Name: 7337 - Zeneca K K. Common Stock Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Japan

Country of Registration Japan

Full Name: 6212 - Zeneca Kappa B.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND

Country of Registration HOLLAND

Full Name: 7320 - Zeneca Korea Limited Common Subsidiary Undertaking 160
Country of Incorporation:  Scuth Korea Redeemable Preference

Country of Registration South Korea

Full Name: 1003 - Zeneca Limited Ordinary Parent 100
Country of Incorporation:  United Kingdom

Country of Registration England

Full Name: 6287 - Zeneca LLC Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Russian Federation

Country of Registration Russian Federation

Full Name: 5539 - Zeneca Metalex Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100

03/04/00
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Country of Registration

Singapore
Singapore

Full Name: 7101 ~ Zeneca Mexicana, S.A. de C.V. Ordinary Class | Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Mexico Series A
Country of Registration Mexico Series B
Full Name: 7180 ~ Zeneca Mexico, S.A. de C.V. Crdinary Class | Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Mexico Ordinary Class li
Country of Registration Mexico
Full Name: 6214 - Zeneca Mogen B.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND
Country of Registration HOLLAND
Full Name: 6127 - Zeneca N.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of incorporation:  Belgium
Country of Registration Belgium

7365 - ZENECA NANTONG AGROCHEMICALS
Full Name: COMPANY LIMITED Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 88
Country of Incorporation:  China - People's Republic of China
Country of Registration China - People's Republic of China
Full Name: 5596 - Zeneca Nicaragua, S.A. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  Nicaragua
Country of Registration Nicaragua
Fulli Name: 8098 - Zeneca Nominees Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom
Country of Registration England
Full Name: 6213 - Zeneca Omega B.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND
Country of Registration HOLLAND
Full Name: 6503 - Zeneca OY Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of incorporation: Finland
Country of Registration Finland
Full Name: 7130 - Zeneca Panamericana, S.A. Nominative Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Guatemala
Country of Registration Guatemala
Full Name: 7383 - Zeneca Pharma (Singapore) Pte Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
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Full Name: 7348 - Zeneca Pharma Asiatic Limited Ordinary A Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Thailand Preference
Country of Registration Thailand
Full Name: 5513 - Zeneca Pharma Inc. Common NPV Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Canada
Country of Registration Canada
Full Name: 5603 ~ Zeneca Pharma Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 6119 - Zeneca Pharma S.A. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: France
Country of Registration France
Full Name: 8007 - Zeneca Pharmaceuticals (Number 2) Limited {Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom
Country of Registration England

4185 - ZENECA PHARMACEUTICALS AUSTRALIA
Full Name: PTY LTD Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Australia
Country of Registration Australia

4187 - ZENECA PHARMACEUTICALS NEW
Full Name: ZEALAND LTD Crdinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: New Zealand
Country of Registration New Zealand
Full Name: 6340 - Zeneca Polska S.p.z.o.0. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of incorporation: Poland
Country of Registration Poland
Full Name: 6306 - Zeneca Produtos Biociencia, Limitada Quotas Subsidiary Undertaking 89.88
Country of Incorporation: Portugal
Country of Registration Portugal
Full Name: 1006 - Zeneca Quest Limited Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom
Country of Registration United Kingdom
Full Name: 5418 - Zeneca Resins Holdings Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
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United States of America
United States of America

03/04/00

Full Name: 6209 - Zeneca Rho B.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND
Country of Registration HOLLAND
Full Name: 7179 - Zeneca S.A. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Chile
Country of Registration Chile
Full Name: 7168 - Zeneca S.A1.C. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Argentina
Country of Registration Argentina
Full Name: 6125 - Zeneca S.p.A Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incerporation: ltaly
Country of Registration Italy
Full Name: 1013 - Zeneca Share Trust Lid Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United Kingdom
Country of Registration England
Full Name: 6210 - Zeneca Sigma B.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of incorporation: HOLLAND
Country of Registration HOLLAND

7378 - Zeneca Sino-pharm Development Consulting
Full Name: Company Limited Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 75
Country of Incorporation: China - People's Republic of China
Country of Registration China - People's Republic of China
Full Name: 6344 - Zeneca Slovakia s.r.¢. ‘A’ Shares Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of incorporation: Slovakia
Country of Registration Slovakia
Full Name: 7400 - Zeneca South Africa (PTY) Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  South Africa
Country of Registration South Africa
Full Name: 1005 - Zeneca Toner Resins Ltd OCrdinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation:  United Kingdom
Country of Registration United Kingdom
Full Name: 7334 - Zeneca Turkiye Ltd Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
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United Kingdom
England

Bearer Shares UY$1000

Country of Incorporation:
Country of Registration

Zimbabwe
Zimbabwe

Full Name: 7126 - Zeneca Uruguay S.A. Par Value Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Uruguay
Country of Registration Uruguay

Registered Common
Full Name: 7187 - Zeneca Venezuela S A Shares Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Venezuela
Country of Registration Venezuela
Full Name: 8907 - Zeneca Wilmington Inc. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 7339 - Zeneca Yakuhin K.K. Common Subsidiary Undertaking 60
Country of Incorporation: Japan
Country of Registration Japan
Full Name: 6342 - Zeneca Yugoslavia d.0.0. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: Yugoslavia
Country of Registration Yugoslavia
Full Name: 6206 - Zeneca Zeta B.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND
Country of Registration HOLLAND
Full Name: 7420 - Zeneca Zimbabwe (Private) Limited Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 100
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Accounting Status: Associated Undertaking Non-Equity Accounted Associated Undertaking Equity Accounted

Operating Status: Active,Dormant,In Liquidation

Class of Capital Held By Held %
Full Name: 150 - ADVANTAB.V. Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 50
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND
Country of Registration HOLLAND
Full Name: 718 - COLOMBIANA DE COLINA LTDA Quotas Subsidiary Undertaking 49
Country of Incorporation: Colombia
Country of Registration Colombia
Full Name: 658 - Corpus Christi Global Chemicals Company Subsidiary Undertaking 375
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America
Country of Registration United States of America ‘
Full Name: 8031 - 1.C. Insurance Services Limited Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 50
Country of Incorporation:  United Kingdom
Country of Registration England
Full Name: 672 - IMAGE POLYMERS EUROPE Subsidiary Undertaking 50
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND
Country of Registration HOLLAND
Full Name: 780 - KK. ORYNOVA Unclassified Subsidiary Undertaking 50
Country of Incorporation: Japan
Country of Registration Japan
Full Name: 656 - Montrose Chemical Corporation of California  |Common NPV Subsidiary Undertaking 50
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America Nominative No Par Value
Country of Registration United States of America
Full Name: 625 - Orynova B.V. Crdinary A Subsidiary Undertaking 50
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND Ordinary B
Country of Registration HOLLAND
Full Name: 143 - TEJIN AGROCHEMICALS LTD Ordinary Subsidiary Undertaking 49.9
Country of Incorporation: Japan
Country of Registration Japan

27/06/00
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Accounting Status: Other Fixed Asset Investment,Other Participating Interest

Operating Status: Active,Dormant,In Liquidation

Country of Incorporation:
Country of Registration

South Africa
South Africa

Class of Capital Held By Held %

Full Name: 503 - Alta CT Services 40
Country of Incorporation: United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 501 - Alta Imaging 25
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 550 - EXSEED GENETICS LLC Common Subsidiary Undertaking 20
Country of Incorporation:  United States of America

Country of Registration United States of America

Full Name: 8220 - PLANTZYME VOF Subsidiary Undertaking 50
Country of Incorporation: HOLLAND

Country of Registration HOLLAND

Full Name: 720 - UAP CROP CARE (PTY) LIMITED Subsidiary Undertaking 20
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